
           

City of Lubbock, Texas
Regular City Council Meeting

February 25, 2025
Mark W. McBrayer, Mayor
Christy Martinez-Garcia, Mayor Pro Tem, District 1
Gordon Harris, Councilman, District 2
David Glasheen, Councilman, District 3
Brayden Rose, Councilman, District 4
Dr. Jennifer Wilson, Councilwoman, District 5
Tim Collins, Councilman, District 6

    

W. Jarrett Atkinson, City Manager
Matt Wade, City Attorney

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

http://www.mylubbock.us

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas
 

City of Lubbock City Council Meetings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance, please contact the
City Secretary's Office at (806)775-2061 or write to Post Office Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457 at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting.  

Executive Session Disclosure Statement: The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into executive session at any time during the course of the
meeting to discuss any item listed on this agenda as authorized by Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, including but not necessarily
limited to §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), §551.072 (Deliberations regarding Real Property), §551.073 (Deliberations regarding Gifts
and Donations), §551.074 (Personnel Matters), §551.076 (Deliberations regarding Security Devices), §551.086 (Public Power Utilities:
Competitive Matters), §551.087 (Deliberations regarding Economic Development Negotiations).  

A quorum of the City Council will be physically present in City Council Chambers located in Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas, as
it is the intent of the City Council to have a quorum physically present at this location. One or more members of the City Council, however, may
participate in the meeting by video-conference call as permitted under Section 551.127 of the Texas Government Code.  

Note: On occasion the City Council may consider agenda items out of order. 

 

12:30 p.m. - City Council convenes in City Council Chambers in Open Session and immediately recesses into
Executive Session.
 

           
1. Executive Session   

 

1. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071, with legal
counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement agreement and on matters in
which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct conflicts
with Chapter 551.

  

 

1. 1. 1. Luskey - Tract A   

 

1. 1. 2. Upland Avenue Street Bond Project - 4th Street to 19th Street   

 

1. 1. 3. Central Business District   

 

1. 1. 4. Baymont Inn and Suites aka Baymont by Wyndham Lubbock - Downtown Civic Center, 601   

http://www.mylubbock.us


1. 1. 4. Baymont Inn and Suites aka Baymont by Wyndham Lubbock - Downtown Civic Center, 601
Avenue Q, Lubbock, Texas, 79401; R552750-00007-00010-000; Memorial Center BLK 7 L1A
LESS SE245' X 182.91' & LESS SE 14' & 4A; SAI BHOLE-NATH HOTELS, INC. (13705 Jones
St., Lavonia, GA 30553), managed by Chetan (Chaz) Patel – (Tex. Civ. Prac. Rem. Code Chapter
125)

  

 

1. 1. 5. Executive Inn - 4401 AVE Q LUBBOCK, TX 79412, R851000-00000-00010-000, Townhouse
L1, owned by Dihenia Property Investment LLC, managed/registered agent Arun Dihenia,
Lalitaben Dihenia, Jonalyn Dihenia – (Tex. Civ. Prac. Rem. Code Chapter 125)

  

 

1. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section 551.072, to
deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property.

  

 

1. 2. 1. Luskey - Tract A   

 

1. 2. 2. Upland Avenue Street Bond Project - 4th Street to 19th Street   

 

1. 2. 3. Central Business District   

 

1. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.087, to discuss or
deliberate regarding commercial or financial information that the governmental body has received from
a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, stay, or expand in or near the
territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is conducting economic
development negotiations; and to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to a business
prospect described herein above.

  

 

1. 3. 1. Central Business District   

 

Adjourn from Executive Session
 

2:00 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in Open Session in City Council Chambers.
 

2. Ceremonial Items   

 

2. 1. Invocation   

 

2. 2. Pledges of Allegiance   

 

Call to Order
 

3. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to appear   



3. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to appear
in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter posted on the City
Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the meeting, no later than
2:00 p.m. on February 25, 2025. Citizen Comments provide an opportunity for citizens to make
comments and express a position on agenda items.

  

 

4. Minutes   

 

4. 1. January 28, 2025 Regular City Council Meeting 
 

5. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without separate
discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed from the Consent
Agenda and considered separately.

  

 

5. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2025-O0024, Amendment 12, amending the FY 2024-25 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Traffic Capital Project Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

 

5. 1. 1. Resolution - Public Works Traffic Operations: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Advanced Funding Agreement No. 0905-06-131, with the Texas Department of Transportation,
for the City to furnish and install vehicular and pedestrian detection equipment at sixty traffic signals
across the City.

 

5. 2. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider Ordinance No. 2025-O0023, abandoning and
closing portions of private utility, drainage, and transformer pad easements located in Lots 194-237 and
Tract K-1, Solaris Estates Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, east of Quaker
Avenue and south of 126th Street.

 

5. 3. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing portions of
alley right-of-way located in Block 102, Overton Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County,
Texas, between 14th Street and 15th Street, west of Avenue X in Block 102.

 

5. 4. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing portions of
an access easement located in Tracts 4A & 4B, Huntington Business Park, City of Lubbock, Lubbock
County, Texas, at the southeast corner of Indiana Avenue and 122nd Street.

 

5. 5. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing an alley
right-of-way located in Section 22, Block E-2, L.A. Patillo Survey, abstract No. 744, Lubbock County,
Texas, at the southeast corner of Indiana Avenue and 122nd Street.

 

5. 6. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for and on behalf
of the City of Lubbock, two (2) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deeds, and all related
documents, in connection with real property located in Section 8, Block E, of the GC & SF Railroad
Company Survey, Lubbock County, Texas, (Parcels 19 & 20), to be utilized for the 2022 Street Bond
Project.

 

5. 7. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Engineering: Consider Ordinance No. 2025-O0025, amending Chapter



5. 7. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Engineering: Consider Ordinance No. 2025-O0025, amending Chapter
39.04.014 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances, regarding the maintenance of drainage
easements. 

 

5. 8. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Professional
Services Agreement Contract 18600, and related documents, with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.,
for the reconstruction of 114th Street, from Indiana Avenue to University Avenue – 22B, which is a
portion of the 2022 Street Bond Project.

 

5. 9. Resolution - Public Works Water Utilities: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 18655, with Fuquay, Inc., for Cured in Place Pipe for pipeline rehabilitation at the Southeast
Water Reclamation Plant.

 

5. 10. Resolution - Public Works Water System Operations: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor
to execute Purchase Order 22105397, with VWR International, LLC, for the purchase of a 6495 Triple
Quadrupole Liquid Chromatograph Mass Spectrophotometer, to enable testing for "forever chemicals",
pharmaceuticals, and unregulated contaminants in water and wastewater.

 

5. 11. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Public Works Traffic Operations: Consider Ordinance No. 2025-O0026,
amending Section 20.05.103 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances, with regard to the
establishment of school zones and speed limits.

 

5. 12. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
18460, with Applied Operations Security & Investigation, for armed security guard services for Citibus.

 

5. 13. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
18338, with Michelin North America, Inc., for tire leasing to supply transit bus tires for Citibus.

 

5. 14. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution confirming that the City of Lubbock is in
support of the proposed 9% Housing Tax Credit application to be submitted to the Texas Department of
Housing and Community Affairs, for the Avenue U Villas Development, to be located at 8401 Avenue
U, Lubbock, Texas. 

 

5. 15. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
18526, with West Texas Services, LLC, dba Tom's Tree Place, for the purchase of gravel for the North
Overton Public Improvement District (PID). 

 

5. 16. Resolution - Information Technology: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 18465, with US Digital Designs by Honeywell, for the Zetron Fire Station Alerting System for
Lubbock Fire Rescue.

 

5. 17. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Consider Ordinance No. 2025-O0027, for Zone Case
3515, a request of Lubbock Habitat for Humanity, for a zone change from Medium Density Residential
District (MDR) to Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2), at 1719, 1721, 1723, and 1725 21st
Street, located south of 21st Street and east of Avenue S, McCrummen’s Second Addition, Block 9,
Lots 10, 11, 12, and 13.

 

5. 18. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 2): Consider Ordinance No. 2025-O0028, for Zone Case



5. 18. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 2): Consider Ordinance No. 2025-O0028, for Zone Case
1635-B, a request of Mr. T’s Auto Sales, LLC, for a zone change from Medium Density Residential
District (MDR) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at 4412 Avenue Q, located north of 45th Street
and west of Avenue Q, Syfrett Addition, Block 5, Lot 2A.

 

5. 19. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Consider Ordinance No. 2025-O0029, for Zone Case
2538-OO, a request of Mountain Top Engineering for Yolanda Vargas, for a zone change from Low
Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at 2210 Research
Boulevard, located south of 19th Street and west of Research Boulevard, on approximately 4.11 acres
of unplatted land out of Block D-6, Section 5.

 

6. Regular Agenda   

 

6. 1. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Declare three appointments by the Mayor to the Lubbock
Housing Authority Board of Commissioners: Toby Cecil, Vecelia Mann, Jerry Ramirez.

 

6. 2. Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution accepting the City of Lubbock Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report, for Fiscal Year that ended September 30, 2024.

 

6. 3. Public Hearing - Planning (District 2): Consider a request for Zone Case 437-C, a request of Michael
Session for Raymond and Gaynell Lemon, for a zone change from Low Density Single-Family District
(SF-2) to Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) Specific Use for a Manufactured Home
Subdivision, at 2909 East Broadway, located west of David Avenue and north of East Broadway, Flake
Addition, Block 7, Lot 8, and consider an ordinance.

 

6. 4. Public Hearing - Planning (District 2): Consider a request for Zone Case 3516, a request of Hugo
Reed and Associates, Inc. for Elliott Arroyo Seco, LTD., for a zone change from Low Density
Single-Family District (SF-2) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at 2415 114th Street, located east of
University and south of 114th Street, on 10 acres of unplatted land out of Block E, Section 15, and
consider an ordinance.

 

6. 5. Public Hearing - Planning (District 4): Consider a request for Zone Case 1794-K, a request of AMD
Engineering, LLC for Community Christian Church, for a zone change from High Density Residential
District (HDR) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at 3417 96th Street, located north of 98th
Street and west of Indiana Avenue, on 1.16 acres out of Raintree Addition, Tract F-1, and consider an
ordinance.

 

6. 6. Public Hearing - Planning (District 5): Consider a request for Zone Case 2916-F, a request of SK
Architecture Group, LLC, for a zone change from Industrial Park District (IP) to Neighborhood
Commercial District (NC), at 8310 and 8314 Upland Avenue, located south of 82nd Street and west of
Upland Avenue, Centerline Addition, Tracts B and C, and consider an ordinance.

 

6. 7. Public Hearing - Planning (District 3): Consider a request for Zone Case 3174-D, a request of AMD
Engineering, LLC for Texas District LCMS and Generator 1, LLC, for a zone change Low Density
Single-Family District (SF-2) and Heavy Commercial District (HC) to High Density Residential
District (HDR), at 2601, 2605, and 2615 19th Street, located west of University Avenue and south of
19th Street, on 1.56 acres out of Ellwood Place, Block 7, and consider an ordinance.

 



 AI# 13236 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 4. 1. 
02/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
January 28, 2025 Regular City Council Meeting 

Item Summary
January 28, 2025 Regular City Council Meeting 

Fiscal Impact
None 

Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary 

Attachments
1.28.2025 



CITY OF LUBBOCK
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

January 28, 2025
12:30 P. M.

The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in regular session on the 28th of January, 2025, in
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 12:30 p.m.

12:30 P.M. CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer; Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia; Council Member Tim
Collins; Council Member David Glasheen; Council Member Gordon Harris; Council Member
Dr. Jennifer Wilson; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City Secretary Courtney Paz; City
Attorney Matt Wade 

Absent:  Council Member Brayden Rose 

Note: Council Member Brayden Rose left immediately following executive session.

Note:       City Council addressed agenda items in the following order:
Executive Session; 3.1-3.2; 2.1; Citizen Comments 4; 5.1; 6.1-6.38; and 7.1-7.4.
Item No. 7.3 failed.

1. Executive Session

The meeting recessed at 12:30 p.m. and reconvened in Executive Session under the
provisions of Section 551, Texas Government Code. City Council reconvened in open
session for ceremonial items and work session at 2:11 p.m., and the meeting was called to
order at 2:40 p.m.

1. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071, with
legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement agreement and on
matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional
Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

1. 1. 1. Loop 88 Land Acquisition

1. 1. 2. 66th Street Project - I-27 to Ash Avenue 

1. 1. 3. Central Business District

1. 1. 4. Lake 7



1. 1. 5. Highland Oaks Annexation (Chapter 43 of the Texas Local Government Code)
 
1. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section 551.072, to

deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property.
 
1. 2. 1. Loop 88 Land Acquisition
 
1. 2. 2. 66th Street Project - I-27 to Ash Avenue 
 
1. 2. 3. Central Business District
 
1. 2. 4. Lake 7
 
1. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to

discuss personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to
the Central Business District Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone Board of Directors,
Community Development & Services Board/Urban Renewal Agency Board of Commissioners,
Lubbock Business Park Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone Board of Directors, North
Park Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone Board of Directors, North Overton Tax
Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone Board of Directors, Urban Design & Historic
Preservation Commission, and the Zoning Board of Adjustment.

  

 
 
 
Immediately following Executive Session, the City Council reconvenes in Work Session in City
Council Chambers.
 
City Council reconvened in open session for ceremonial items and work session at 2:11 p.m.
 
2. Hear and discuss presentations regarding the following and provide guidance to staff as

appropriate.
 
2. 1. City of Lubbock Impact Fee Program

 
Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, introduced the item, gave comments, and answered questions
from City Council. John Turpin, division director of engineering/city engineer, gave a
presentation on the City of Lubbock Impact Fee Program and answered questions from City
Council. Topics discussed included: overview, basics of impact fees, capacity plans, service
areas, impact fees collected by area, and impact fees utilization and opportunities. 

 
2:00 p.m. - City Council continues in Open Session in City Council Chambers.
 
City Council reconvened in Open Session at 2:11 p.m.
 
3. Ceremonial Items
 
3. 1. Invocation

Regular City Council Meeting 
January 28, 2025 Page 2 of 11



3. 1. Invocation
 
Reverend Paul Carpenter, First Christian Church, led the invocation.

 
3. 2. Pledges of Allegiance

 
Pledges of Allegiance, to the United States and Texas Flags, were led by Mayor Pro Tem Christy
Martinez-Garcia.

 
Call to Order
 
The meeting was called to order at 2:40 p.m.
 
4. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to

appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the
meeting, no later than 2:00 p.m. on January 28, 2025. Citizen Comments provide an
opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items. 
 
Sign ups:

Gayle Modrall appeared before City Council to speak on item 6.26 (a resolution for a
contract with Parkhill for the development of a conceptual design and probable cost of a
construction estimate for the Godeke Branch Library). 

 
5. Minutes
 
5. 1. December 10, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting    

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Dr.

Jennifer Wilson, to approve the December 10, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting
minutes.  

  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Brayden Rose (ABSENT) 

 
6. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without

separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed from
the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

 
  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Christy

Martinez-Garcia, to approve items 6.1-6.38. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Brayden Rose (ABSENT) 

Regular City Council Meeting 
January 28, 2025 Page 3 of 11



6. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2025-O0001, 
Amendment 7, amending the FY 2024-25 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the 
Abandoned Vehicle Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause. 

6. 1. 1. Resolution - Facilities Management: Resolution No. 2025-R0034 authorizing the Mayor to

6. 2.

6. 3.

execute Purchase Order 10028113, with Spacesaver Storage Systems, Inc. and Southwest 
Solutions Group, for the purchase and installation of high-density and static shelving units for 
the new Police Department Forensic/Property Facility. 

Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2025-O0002, 
Amendment 9, amending the FY 2024-25 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Water/
Wastewater Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause. 

Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2025-O0003, 
Amendment 10, amending the FY 2024-25 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the North 
Point Public Improvement District Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause. 

6. 3. 1. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2025-O0004, amending Ordinance No.
2024-O0126, EXHIBIT "B", the 2024 Service and Assessment Plan for the North Point Public
Improvement District by including additional funding for public improvements; providing a
savings clause; and providing for publication. 

6. 3. 2. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2025-R0035 authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 18386, with SRH Landscapes, LLC, for construction of the west walking track
in the North Point Public Improvement District.  

6. 3. 3. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2025-R0036 authorizing the Mayor to
execute Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement Contract 17281, with Hugo Reed
and Associates, Inc., for construction oversight services on the west walking track project in the
North Point Public Improvement District.  

6. 4. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2025-O0021,
Amendment 13, amending the FY 2024-25 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
General Fund and Information Technology Fund relating to an end user support tech position;
providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause. 

6. 5. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2025-O0022,
Amendment 14, amending the FY 2024-25 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
General Facilities Capital Project Fund in connection with Resolution No. 2024-R0582 for
Capital Improvement Project Document Management System, regarding City Secretary Capital;
providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause. 

6. 6. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2025-O0005, granting Southwestern Public

Regular City Council Meeting 
January 28, 2025 Page 4 of 11



6. 6. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2025-O0005, granting Southwestern Public
Service (SPS) D/B/A Excel Energy, the Right To Conduct Business effective January 28, 2025,
or thirty (30) days from the last publication of this ordinance, whichever occurs later. The term
of this franchise granted to SPS shall be for twenty (20) years from the date the franchise
becomes effective. As compensation and rental for the use of the streets, alleys and public ways
of the City in the conduct of its business under this franchise, SPS will pay the City each year of
the life of this franchise, beginning February 1, 2025, a sum of money equal to five percent (5%)
of the annual gross receipts of SPS from its retail electric lighting and power sales for
consumption within the corporate limits of the City.  

  

 
6. 7. Resolution - Finance: Resolution No. 2025-R0037 approving the Central Business District Tax

Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone Annual Report for October 1, 2023, through September
30, 2024, which will be distributed to the chief executive officer of each taxing unit levying
taxes within the Central Business District Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone, and to
the Comptroller of the State of Texas. 

  

 
6. 8. Resolution - Finance: Resolution No. 2025-R0038 approving the Lubbock Business Park Tax

Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone Annual Report for October 1, 2023, through September
30, 2024, which will be distributed to the chief executive officer of each taxing unit levying
taxes within the Lubbock Business Park Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone and to the
Comptroller of the State of Texas. 

  

 
6. 9. Resolution - Finance: Resolution No. 2025-R0039 approving the North Overton Tax Increment

Financing Reinvestment Zone Annual Report for October 1, 2023, through September 30, 2024,
which will be distributed to the chief executive officer of each taxing unit levying taxes within
the North Overton Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone, and to the Comptroller of the
State of Texas. 

  

 
6. 10. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2025-O0006, abandoning and closing

portions of a public right-of-way located in Section 13, Block E-2 in Lubbock County, Texas, in
the High Plains Subdivision, south of 82nd Street, and east of Elgin Avenue. 

  

 
6. 11. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2025-O0007, abandoning and closing

part of a drainage easement and an underground utility easement located in Section 22, Block
E2, Lubbock County, Texas, east of Quaker Avenue and north of 122nd Street. 

  

 
6. 12. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2025-O0023 abandoning and closing

portions of private utility, drainage, and transformer pad easements located in Lots 194-237 and
Tract K-1, Solaris Estates Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, east of
Quaker Avenue and south of 126th Street. 

  

 
6. 13. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2025-O0040 authorizing the Mayor to execute a

Street Use License, and related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and Tom’s
Daiquiri Place, Inc., on the west side of Buddy Holly Avenue, south of 18th Street. 

  

 
6. 14. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2025-O0041 authorizing the Mayor to accept, for   

Regular City Council Meeting 
January 28, 2025 Page 5 of 11



6. 14. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2025-O0041 authorizing the Mayor to accept, for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed, and
all related documents, in connection with certain real property located in Lot 11, Block 20, of
the Ameen Addition, Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel 4), at the northeast corner of 82nd Street
and Avenue D, to be utilized for the 2022 Street Bond Project. 

  

 
6. 15. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2025-O0042 authorizing the Mayor to accept, for

and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed, and
all related documents, in connection with certain real property located in Lot 20, Block 21, of
the Ameen Addition, Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel 3), at the northwest corner of 82nd Street
and Avenue D, to be utilized for the 2022 Street Bond Project. 

  

 
6. 16. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2025-O0043 authorizing the Mayor to accept, for

and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed, and
all related documents, in connection with certain real property located in Section 23, Block E, SI
Johnson Survey, Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel 32), at the northeast corner of 82nd Street and
Martin Luther King, Jr. Boulevard, to be utilized for the 2022 Street Bond Project. 

  

 
6. 17. Resolution - Public Works Paved Streets: Resolution No. 2025-O0044 authorizing the Mayor

to execute Contract 18466, with Lone Star Dirt & Paving, LTD., for Asphalt Patching associated
with the 2025 Street Maintenance Program. 

  

 
6. 18. Resolution - Public Works Paved Streets: Resolution No. 2025-O0045 authorizing the Mayor

to execute Contract 18469, with Omega 4 Construction, LLC., for Concrete
Replacement associated with the 2025 Street Maintenance Program. 

  

 
6. 19. Resolution - Public Works Paved Streets: Resolution No. 2025-O0046 authorizing the Mayor

to execute Contract 18478, with Intermountain Slurry Seal, Inc., for Micro-Surfacing associated
with the 2025 Street Maintenance Program. 

  

 
6. 20. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Public Works Traffic Operations: Ordinance No. 2025-O0008,

amending Section 20.05.102 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances, with regard to the
establishment of speed limits. 

  

 
6. 21. Resolution - Facilities Management: Resolution No. 2025-O0047 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Purchase Order 10028155, with VWR International, LLC, for the purchase and
installation of laboratory fume hoods for the new Police Department Forensic/Property Facility. 

  

 
6. 22. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Resolution No. 2025-O0048 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract 18141, with Covenant Medical Center, for functional assessments of potential
and existing Americans with Disabilities Act paratransit passengers. 

  

 
6. 23. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2025-O0049 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract 18404, with West Texas Services, Inc., dba Tom's Tree Place, for annual
landscape maintenance for the Upland Crossing Public Improvement District (PID).  

  

 
6. 24. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2025-O0050 authorizing the Mayor to   

Regular City Council Meeting 
January 28, 2025 Page 6 of 11



6. 24. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2025-O0050 authorizing the Mayor to
execute Amendment No. 3 to Professional Services Agreement Contract 17764, with West Texas
Services, Inc. dba Tom's Tree Place, for services related to right-of-way improvements within
the North Overton Tax Increment Financing District boundary.  

  

 
6. 25. Resolution - Parks and Recreation: Resolution No. 2025-O0051 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract 18392, with CLAW Constructors, LLC, for the construction of a new storage
and maintenance yard in the Sam Wahl Recreation Area at Lake Alan Henry. 

  

 
6. 26. Resolution - Libraries: Resolution No. 2025-O0052 authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract

18355, with Parkhill, for the development of a conceptual design and probable cost of a
construction estimate for the Godeke Branch Library.  

  

 
6. 27. Resolution - Libraries: Resolution No. 2025-O0053 authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract

No. 18539, with Midwest Tape, LLC, for digital material lending services for Lubbock Public
Libraries. 

  

 
6. 28. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2025-O0054 authorizing the Mayor to execute a

Memorandum of Understanding, by and between the City of Lubbock, United Supermarkets,
and The Lubbock Mayor's Fitness Council, to provide certain in-kind services in support of the
United Supermarket Marathon, Half-Marathon, and 10K and 5K runs, to provide recreational
activity and promote physical fitness awareness for the residents of Lubbock and the surrounding
area, as well as participants from across the country. 

  

 
6. 29. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2025-O0055 authorizing the City of Lubbock to

work in conjunction with Civic Lubbock, Inc., and other community partners, to host a
Community 4th of July Celebration to include a parade, evening concert, and fireworks show,
and reallocating Cultural Arts Grant No. 2406-007 in the amount of $40,500 to Civic Lubbock,
Inc.  

  

 
6. 30. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 2): Ordinance No. 2025-O0010, for Zone Case

828-A, a request of Brady & Hamilton, LLP for Jarvis Metals Recycling, Inc., for a zone change
from General Industrial District (GI) and Light Industrial District (LI), to General Industrial
District (GI) with a Specific Use for a Junkyard, Salvage Yard, and Wrecking Yard, at 7825
Olive Avenue, and 4125 and 4127 East Slaton Road, located north of East Slaton Road and east
of Olive Avenue, Loop Industrial Addition, Lots 1-A, 1-B, and 1-C. 

  

 
6. 31. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Ordinance No. 2025-O0011, for Zone Case

2882-B, a request of David Mobley for SLDEV, LLC, for a zone change from Heavy
Commercial District (HC) to Heavy Commercial District (HC) Specific Use for a smoke shop, at
7611 82nd Street, located south of 82nd Street and west of Xenia Avenue, Cambridge
Commercial Park Addition, Tract A-2. 

  

 
6. 32. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Ordinance No. 2025-O0012, for Zone Case   

Regular City Council Meeting 
January 28, 2025 Page 7 of 11



6. 32. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Ordinance No. 2025-O0012, for Zone Case
3514, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC, for Paracako, LLC, for a zone change from Low
Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at 12004 Frankford
Avenue, located west of Frankford Avenue and south of 119th Street, on approximately 1.72
acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 20. 

  

 
6. 33. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Ordinance No. 2025-O0013, for Zone Case

2538-NN, a request of Olga Agundiz, for a zone change from Low Density Single-Family
District (SF-2) to Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) Specific Use for a Manufactured
Home Subdivision, at 8605 #2 6th Street, located east of Inler Avenue and south of 6th  Street,
on approximately 0.692 acres of unplatted land out of Block D-6, Section 2. 

  

 
6. 34. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Ordinance No. 2025-O0014, for Zone Case

2627-J, a request of David Mobley for Julie McMahan, for a zone change from Heavy
Commercial District (HC) to Heavy Commercial District (HC) Specific Use for a smoke shop, at
6319 19th Street, located south of 19th Street and east of La Salle Avenue, West End Place
Annex Addition, Block 2, Lots 5 and 6. 

  

 
6. 35. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Ordinance No. 2025-O0015, for Zone Case

3509, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for Lonnie and Vickie Slape, for a zone change from
Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) and
Heavy Commercial District (HC), at 3002 North Frankford Avenue, located east of North
Frankford Avenue and north of Ursuline Street, on 14.80 acres of unplatted land out of Block JS,
Section 11. 

  

 
6. 36. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Ordinance No. 2025-O0016, for Zone Case

3255-B, a request of West Texas Engineering, LLC for G4 Assets, LLC, for a zone change from
Light Industrial District (LI) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at 7602 34th Street,
located north of 34th Street and west of Winfield Avenue, on approximately 3.57 acres of
unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 42. 

  

 
6. 37. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Ordinance No. 2025-O0017, for Zone Case

3513, a request of Tyson Rowin and Dan Williams for Quatro Locos, LLC, for a zone change
from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at
5909 4th Street, located west of Fulton Avenue and south of 4th Street, Isham Tubbs Estate
Addition, the North Part of Tract 4. 

  

 
6. 38. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Building Safety: Ordinance No. 2025-O0019, amending Article

28.14 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances, with a revision to the adopted appendices
regarding the International Residential Code. 

  

 
7. Regular Agenda
 
7. 1. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Central Business District   

Regular City Council Meeting 
January 28, 2025 Page 8 of 11



7. 1. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Central Business District
Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone Board of Directors, Community Development &
Services Board/Urban Renewal Agency Board of Commissioners, Libraries Board, Lubbock
Business Park Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone Board of Directors, Lubbock Water
Advisory Commission, North Overton Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone Board of
Directors, Urban Design & Historic Preservation Commission, and the Zoning Board of
Adjustment.
 
Courtney Paz, city secretary, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.
 
Appointments to the Community Development & Services Board/Urban Renewal Agency
Board of Commissioners were not considered.
 
Central Business District Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone Board of Directors:
Reappointment of Jeremy Hamilton and Dan Williams; and the appointment of Laura Vinson to
replace Suzanne Blake.
 
Libraries Board: Reappointment of Bruce Willoughby; and the appointment of Gretchen Scott
to replace Laura Heinz and Tim Ebelthite to replace James Beauchamp.
 
Lubbock Business Park Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone Board of Directors:
Reappointment of Sonny Garza, Cassandra Henry, and Tyler Young.
 
Lubbock Water Advisory Commission: Appointment of Graciela Quinteros to replace Lori
Manning.
 
North Overton Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone Board of Directors:
Reappointment of Kurt Metcalf, Patrick Murfee, and Lisa West.
 
Urban Design & Historic Preservation Commission: Reappointment of Deborah Bigness; and
the appointment of Chad Plunkett to replace Dr. Debra Lavender-Bratcher and John Garcia to
replace Larry Harvey.
 
Zoning Board of Adjustment: Reappointment of Matthew Hadley and Tracy Thomason; the
promotion of Jose Valenciano to a member position to replace Catherine Paulino Salcido;
and the appointment of Rafael Gutierrez to an alternate position to replace Jose Valenciano and
Michael Gomez to an alternate position to replace Steven Devenport.

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Tim

Collins, to appoint and reappoint the aforementioned citizens to the Central Business
District Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone Board of Directors, Libraries Board,
Lubbock Business Park Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone Board of Directors,
Lubbock Water Advisory Commission, North Overton Tax Increment Financing
Reinvestment Zone Board of Directors, Urban Design & Historic Preservation
Commission, and the Zoning Board of Adjustment. 

  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Brayden Rose (ABSENT) 

Regular City Council Meeting 
January 28, 2025 Page 9 of 11



 
7. 2. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Ordinance No. 2025-O0018, for Zone Case

3512, a request of Parkhill for Jan Humphries Campbell, for a zone change from Low Density
Single-Family District (SF-2) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), generally located at the
southwest corner of 130th Street and Milwaukee Avenue, on approximately 34.78 acres of
unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 12.
 
Kristen Sager, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member David Glasheen, seconded by Council Member Tim Collins, to

approve Ordinance No. 2025-O0018. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Brayden Rose (ABSENT) 

 
7. 3. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Lubbock Animal Services: Consider Ordinance No. 2025-O0020,

amending Chapter 4 "Animals" of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances Article 4.01.006, by
adding Article 4.01.06 requiring a breeding permit for breeding of dogs or cats; modifying
Article 4.01.06 pertaining to the amount of Liability Insurance Required to keep a dangerous
dog; providing a penalty clause; providing a savings clause; and providing for publication.  
 
This item failed.
 
Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; and Steven Greene, director of animal services, gave comments
and answered questions from City Council. 

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Council Member Tim

Collins, to approve this item. 
  Vote: 3 - 3 Failed

  NAY:  Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia 
  Council Member David Glasheen 
  Council Member Gordon Harris 
Other:  Council Member Brayden Rose (ABSENT) 

 
7. 4. Resolution - City Secretary: Resolution No. 2025-R0056 appointing six members to the Board

of Directors for the Reinvestment Zone Number Four, City of Lubbock (North Park Tax
Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone), and appointing one member as Chair of the Board.
 
Courtney Paz, city secretary, gave comments and answered questions from City Council. 

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Tim

Regular City Council Meeting 
January 28, 2025 Page 10 of 11



  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Tim
Collins, to approve Resolution No. 2025-R0056, to appoint Randy Allen, David Wilkerson,
Kevin Glasheen, Paul Terrill, Laura Pazmino, and Chris Winn as the initial six City of
Lubbock appointments to the North Park TIF Board of Directors; with the additional
appointment of Kevin Glasheen to serve as Board Chair. 

  Vote: 5 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member David Glasheen (RECUSE) 
  Council Member Brayden Rose (ABSENT) 

 

2:55 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor McBrayer adjourned the meeting.

 
The January 28, 2025 Regular City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the
25th day of February, 2025.

  
  ____________________________________

MARK W. McBRAYER, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
January 28, 2025 Page 11 of 11



 AI# 13197 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 1. 
02/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget
Ordinance No. 2025-O0024, Amendment 12, amending the FY 2024-25 Budget for
municipal purposes respecting the Traffic Capital Project Fund; providing for filing;
and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
On February 11, 2025, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance. 

Amend Capital Improvement Project 92742, Traffic Signal FY 2021-22 through
FY 2025-26 by decreasing funding in the amount of $281,250.

I.

Accept and appropriate funding in the amount of $1,040,000 from the Texas
Department of Transportation (TxDOT). Funding will be received as a
reimbursement to the City of Lubbock.

II.

Establish Capital Improvement Project 92904, Traffic Signal Vehicular and
Pedestrian Detection Improvements, and appropriate funding in the amount of
$1,321,250.

III.

The Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization (LMPO) approved the 2025-28
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP), and has awarded $1,300,000 of
Category 10 Funding to the City of Lubbock, for improvements to 60 traffic signals
within the City. The project funding includes 80% federal participation through
TxDOT ($1,040,000) and 20% local participation of funding ($260,000).  The project
total of $1,321,250 includes an additional $21,250 for administrative fees that the
City will pay TxDOT.

As part of this project, the Traffic Management Department will install enhanced
detection systems capable of detecting, classifying, and counting pedestrians,
bicyclists, and vehicles, for real time and historical data. In addition, the Department
will install Accessible Pedestrian Signals (APS) at each of the 60 signals with audible
walk indications.



Fiscal Impact
The total Capital Improvement Project budget amount will be $1,321,250.

The funding appropriation in the amount of $281,250 will be from Capital
Improvement Project (CIP) 92742, Traffic Signal FY 2021-22 through FY 2025-26. 
This amount will be transferred to the new CIP, 92904 -Traffic Signal Vehicular and
Pedestrian Detection Improvements, created by this Budget Amendment.

The remaining $1,040,000 will be from TxDOT, as a reimbursement back to the City
of Lubbock. This funding will be applied to the new CIP created by the Budget
Amendment.

Staff/Board Recommending
Joe Jimenez, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 12 







 AI# 13224 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 1. 1. 
02/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Works Traffic Operations: Consider a resolution authorizing
the Mayor to execute Advanced Funding Agreement No. 0905-06-131, with the
Texas Department of Transportation, for the City to furnish and install vehicular and
pedestrian detection equipment at sixty traffic signals across the City.

Item Summary
The Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization’s (LMPO) approved 2025-2028
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) has awarded $1,300,000 of Category 10
Funding to the City of Lubbock, for improvements to 60 traffic signals within the
City.

The project funding includes 80% federal participation ($1,040,000) and 20% local
participation ($260,000). Along with the $260,000 local match, the City must
pay Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) $21,250 in administrative fees for
the project, bringing the City's overall total to $281,250 for the project.

As part of the project, the Traffic Management Department will install enhanced
detection systems capable of detecting, classifying, and counting pedestrians,
bicyclists, and vehicles for real-time and historical data. The systems will interface
with existing traffic signal equipment at each intersection to activate and extend
green lights at the signals for vehicles. In addition, the Traffic Operations
Department will install Accessible Pedestrian Signals (APS) at each of the 60 signals
with audible walk indications.

Fiscal Impact
The City's share of the Advance Funding Agreement in the amount of $281,250 is
funded in Capital Improvements Project 92742 Traffic Signals FY 2021-22 through
FY 2025-26.

Staff/Board Recommending



Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works

Attachments
Resolution 
Agreement 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 











































Capital Project Number:
Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended
  66th & Indiana Traffic Signal Rebuild 110,000$       
  11th & Milwaukee Traffic Signal 150,000         
  82nd & Quincy Traffic Signal 150,000         
  Flashing School Zone Beacons (11) 99,000           
  E. 29th & MLK Hybrid Beacon 100,000         
  Emory & MLK Hybrid Beacon 100,000         
  Traffic Signal Upgrades 150,000         
  Wayside Horn Contracts 178,773         
  Encumbered - New Signal Parts (RRFB, APS, 
Detection System, Pull Boxes, Rebar Cages, 
Cabinet, School Zone Beacons, etc.) 121,437         

Agenda Item  February 28, 2025
Texas Department of Transportation Agreement 281,250         

Encumbered/Expended To Date 1,440,460      

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
  Traffic Signal Equipment 204,775         

Remaining Appropriation 204,775         

Total Appropriation 1,645,235$    

Budget

City of Lubbock

Traffic Signal Upgrades 21-22 25-26
92742

February 25, 2025
Project Cost Detail

Capital Project 



Project Scope

Install signals at unsignalized intersections and school zones as warranted, upgrade traffic signal
controllers, and perform necessary repairs. This project also includes major repairs and enhancements
such as replacing crushed conduit and wiring, rebuilding aging signal arm assemblies, and upgrading
traffic signals to flashing yellow arrows.

Project Justification

The project provides funding for new signals and school zones designed and constructed in-house.
The project will also be utilized to upgrade existing traffic signals requiring major repairs. Public safety
is a major factor considered when installing and maintaining traffic signals and school zones.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Public Safety
Redevelopment
Community Improvement
Growth and Development

FY 2021-22 Funding was utilized to upgrade
signal at 114th Street & Frankford Avenue to G-Y-R
operation
 
FY 2022-23 Funding was utilized to refurbish the
signal at 66th Street and Indiana Avenue, build a
new signal at 11th Place and Milwaukee Avenue,
and construct pedestrian hybrid beacons on
Martin Luther King Blvd at Emory Street and E.
28th Street.
 
FY 2023-24 Funding was utilized to install a
pedestrian hybrid beacon at N. Slide and Marshall
Avenue, flashing school zones at Alcove Trails
Middle School, Roscoe Wilson Elementary School,
and Ridgewood Elementary School, flashing
yellow arrow upgrades at 43rd and Milwaukee
Avenue, and upgraded 25 traffic controller units
 

FY 2020-21 $350,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2021-O0126
FY 2021-22 $20,235 was appropriated by BCR#
2022-13
FY 2022-23 $400,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2022-O0136
FY 2023-24 $225,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2023-O0108
FY 2024-25 $450,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2024-O0128
FY 2024-25 $200,000 was appropriated by
BCR# 2025-3

CIP 92742CIP 92742 Traffic Signal FY 2021-22 through Traffic Signal FY 2021-22 through
FY 2025-26FY 2025-26

Infrastructure ImprovementsInfrastructure Improvements

Project Manager: David Bragg - Traffic EngineeringProject Manager: David Bragg - Traffic Engineering



Project Dates Project Location

Project Start Date - Construction: 10/1/2021
Project End Date - Construction: 9/30/2029

City-wide

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget 2030 - 31 Budget

Construction $1,645,235 $450,000 $450,000 $450,000 $450,000 $450,000 $0

TOTAL $1,645,235 $450,000 $450,000 $450,000 $450,000 $450,000 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget 2030 - 31 Budget

General Fund Cash $1,645,235 $450,000 $450,000 $450,000 $450,000 $450,000 $0

TOTAL $1,645,235 $450,000 $450,000 $450,000 $450,000 $450,000 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

https://opengov.com/


 AI# 13175 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 2. 
02/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider Ordinance No. 2025-O0023,
abandoning and closing portions of private utility, drainage, and transformer pad
easements located in Lots 194-237 and Tract K-1, Solaris Estates Addition to the City
of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, east of Quaker Avenue and south of 126th
Street.

Item Summary
On January 28, 2025, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

The City of Lubbock is in receipt of a request to abandon and close the easements in
Solaris Estates Tract K-1 east of Quaker Avenue and south of 126th Street, on behalf
of AMD Engineering, LLC (AMD).
 
AMD is closing the easements due to a change in the design of Tract K-1. Upon the
approval of the closure, AMD will be submitting a final plat granting new utility
easements.
 
All City departments and franchise utility companies are in agreement with the
closure.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
John Turpin, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Ordinance - Solaris, Tr. K-1 Easement Closure, 



Solaris, Tr. K-1 Easement Closure, Exhibit A 
Solaris, Tr. K-1 Easement GIS Map 









TR C18

229

TR D

147

226

232

TR K1

218

227

148

215

145

216

233

TR C19
146

230 231

225

217

228

149

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Closure of Multiple Easements
Located within Section 22, Block E-2

Digital Orthophotography - May 2023

Proposed
Transformer Pad Easement Closure

(12 Total)
~240 sq ft

Proposed Drainage Easement and
Underground Utility Easement Closure

68,407.56 sq ft

Proposed Underground Utility
Easement Closure

~1,523.52 sq ft (Combined 3 UUE)

Proposed Drainage Easement and
Underground Utility Easement Closure

~42,890.20 sq ft

SAND

RID
GE

Q
U

A
K

ER
 A

V
E

ALLIE

BOLTON

125TH ST SOLARIS

ESTATES

N
A

SH
V

IL
LE

 A
V

E

SPRIN
GFIELD

APARTMENTS

FIR
ST

PRESBYTERIA
N

COOPER

HEIG
HTS

0 100 200 300 400 50050
Feet

SOLARIS

ESTATES

SHID
ELER

124TH ST

N
O

RF
O

LK
 A

V
E

126TH ST

127TH ST

130TH ST  FM 1585

TECH

CAFE

Q
U

A
K

ER
 A

V
E

128TH ST

SOLARIS

ESTATES

KELSEY

PARK



 AI# 13227 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 3. 
02/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and
closing portions of alley right-of-way located in Block 102, Overton Addition to the
City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, between 14th Street and 15th Street, west
of Avenue X in Block 102.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock is in receipt of a request to abandon and close portions of the
alley running east and west between 14th and 15th Streets, west of Avenue X in
Block 102, Overton on behalf of Lubbock 2413 Properties KP7, LLC.
 
Lubbock 2413 Properties KP7, LLC is closing the alley to accommodate a proposed
student housing building, and they have dedicated a new alley in order to re-route the
utilities from the alley closure.
 
The total area of the alley being closed is 7,002 square feet. The proponent gets
credit for the dedication of a new alley with an area of 3,084 square feet. The net area
subject to the closure fee is 3,918 square feet. Based on adjacent land values, the
Right-of-Way Department valued the closure at $2.50 per square foot, for a total of
$9,795.
 
All City departments and franchise utility companies are in agreement with the
closure.

Fiscal Impact
$9,795.00 revenue to the General Fund.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
John Turpin, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer



Attachments
Ordinance Alley Closure Overton,Blk102 
20203-08-09_Alley Closure Description and Exhibit 
GIS Map Alley Closure Overton,Blk102 







 

Page 1 of 2   Texas Registered Surveying Firm # 10194091 

 

ALLEY CLOSURE IN BLOCK 102, 
OVERTON ADDITION TO THE CITY OF LUBBOCK, 

LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS 
 

An alley closure in Block 102, Overton Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, according to 
the map, plat, and/or dedication deed thereof recorded in Volume 18, Page 610 of the Deed Records of 
Lubbock County, Texas, said alley closure contains 7,002 square feet being further described by metes and 
bounds as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a 1/2-inch iron rod with a plastic cap marked “PARKHILL RPLS 6453” found in the west 
right-of-way line of Avenue X, dedicated with said plat of Overton Addition, in the east line of said Block 102, 
at the southeast corner of Lot 1 of said Block 102, for the northeast corner of this alley closure, said 
beginning point having coordinates of NORTHING: 7,275,015.68 and EASTING: 942,820.26, Texas 
Coordinate System, North Central Zone 4202, North American Datum of 1983, whence a 1/2-inch iron rod 
with a plastic cap marked “PARKHILL RPLS 6453” found at the northeast corner of said Block 102 bears 
North 01 degrees 42 minutes 55 seconds East a distance of 127.35 feet; 
 
(1) THENCE South 01 degrees 42 minutes 55 seconds West, along the west line of said Avenue X, a 
distance of 20.00 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with a plastic cap marked “PARKHILL RPLS 6453” found in the 
east line of said Block 102, at the northeast corner of Lot 24 of said Block 102, for the southeast corner of 
this alley closure, whence a 1/2-inch iron rod found at the southeast corner of said Block 102 bears South 01 
degrees 42 minutes 55 seconds West a distance of 127.35 feet; 
 
(2) THENCE North 88 degrees 19 minutes 35 seconds West, along the south line of said alley dedicated 
with said plat of Overton Addition, a distance of 350.08 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with a plastic cap marked 
“PARKHILL RPLS 6453” found at the north common corner of Lot 17 and Lot 18 of said Block 102 for the 
southwest corner of this alley closure; 
 
(3) THENCE North 01 degrees 43 minutes 30 seconds East a distance of 20.00 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod 
with a plastic cap marked “PARKHILL RPLS 6453” found in the north line of said alley dedicated with said 
plat of Overton Addition, at the south common corner of Lot 7 and Lot 8 of said Block 102, for the northwest 
corner of this alley closure, whence a 1/2-inch iron rod with an orange plastic cap found at the north 
common corner of said Lot 7 and Lot 8 bears North 01 degrees 43 minutes 30 seconds East a distance of 
127.52 feet; 
 
(4) THENCE South 88 degrees 19 minutes 35 seconds East, along the north line of said alley, a distance of 
350.08 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. Bearings called in this description are based on the Texas 
Coordinate System, North Zone 4201, North American Datum of 1983. Distances called in this description 
are at surface. Areas reported hereon are based on calculations made from surface distances. This survey 
is subject to any facts which may be disclosed by a full and accurate title search. Record documents other 
than those shown may affect this tract. A plat of this survey accompanies this description on Page 2. 
 
Surveyed on the ground: April 27, 2023 
Signed: August 09, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Samuel Wyatt 
R.P.L.S. 6453 

SAMUEL WYATT

6453

L

A

N

D

 

S

UR

V

E

Y

O

R

S

T

A

T

E

 

O
F

 

T

E

X

A

S

R

E

G

I

S
T

E

R

E

D

P

R

O

F

E

S
S

I

O

N

A

L



Parkhill.com

TBPELS FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 10194091

AN ALLEY CLOSURE IN
BLOCK 102,

OVERTON ADDITION
TO THE CITY OF LUBBOCK

“ ”

http://www.parkhill.com/


1614

12

17

18

9

1011

14 18
B

11

17

710 8

79

12

1615

8

13

1513

18
A

2315

6

20

12

2414

24

22

21

10

3

1716

11

2414

7

13

12

11 510

19 21

13 22

5 4

1817

19

9

15 23

8

16

7 6

8

19

3

20

18

12

102 82

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Partial Alley Closure in
Block 102,Overton Addition,

Located Within the Southwest Portion of Block 2, Section O

Digital Orthophotography - May 2022

OVERTON

LUBBOCK

IN
TERNATIO

NAL AIR
PORT

15TH ST

A
V

E 
X

BROADWAY

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 A
V

E

OVERTON

OVERTON

OVERTON

0 250 500125
Feet

Proposed Portion of Alley to be Closed
~7005.58 sq ft

OVERTON

OVERTON

OVERTON

HANKIN
S

15TH ST

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 A
V

E
MAIN ST

14TH ST

15TH ST

16TH ST

17TH ST

18TH ST

A
V

E 
X

A
V

E 
W



 AI# 13228 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 4. 
02/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and
closing portions of an access easement located in Tracts 4A & 4B, Huntington
Business Park, City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, at the southeast corner of
Indiana Avenue and 122nd Street.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock is in receipt of a request to abandon and close an access
easement between Tracts 4A and 4B in Huntington Business Park, at the southeast
corner of Indiana Avenue and 122nd Street, on behalf of Centerline Engineering.
 
Centerline Engineering is closing the access easement and will dedicate a revised
access easement with a re-plat of Tracts 4A and 4B. This closure will be recorded
concurrently with the re-plat.

All City departments and franchise utility companies are in agreement with the
closure.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
John Turpin, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Ordinance - Huntington Bus. Pk. 
Huntington - Exhibit - A 
GIS map - Huntington Bus. Pk. 









181649
Text Box
Exhibit "A"


181649
Text Box

181649
Rectangle Sketch to Scale
661.36 sf



UNSUBDIVIDED

9

10

6A
7A1

TR B

TR 4C

TR 4D

TR 4F

TR 4B
TR 4E

TR 4A

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Partial Closure of an Access Easement (2024038882)
Located in Tracts 4A & 4B of Huntington Business Park,

Section 21, Block E2

Digital Orthophotography - March 2024

IN
D

IA
N

A
 A

V
E

122ND ST
JO

LI
ET

 A
V

E

IN
D

IA
N

A
 A

V
E

IT
H

A
C

A
 A

V
E

Portion of Access Easement
to be Closed
~8,912 sq ft

0 100 200 300 400 500
Feet

122ND ST

HUNTIN
GTON

BUSIN
ESS

PARK

124TH ST G
EN

EV
A

 A
V

E

Portion of Access Easement
to Remain Open

~14,988 sq ft

125TH ST

126TH ST

125TH ST

JO
RD

A
N

 A
V

E

KN
O

X
V

ILLE A
V

E

BELLA M
IA

ESTATESHATTON

PLACE

SECOND COOPER

MID
DLE SCHOOL

CREST AT

COOPER

COOPER

PLAZA

COSTA

HUNTIN
GTON

BUSIN
ESS PARK



 AI# 13229 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 5. 
02/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and
closing an alley right-of-way located in Section 22, Block E-2, L.A. Patillo Survey,
abstract No. 744, Lubbock County, Texas, at the southeast corner of Indiana Avenue
and 122nd Street.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock is in receipt of a request to abandon and close the alley running
north-south between Tracts D and D-2 and K-1 in Solaris Estates, Tract K-1 east of
Quaker Avenue and south of 126th Street on behalf of AMD Engineering, LLC.
 
AMD Engineering, LLC is closing the alley due to a change in the design of Tract
K-1. An underground utility easement will be dedicated and filed concurrently upon
the approval of the closure.
 
The total area of the alley being closed is 11,262 square feet. Based on adjacent land
values, the Right-of-Way Department valued the closure at $1.60 per square foot, for
a total of $18,019.20. A 50% discount is given because the proponent is dedicating a
new easement. The net value to the City is $9,009.60.
 
All City departments and franchise utility companies are in agreement with the
closure.

Fiscal Impact
$9,009.60 in revenue to the General Fund

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
John Turpin, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer



Attachments
Solaris Tr. K-1, Alley Ordinance 
Solaris Tr. K-1, Alley m&b legal 
Solaris Tr. K-1, Alley GIS 







181649
Text Box
Exhibit "A"

181649
Rectangle Sketch to Scale
422.5 sf





TR C18

229

TR D

TR K1

215

145
TR C19

228

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Alley Closure
Located within Section 22, Block E-2

Digital Orthophotography - May 2023

Proposed Alley Closure
11,262 sq ft

SAND

RID
GE

Q
U

A
K

ER
 A

V
E

ALLIE

BOLTON

125TH ST

SOLARIS

ESTATES

N
A

SH
V

IL
LE

 A
V

E

SPRIN
GFIELD

APARTMENTS

FIR
ST

PRESBYTERIA
NTHOMASON

COOPER

HEIG
HTS

0 100 200 300 400 50050
Feet

SOLARIS

ESTATES

SHID
ELER

124TH ST

N
O

RF
O

LK
 A

V
E

126TH ST

127TH ST

130TH ST  FM 1585

TECH

CAFE

Q
U

A
K

ER
 A

V
E

128TH ST
SOLARIS

ESTATES

KELSEY

PARK



 AI# 13230 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 6. 
02/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept,
for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, two (2) Street, Public Use, and
Right-of-Way Deeds, and all related documents, in connection with real property
located in Section 8, Block E, of the GC & SF Railroad Company Survey, Lubbock
County, Texas, (Parcels 19 & 20), to be utilized for the 2022 Street Bond Project.

Item Summary
With the widening of 82nd Street from I-27 to Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd., the
following street dedications will allow for the construction of the arterial.
 
For Parcel 19, GC Investments, LLC will dedicate 16,199 square feet of land on
82nd Street between Avenue B and Avenue D. The cost of the land is $48,597, and
the cost of improvements is $720, for a total of $49,317 for Parcel 19.
 
For Parcel 20, 67th Street and Salem Avenue, LLC will dedicate 7,984 square feet of
land on 82nd Street between Avenue B and Ash Avenue. The cost of the land is
$23,945,and the cost of improvements is $6,854, for a total of $30,799 for Parcel 20.

Fiscal Impact
The cost of the land acquisition is $80,116 plus closing costs, and is funded in
Capital Improvements Project 92825, Street Bond 82nd and MLK – 22 B.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
John Turpin, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
Resolution - 82nd St, Parcels 19 & 20 
P19_Deed_Signed 



P19_Deed_Signed 
P20_Deed_Signed 
GIS map - 82ndSt,Parcel19 
GIS map - 82nd St, Parcel 20 
CIP Budget Detail - 92825 
CIP 92825 Project Detail 





























City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
February 25, 2025

Capital Project Number: 92825
Capital Project Name: Street Bond 82nd and MLK - 22B

Encumbered/Expended Budget
City of Lubbock Staff Time  $                                 18,53
Contract 17088 with LAN for Design Services on 82nd and MLK                                3,424,87
Playa Lake 82 Land Purchase                                   700,00
Parcel 30 Land Purchase                                   128,54
Parcel 17 Land Purchase                                          50
Parcel 16 Land Purchase                                          50
Parcel 34 Land Purchase                                     59,21
Parcel 10 Land Purchase                                       2,80
Parcel 28 Land Purchase                                     80,41
Parcel 35 Land Purchase                                     35,00
Parcel 33 Land Purchase                                     99,90
Parcel 1 Land Purchase                                     45,77
Amendment 1 to Contract 17088                                               -
Parcel 2 Land Purchase                                          500
Parcel 23 Land Purchase                                     35,335
Parcel 29 Land Purchase                                   295,24
Parcel 3 Land Purchase                                          500
Parcel 4 Land Purchase                                       2,000
Parcel 32 Land Purchase                                   234,377
Parcel 21 Land Purchase                                     18,926
Parcel 26 Land Purchase                                     39,999
Parcel 27 Land Purchase                                     19,999

Agenda Items, February 25th, 2025
Parcel 19 Land Purchase                                     49,317
Parcel 20 Land Purchase                                       6,854

Encumbered/Expended To Date                                5,299,10

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Purchase of Land and Roadway Construction                                   400,89

Remaining Appropriation                                   400,89

Total Appropriation  $                            5,700,00



Project Scope

82nd Street from I -27 to MLK Blvd and MLK BLVD from 74th Street to 82nd Street are  currently  a two-lane paved road and
are  designated in the  2018 Thoroughfare  Master Plan to become a seven-lane Principal Arterial and a five - land Principal
Arterial (Modified).  Continued growth in east Lubbock has increased traffic demands along the  82nd Street and MLK BLVD
corridors.  This thoroughfare  will include the  ult imate  design of a seven-lane and five - lane undiv ided thoroughfares with
curb and gutter,  drainage ,  streetlights,  sidewalk improvements,  ut ility  adjustment and right of way  acquisit ion services.

Project Justification

On November 8, 2022, Lubbock voters approved issuance of a $200 million street improvements bond
package for the purpose of providing permanent public improvements. The funding will acquire,
construct and reconstruct street improvements, including but not limited to sidewalks, utility line
relocations and traffic signalization, necessary and related storm drainage facilities, and the
acquisition of land and rights-of-way for the full width dedication.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Public Safety
Community Improvement
Growth and Development

FY 2022-23 $5,700,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2022-O0169

Project Dates Project Location

Design Start Date: 01/2023
Design Completion: 01/2025
Bid for Constuction: 09/2025
Award Construction: 11/2025
Project Completion: 04/2029

82nd St and Martin Luther King Boulevard

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Construction $5,700,000 $0 $14,100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $5,700,000 $0 $14,100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

General Obligation Bonds $5,700,000 $0 $14,100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $5,700,000 $0 $14,100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92825 82nd Street and MLK Blvd- 22B
New Roadway Infrastructure

Project Manager: Bailey Ratcliffe - Engineering

FY 2024-25 Operating Budget and Capital Program - 300



 AI# 13153 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 7. 
02/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Engineering: Consider Ordinance No. 2025-O0025,
amending Chapter 39.04.014 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances, regarding
the maintenance of drainage easements. 

Item Summary
On February 11, 2025, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

As development occurs, drainage easements are often necessary to legally convey
stormwater discharge from one lot or tract to another, as the stormwater travels to a
playa lake, public street, or another feature. When property owners dedicate
stormwater drainage easements to the City, the ownership of the land and the
responsibility of maintenance of the easement remains with the owner. 

Prior to the adoption of Chapter 39 - Unified Development Code (UDC), drainage
easements were regulated by Chapter 38 - Subdivision Regulations. The process of
dedicating stormwater drainage easements and the responsibility of maintenance did
not change with the adoption of the UDC; however, this amendment would restore
some of the language to allow for greater transparency to landowners regarding the
ownership and maintenance responsibilities that accompany drainage easements. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
John Turpin, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Ordinance 





ORDINANCE NO.___________

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE
(ORDINANCE NO. 2023-00054), AMENDING SECTIONS 39.04.014 AND 39.10.002
REGARDING STORMWATER DRAINAGE AREA MAINTENANCE AND
EASEMENTS AND TO ADD A DEFINITION INCLUDED IN AMENDMENTS;
PROVIDING A PENALTY; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING
FOR PUBLICATION.

WHEREAS, since the adoption of the Unified Development Code (“UI)C”) of the City
of Lubbock, Ordinance No. 2023-00054, city staff has been receiving feedback from the
community regarding various changes that were adopted as part of the UDC and the effect some
of the changes have in practice as new development under the UDC is taking place; and

WhEREAS, the City of Lubbock is responsible for the oversight of the city’s stormwater
system and the permit for said system, the Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4), issued
by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ); and

WHEREAS, as part of said oversight, city staff finds this amendment necessary in order
to thoroughly delineate some of the maintenance responsibility for certain drainage areas, as well
as require easements for those drainage areas;

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lubbock finds it in best interest of the
citizens of Lubbock to adopt the following amendments to the UDC herein; NOW
THEREFORE:

BE IT ORDAINED BY TIlE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK:

SECTION 1. THAT Section 39.04.014 of the UDC, City of Lubbock, Texas (Ordinance
No. 2023-00054) is hereby amended by adding section 39.04.014(k) which shall read:

k. Maintenance and Easement. When a cul-de-sac, dead-end street, or drainage
easement abuts another lot or tract, the subdivider shall record an easement for the drainage
area(s) in which the subdivider/owner retains the perpetual responsibility for keeping the
easement area free of debris and sediment, mowed, and at the correct grade in order that the
stormwater flow shall be maintained as designed.

The easement herein shall be a minimum of ten (10) feet, unless the Design Engineer makes a
determination that a larger easement is necessary for the drainage plan for the subdivision, and
shall be adjacent to the street, alley, or property line. The required easement shall be shown on
the face of the plat.

SECTION 2. THAT Section 39.10.002 of the UI)C, City of Lubbock, Texas is hereby
amended by adding the following definition in alphabetical order, which shall read:



Design Engineer means the professional engineer responsible for the design of water, sewer,
paving and/or drainage improvements.

SECTION 3. THAT a violation of any provision of this Ordinance shall be deemed a
misdemeanor punishable in accordance with state law and Section 1.01.004 of the Code oi
Ordinances of the City of Lubbock.

SECTION 4. THAT should any paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or word of this
Ordinance be declared unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, the remainder of this Ordinance
shall not be affected thereby.

SECTION 5. THAT the City Secretary is hereby authorized to cause publication of the
descriptive caption of this Ordinance as an alternative method provided by law.

AND IT IS SO ORDEREI).

Passed by the City Council on first reading on

__________________________________

Passed by the City Council on second reading on

_______________________________

MARK W. MCBRAYER, MAYOR
ATTEST:

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

APPROVE1) AS TO CONTENT:

Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

dli Leisure, Senior Assistant City Attorney

Ccdocs://Ord inance Amending UDC stormwater drainage area maintenance
1.3 1.25

Page 2 of 2



 AI# 13231 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 8. 
02/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Professional Services Agreement Contract 18600, and related documents, with
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., for the reconstruction of 114th Street, from
Indiana Avenue to University Avenue – 22B, which is a portion of the 2022 Street
Bond Project.

Item Summary
114th Street from Indiana Avenue to University Avenue is currently a 3-lane
roadway that is designated in the 2018 Thoroughfare Master Plan to become a 5-lane
arterial roadway through the 2022 Street Bond.  Continued growth in southwest
Lubbock has increased traffic demand along the 114th Street corridor from Indiana
Avenue to University Avenue. The services will include the ultimate design of a
5-lane arterial, intersection improvements, drainage solutions, utility adjustment and
right-of-way acquisition services.
 
Staff conducted contract negotiations with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., after
establishing them as qualified under Request for Qualifications (RFQ) 15876, for
providing engineering services. Fair and reasonable hourly rates were agreed upon,
for a total contract amount of $1,305,234, with an 18-month contract duration. Staff
recommends Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. of Lubbock, Texas, be awarded the
professional services contract that will provide the plans, specifications and an
estimate for 114th Street from Indiana Avenue to University Avenue.

Fiscal Impact
This contract is not to exceed $1,305,234 and is funded in Capital Improvements
Project 92822, 114th Street: Indiana to University-22B.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager



Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
John Turpin, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 18600 
Location Map 
Budget Detail 
CIP Project Detail 





























































As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Location map of
114th St between Indiana Ave and University Ave

Digital Orthophotography - March 2024

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 A
V

E

114TH ST

IN
D

IA
N

A
 A

V
E

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 A
V

E

Q
U

A
K

ER
 A

V
E

114TH ST

FOX RID
GE

98TH ST

C
R 

23
00

IN
D

IA
N

A
 A

V
E

116TH ST

113TH ST

111TH ST
112TH STFL

IN
T 

A
V

E

D
ET

RO
IT

 A
V

E

A
K

RO
N

 A
V

E

118TH ST

COOPER STONE

ACTIO
N

GYPUSM

COOPER

MEADOWS

COOPER COVE

130TH ST

COOPER RID
GE

HIG
HLAND

GARDENSRAVENWOOD

SUN

COUNTRY NORTH

RID
GEVIEW

ESTATES
BELLA M

IA

ESTATES

SOLARIS

ESTATES

SECOND COOPER

MID
DLE SCHOOL

0 1 2 3 4 50.5
Miles



City of Lubbock
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
February 25, 2025

Capital Project Number: 92822
Capital Project Name: 114th Street from Indiana Avenue to University Avenue - 22B

Encumbered/Expended Budget
 $                              -

Agenda Item Febuary 25, 2025
Design Contract No. 18600                   1,305,234

Encumbered/Expended To Date                   1,305,234

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
114th Indiana Avenue to University Avenue - 22B Construction                   1,194,766

Remaining Appropriation                   1,194,766

Total Appropriation  $               2,500,000





 AI# 13239 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 9. 
02/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Works Water Utilities: Consider a resolution authorizing the
Mayor to execute Contract 18655, with Fuquay, Inc., for Cured in Place Pipe for
pipeline rehabilitation at the Southeast Water Reclamation Plant.

Item Summary
The rehabilitation project involves rehabilitating 600 feet of a 30-inch sewer trunk
line leading into the Southeast Water Reclamation Plant (SEWRP). This
rehabilitation is necessary due to part of the pipe being damaged, as well as the
unknown condition of the unexposed section of the pipe.
 
Rehabilitation services are available through Buy Board Contract No. 731-24 with
the Texas Association of School Boards Local Government Purchasing
Cooperative. This purchasing cooperative is an administrative agency created in
accordance with Section 791.001 of the Texas Government Code. Its purpose is to
obtain the benefits and efficiencies that can accrue to members of a cooperative,
while complying with state bidding requirements, and identifying qualified vendors
of commodities, goods, and services.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 18655 for $3,962,122 is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92701 -
Major Sewer Line Condition Line Assessment and Repair.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract - Fuquay, Inc., Cured In Place Pipe Rehab 



Contract - Fuquay, Inc., Cured In Place Pipe Rehab 
CIP 92701 Budget Detail 
CIP 92701 Project Detail Sheet 



























Capital Project Number:
Capital Project Name:

92701
Encumbered/Expended

Staff time 38,646$                 
Professional Services 333,535                 
Amendment 2 to Contract 15282 949,704                 

552,011                 
4,436,040              

614,999                 

  Professional Services Contract 18655 421,010                 
7,345,945              

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Sanitary Sewer System Improvements 3,953,605              

Remaining Appropriation 3,953,605              
Total Appropriation To Date 11,299,550$          

Amendment 3 to Contract 15282

92701

Construction Contract to Contract 17076

   Encumbered/Expended to Date

Amendment 4 to Contract 15282

Agenda Item February 25, 2025

City of Lubbock
Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail
February 25, 2025

Major Sewer Line Condition Assessment and Repair



 AI# 13238 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 10. 
02/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Works Water System Operations: Consider a resolution
authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase Order 22105397, with VWR
International, LLC, for the purchase of a 6495 Triple Quadrupole Liquid
Chromatograph Mass Spectrophotometer, to enable testing for "forever chemicals",
pharmaceuticals, and unregulated contaminants in water and wastewater.

Item Summary
The proposed purchase of this equipment, made through a purchasing
cooperative, Contract TXMAS-24-17501, will allow testing for Per-and
Polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS), which are sometimes referred to as "forever
chemicals", pharmaceuticals, and unregulated contaminants in both water and
wastewater.

Data will be used to further build our knowledge of how PFAS and unregulated
contaminants will affect our water/wastewater utility. Data will be extremely
valuable when the design of advanced treatment ahead of Lake 7 begins.

This equipment will be located at the North Water Treatment Plant and will be
operated by lab staff.

Fiscal Impact
Purchase Order 22105397, with VWR International, LLC for $572,082.59 is funded
in the Fiscal Year 2024-25 Public Works Water/Wastewater Operations Budget.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Director of Public Works

Attachments



Resolution - PO 22105397, VWR International 
PO 22105397 -VWR International 





















 AI# 13187 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 11. 
02/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Public Works Traffic Operations: Consider Ordinance
No. 2025-O0026, amending Section 20.05.103 of the City of Lubbock Code of
Ordinances, with regard to the establishment of school zones and speed limits.

Item Summary
On February 11, 2025, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

Section 20.05.103 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances establishes the
locations of school zone-reduced speed limits.

School Districts within the city limits of Lubbock make requests for traffic control to
the City's Public Works Traffic Management Department through the School District
Police Departments. Traffic Management completes a pedestrian study and presents
the results to the members of the Citizens Traffic Commission for consideration.

On December 17, 2024, the Citizens Traffic Commission recommended amendments
to Section 20.05.103, Article 20.05, Chapter 20, of the City of Lubbock Code of
Ordinances, to add new school zones at 2 schools. School zones with reduced speed
limits are recommended at the following locations:
  

1. Condra School for Education Innovation - 10th Street, (2) - 20 MPH
Sign Assemblies, located 70’ East of Avenue O to 155’ West of Avenue N
2. Lubbock-Cooper East Elementary School - 137th Street, (2) - 20
MPH Flashing Beacon Assemblies, located 140’ West of Detroit Avenue to 180’
East of Boston Avenue

Fiscal Impact
Materials estimates are approximately $21,000 and will be funded from Capital



Materials estimates are approximately $21,000 and will be funded from Capital
Improvements Project 92742 Traffic Signals FY 2021-22 through FY 2025-26: 

Flashing Beacon Assemblies (2) - $10,000 each
Sign Assemblies (2) - $500 each

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works
Citizens Traffic Commission

Attachments
Resolution 
Location Map 
Summary of Changes 
CIP 92742 Budget Detail 
CIP Project Detail 

















Agenda Item 13187 
2025 School Zone Ordinance Amendment 

Summary of changes 

1 
 

 
 
  
Condra School for Education Innovation (Item 1)* 

 10th Street  
 20 mph Sign Assemblies 
 70’ East of Ave. O to 155’ West of Ave. N 

 
Lubbock-Cooper East Elementary (Item 26)* 

 137th Street 
 20 mph Flashing Beacon Assemblies 
 140’ West of Detroit Ave. to 180’ East of Boston Ave. 

 
*Approved by Citizens Traffic Commission on December 17th, 2024 



Capital Project Number:
Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended
  66th & Indiana Traffic Signal Rebuild 110,000$       
  11th & Milwaukee Traffic Signal 150,000         
  82nd & Quincy Traffic Signal 150,000         
  Flashing School Zone Beacons (11) 99,000           
  E. 29th & MLK Hybrid Beacon 100,000         
  Emory & MLK Hybrid Beacon 100,000         
  Traffic Signal Upgrades 150,000         
  Wayside Horn Contracts 178,773         
  Encumbered - New Signal Parts (RRFB, APS, 
Detection System, Pull Boxes, Rebar Cages, Cabinet, 
School Zone Beacons, etc.) 100,437         

Agenda Item  February 28, 2025
   School Zone Installations 21,000           

Texas Department of Transportation Agreement 281,250         
Encumbered/Expended To Date 1,440,460      

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
  Traffic Signal Equipment 204,775         

Remaining Appropriation 204,775         

Total Appropriation 1,645,235$    

Budget

City of Lubbock

Traffic Signal Upgrades 21-22 25-26
92742

February 25, 2025
Project Cost Detail

Capital Project 



Project Scope

Install signals at unsignalized intersections and school zones as warranted, upgrade traffic signal
controllers, and perform necessary repairs. This project also includes major repairs and enhancements
such as replacing crushed conduit and wiring, rebuilding aging signal arm assemblies, and upgrading
traffic signals to flashing yellow arrows.

Project Justification

The project provides funding for new signals and school zones designed and constructed in-house.
The project will also be utilized to upgrade existing traffic signals requiring major repairs. Public safety
is a major factor considered when installing and maintaining traffic signals and school zones.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Public Safety
Redevelopment
Community Improvement
Growth and Development

FY 2021-22 Funding was utilized to upgrade
signal at 114th Street & Frankford Avenue to G-Y-R
operation
 
FY 2022-23 Funding was utilized to refurbish the
signal at 66th Street and Indiana Avenue, build a
new signal at 11th Place and Milwaukee Avenue,
and construct pedestrian hybrid beacons on
Martin Luther King Blvd at Emory Street and E.
28th Street.
 
FY 2023-24 Funding was utilized to install a
pedestrian hybrid beacon at N. Slide and Marshall
Avenue, flashing school zones at Alcove Trails
Middle School, Roscoe Wilson Elementary School,
and Ridgewood Elementary School, flashing
yellow arrow upgrades at 43rd and Milwaukee
Avenue, and upgraded 25 traffic controller units
 

FY 2020-21 $350,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2021-O0126
FY 2021-22 $20,235 was appropriated by BCR#
2022-13
FY 2022-23 $400,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2022-O0136
FY 2023-24 $225,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2023-O0108
FY 2024-25 $450,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2024-O0128
FY 2024-25 $200,000 was appropriated by
BCR# 2025-3

CIP 92742CIP 92742 Traffic Signal FY 2021-22 through Traffic Signal FY 2021-22 through
FY 2025-26FY 2025-26

Infrastructure ImprovementsInfrastructure Improvements

Project Manager: David Bragg - Traffic EngineeringProject Manager: David Bragg - Traffic Engineering



Project Dates Project Location

Project Start Date - Construction: 10/1/2021
Project End Date - Construction: 9/30/2029

City-wide

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget 2030 - 31 Budget

Construction $1,645,235 $450,000 $450,000 $450,000 $450,000 $450,000 $0

TOTAL $1,645,235 $450,000 $450,000 $450,000 $450,000 $450,000 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget 2030 - 31 Budget

General Fund Cash $1,645,235 $450,000 $450,000 $450,000 $450,000 $450,000 $0

TOTAL $1,645,235 $450,000 $450,000 $450,000 $450,000 $450,000 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

https://opengov.com/


 AI# 13234 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 12. 
02/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 18460, with Applied Operations Security & Investigation, for armed
security guard services for Citibus.

Item Summary
To provide greater security and protection for Citibus employees, passengers and facilities,
the City of Lubbock Purchasing Department issued an Invitation to Bid (ITB) for armed
security guard services for Citibus.
 
In response to ITB 25-18460-KM, sixteen vendors submitted the following bids, which
were opened on December 11, 2024. They were as follows:

  

Staff recommends award of the contract to the lowest bidder, Applied Operations Security

Contractor Amount
Applied Operations Security & Investigations, Allen, Texas $34,530
HIRED Staffing and Solutions Inc. DBA HSS Security, Farmers
Branch, Texas $39,000

Texas Security & Investigations Agency LLC, Dallas, Texas $39,750
Fortified International, LLC, Houston, Texas $41,620
Clandestine Group Inc., Katy, Texas $42,000
Universal Protection Service, LP, Irvine, California $42,600
LBK Defense, Lubbock, Texas $44,800
Genric Inc, Marysville, Ohio $44,898
Jet Security, LLC, Arlington, Texas $45,000
National Dispatcher Solutions, Inc. dba Flash Point Security &
Protective Services, Amarillo, Texas $45,000

Triple B Security Services, LLC, Overland, Missouri $46,000
Texas Veteran Security, LLC, San Antonio, Texas $51,370
Linson Eye Investigation, Inc., Garland, Texas $52,382
Good Guard Security, Inc., Dallas, Texas $54,750
Texas Public Safety and Investigations, Giddings, Texas $59,250
First Responder Protective Services Corp., Addison, Texas $87,000



Staff recommends award of the contract to the lowest bidder, Applied Operations Security
& Investigations of Allen, Texas, for $34,530.
  
All stated annual quantities are approximations of usage during the time period to be
covered by pricing established by this bid. Actual usage may be more or less and will be
determined by actual need. The City of Lubbock does not guarantee any specific amount of
compensation, volume, minimum, or maximum amount of services under this bid and
resulting contract.
 
The contract will be for a term of one year, with the option of 2, one-year extensions, from
the date beginning with formal approval.

Fiscal Impact
Cost associated with this contract is included in the FY 2025 Citibus Budget. There will be
no additional cost to the City of Lubbock.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Chris Mandrell, Citibus General Manager
Public Transit Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution - Citibus/Applied Operations Security 
Contract - Citibus/Applied Operations Security 
Bid Tab Sheet - Citibus/Applied Operations Security 
Project Summary - Citibus/Applied Operations Security 





Contract 18460 

City of Lubbock 

Contract for  

ITB 25-18460-KM 
Armed Security Guard Services for Citibus 

THIS CONTRACT made and entered into this   day of , 2025, by and between the 

City of Lubbock ("City"), and Applied Operations Security & Investigation, ("Contractor"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the City of Lubbock duly advertised for bids for Armed Security Guard Services 
for Citibus and bids were received and duly opened as required by law; and 

WHEREAS, after careful consideration of the bid submitted by Contractor, the City authorized 
the execution, in the name of the City of Lubbock a contract with said Contractor covering the purchase 
and delivery of the said Armed Security Guard Services for Citibus 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreement contained herein, as well as the 
financial consideration hereinafter referred to, the parties hereby covenant and agree as follows: 

1. In accordance with City’s specifications and Contractor’s bid, copies of which are attached
hereto and made part hereof, Contractor will deliver to the City, Armed Security Guard
Services for Citibus, and more specifically referred to as Items 0-1 through 0-2 on the bid
submitted by the Contractor or in the specifications attached hereto.

2. The City promises and agrees to employ, and does employ, the Contractor to cause to be done

the work provided for in this Contract and to complete and finish the same according to the

attached specifications, offer, and terms and conditions contained herein.

3. The contract shall be for a term of one (1) year, with the option of two (2), one year extensions,
said date of term beginning upon formal approval. This Contract will renew automatically for
the additional terms, unless either Party gives 90-day written notice to terminate the Contract.

4. All stated annual quantities are approximations of usage during the time period to be covered by

pricing established by this bid. Actual usage may be more or less. Order quantities will be

determined by actual need. The City of Lubbock does not guarantee any specific amount of

compensation, volume, minimum, or maximum amount of services under this bid and resulting

contract.

5. The Contractor must maintain the insurance coverage required during the term of this contract

including any extensions. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to ensure that valid insurance

is on file with the Purchasing and Contract Management Department as required by contract or

contract may be terminated for non-compliance.

6. A) Prices quoted shall be guaranteed for a period for six (6) months upon City approval. The rate

may be adjusted at the City’s discretion for the effective change in Consumer Price Index (CPI)

or Product Price Index (PPI) as appropriate.



B) Further, if the Contractor can provide documentation for actual charges for material, labor, 

etc. that demonstrates that the change in CPI or PPI is not sufficient, the Contractor shall provide 

such documentation to the City, and at the City’s sole discretion, the contractual rate may be 

further adjusted. If agreement regarding a new rate cannot be reached, the City shall terminate 

at the end of the current contract period. 

 

C) If an adjustment to pricing is granted under this section, the Contractor must provide the 

Director of Purchasing and Contract Management written, quarterly documentation to justify the 

ongoing adjustment. If no such documentation is timely received, the rate will automatically 

revert to the initial, awarded rate. 

 

7. This contract shall remain in effect until the first of the following occurs: (1) the expiration date, 

(2) performance of services ordered, or (3) termination of by either party with a 30 day written 

notice. The City of Lubbock reserves the right to award the canceled contract to the next lowest 

and best bidder as it deems to be in the best interest of the city. 
 

8. Contractor shall at all times be an independent contractor and not an agent or representative of 

City with regard to performance of the Services. Contractor shall not represent that it is, or hold 

itself out as, an agent or representative of City. In no event shall Contractor be authorized to 

enter into any agreement or undertaking for or on behalf of City. 
 

9. Insurance Requirements 
 

SECTION A. Prior to the approval of this contract by the City, the Contractor shall furnish a completed 
Insurance Certificate to the City, which shall be completed by an agent authorized to bind the named 
underwriter(s) to the coverages, limits, and termination provisions shown thereon, and which shall 
furnish and contain all required information referenced or indicated thereon. THE CITY SHALL HAVE 
NO DUTY TO PAY OR PERFORM UNDER THIS CONTRACT UNTIL SUCH CERTIFICATE 
SHALL HAVE BEEN DELIVERED TO THE CITY. 
SECTION B. The City reserves the right to review the insurance requirements of this section during 
the effective period of the contract and to require adjustment of insurance coverages and their limits 
when deemed necessary and prudent by the City based upon changes in statutory law, court decisions, 
or the claims history of the industry as well as the Contractor. 
SECTION C. Subject to the Contractor's right to maintain reasonable deductibles in such amounts as 
are approved by the City, the Contractor shall obtain and maintain in full force and effect for the duration 
of this contract, and any extension hereof, at Contractor's sole expense, insurance coverage written by 
companies approved by the State of Texas and acceptable to the City, in the following type(s) and 
amount(s): 

 

Auto Liability Requirements: $1M/occurrence is needed 

 

Commercial General Liability Requirements: $1M occurrence / $2M aggregate (can be 

combined with an Excess Liability to meet requirement). Commercial General Liability to 

include Products – Completion/OP, Personal and Advertising Injury, Contractual Liability, 

Fire Damage (any one fire), and Medical Expenses (any one person). 

 

Professional Liability Requirements: $1M occurrence 

/ $2M aggregate 

 

Workers Compensation Requirements: Statutory. If the vendor is an independent contractor 

with no employees and are exempt from providing Workers' Compensation coverage, they 

must sign a waiver (obtained from COL Purchasing) and include a copy of their driver's 

license. Employer Liability ($1M) is required with Workers Compensation. 

 

 



• The City of Lubbock (including its officials, employees and volunteers) shall be 

afforded additional insured status on a primary and non‐contributory basis on all 

liability policies except professional liabilities and workers' comp. 

• Waivers of Subrogation are required for CGL, AL, and WC. 

• To Include Products of Completed Operations endorsement. 

• Carrier will provide a 30‐day written notice of cancellation, 10‐day written notice for 

non‐payment. 

• Carriers must meet a A.M. Best rating of A‐ or better. 

• Subcontractors must carry same limits as listed above. 

 
IMPORTANT: POLICY ENDORSEMENTS 

The Contractor will provide copies of the policies without expense, to the City and all endorsements 
thereto and may make any reasonable request for deletion, revision, or modification of particular policy 
terms, conditions, limitations, or exclusions (except where policy provisions are established by law or 
regulation binding upon either of the parties hereto or the underwriter of any of such policies). Upon 
such request by the City, the Contractor shall exercise reasonable efforts to accomplish such changes in 
policy coverages, and shall pay the cost thereof. Any costs will be paid by the Contractor. 

REQUIRED PROVISIONS 

The Contractor agrees that with respect to the above required insurance, all insurance contracts and 
certificate(s) of insurance will contain and state, in writing, on the certificate or its attachment, the 
following required provisions: 

a. Name the City of Lubbock and its officers, employees, and elected representatives as additional 

insureds, (as the interest of each insured may appear) as to all applicable coverage; 

b. Provide for 30 days notice to the City for cancellation, nonrenewal, or material change; 

c. Provide for notice to the City at the address shown below by registered mail; 

d. The Contractor agrees to waive subrogation against the City of Lubbock, its officers, employees, 

and elected representatives for injuries, including death, property damage, or any other loss to 

the extent same may be covered by the proceeds of insurance; 

e. Provide that all provisions of this contract concerning liability, duty, and standard of care 

together with the indemnification provision, shall be underwritten by contractual liability 

coverage sufficient to include such obligations within applicable policies. 

NOTICES 

The Contractor shall notify the City in the event of any change in coverage and shall give such notices 
not less than 30 days prior the change, which notice must be accompanied by a replacement 
CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE. 

All notices shall be given to the City at the following address: 

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 
City of Lubbock 
1314 Avenue K, 9th Floor 
Lubbock, Texas 79401 

SECTION D. Approval, disapproval, or failure to act by the City regarding any insurance supplied by 
the Contractor shall not relieve the Contractor of full responsibility or liability for damages and accidents 



as set forth in the contract documents. Neither shall the bankruptcy, insolvency, or denial of liability by 
the insurance company exonerate the Contractor from liability. 

10. Neither the City nor the Contractor shall assign, transfer or encumber any rights, duties or 

interests accruing from this Contract without the written consent of the other. 
 

11. The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, equity, or 

otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of 

competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to 

exercising its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are 

cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any conflict 

between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this document, this provision shall 

control. 
 

12. At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly authorized audit 

representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, reserves 

the right to audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to the City 

under this Contract. In the event such an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments by 

the City, Contractor shall refund the City the full amount of such overpayments within 30 days 

of such audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to deduct such amounts owing 

the City from any payments due Contractor. 
 

13. All funds for payment by the City under this contract are subject to the availability of an annual 

appropriation for this purpose by the City. In the event of non-appropriation of funds by the City 

Council of the City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the contract, the City 

will terminate the contract, without termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the 

then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for the then-current year for the goods 

or services covered by this contract is spent, whichever event occurs first. If at any time funds 

are not appropriated for the continuance of this contract, cancellation shall be accepted by the 

Seller on 30 days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the 

City shall not be obligated under this contract beyond the date of termination. 
 

14. The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without 

written consent from the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management. Should consent be 

given, the Contractor shall insure the Subcontractor or shall provide proof on insurance from the 

Subcontractor that complies with all contract Insurance requirements. 
 

15. Contractor acknowledges by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, fully 

understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the descriptive 

material contained herein and any additional associated documents and Amendments. The City 

disclaims any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor unless agreed upon in writing by 

the parties. In the event of conflict between these terms and conditions and any terms and 

conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions provided herein shall prevail. 

The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms agreed upon by the parties, and any 

prior conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 
 

16. The Contractor (i) does not engage in business with Iran, Sudan or any foreign terrorist 

organization and (ii) it is not listed by the Texas Comptroller under Section 2252.153, Texas 

Government Code, as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or services 

to a foreign terrorist organization. As used in the immediately preceding sentence, “foreign 



terrorist organization” shall have the meaning given such term in Section 2252.151, Texas 

Government Code. 

17. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code, may apply to this 

contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if the 

contractor or vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that 

subchapter. 

To the extent Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code applies to this agreement, Contractor 

agrees to: (1) preserve all contracting information related to the contact as provided by the 

records retention requirements applicable to the governmental body for the duration of the 

contract; (2) promptly provide to the governmental body any contracting information related to 

the contract that is in the custody or possession of the entity on request of the governmental body; 

and (3) on completion of the contract, either: (A) provide at no cost to the governmental body all 

contracting information related to the contract that is in the custody or possession of the entity; or 

(B) preserve the contracting information related to the contract as provided by the records 

retention requirements applicable to the governmental body. 
 

18. Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, a) This section applies only to a 

contract that: (1) is between a governmental entity and a company with 10 or more full-time 

employees; and (2) has a value of $100,000 or more that is to be paid wholly or partly from 

public funds of the governmental entity. (b) A governmental entity may not enter into a contract 

with a company for goods or services unless the contract contains a written verification from the 

company that it: (1) does not boycott Israel; and (2) will not boycott Israel during the term of the 

contract. 

 

19. By entering into this Agreement, Contractor verifies that: (1) it does not, and will not for the 

duration of the contract, have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against 

a firearm entity or firearm trade association or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 

of the Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract. 

If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a 

value of at least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code 

Chapter 2274, it does not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against 

a firearm entity or firearm trade association; and will not discriminate during the term of the 

contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade association. 

Contractor represents and warrants that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration of the 

contract, boycott energy companies or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 of the 

Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract. 

If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a 

value of at least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code 

Chapter 2274, it does not boycott energy companies; and will not boycott energy companies 

during the term of the Agreement. This verification is not required for an agreement where a 

governmental entity determines that these requirements are inconsistent with the governmental 

entity’s constitutional or statutory duties related to the issuance, incurrence, or management of 

debt obligations or the deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment of funds. 

 

20. The Contractor shall retain all information received from or concerning the City and the City's 

business in strictest confidence and shall not reveal such information to third parties without 

prior written consent of the City, unless otherwise required by law. 



21. The Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless the city of Lubbock and its elected officials, 
officers, agents, and employees from all suits, actions, losses, damages, claims, or liability of 
any kind, character, type, or description, including without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, all expenses of litigation, court costs, and attorney's fees, for injury or death to any 
person, or injury to any property, received or sustained by any person or persons or property, to 
the extent arising out of, related to or occasioned by, the negligent acts of the Contractor, its 
agents, employees, and/or subcontractors, related to the performance, operations or omissions 
under this agreement and/or the use or occupation of city owned property. The indemnity 
obligation provided herein shall survive the expiration or termination of this agreement.

22. This purchase order incorporates the current Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Terms. The 
preceding provisions include, in part, certain Standard Terms and Conditions required by the 
Department of Transportation (DOT), whether or not expressly set forth in the preceding contract 
provisions. All contractual provisions required by DOT, as set forth in FTA Circular 4220.1F, are 
hereby incorporated by reference. Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, all FTA 
mandated terms shall be deemed to control in the event of a conflict with other provisions 
contained in this agreement. The Contractor shall not perform any act, fail to perform any act, or 
refuse to comply with any requests which would cause Citibus to be in violation of the FTA terms 
and conditions.

23. This Contract consists of the following documents set forth herein; Invitation to Bid No. 

25-18460-KM, Specifications, and the Bid Form. 

-----INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK----- 





City of Lubbock, TX 

ITB 25-18460-KM 

Armed Security Guard Services for Citibus   

Specifications 

 

1. SCOPE: 

1.1. This is an Invitation to Bid for a licensed and qualified security guard 

company to provide on­ site, uniformed, armed guard services at designated 

Citibus facilities. 

2. REFERENCES: 

2.1. Respondent shall submit a minimum of three (3) references that can verify the 

qualifications and experience requirements for services completed within the 

past twenty-four (24) months. 

2.2. References shall illustrate respondent's ability to provide the services outlined 

in the specification. References shall include name, point of contact, 

telephone number and dates that the services were performed. 

3. RESPONDENT QUALIFICATIONS: 

3.1. The respondent shall be an established company engaged in the business of 

providing security guard services with a minimum of three (3) years of 

experience within the last five (5) years. 

3.2. Have sufficient security staff and security guard personnel to meet Citibus’ needs. 

4. SERVICE REQUIREMENTS:  

The vendor shall ensure the following service requirements are provided: 

4.1. Post procedures will be identified and developed. The security guards shall 

perform, but not be limited to the following: 

4.1.1. Ensure door and gates are locked and unlocked as requested by a 

designated Citibus representative. 

4.1.2. Patrol by foot, interior and exterior of buildings and grounds. 

4.1.3. Report any maintenance problems to a Citibus on-site building facility 

manager. 

4.1.4. Check in by phone or 2-way radio as established by post instructions 

to their dispatcher or to report any hazardous safety condition. 

4.2. Security Guard Requirements: 

All security guards utilized shall meet the following requirements: 

4.2.1. Be knowledgeable of the specification requirements and post 

instructions to ensure strict compliance with these requirements is 

maintained. 

4.2.2. Be able to walk unassisted a minimum of three hundred (300) yards, 

climb stairs and be able to lift and carry twenty (20) pounds. 



4.2.3. Maintain respect for employees, contractors and visitors and conduct 

themselves with a high level of professionalism. Must maintain a 

business-like demeanor at all times. 

4.2.4. Not depart their assigned duty area(s) until they have been properly 

relieved. Under no circumstances shall any assigned duty area be left 

abandoned without approval from a designated Citibus representative. 

4.2.5. Shall be alert to surrounding area of responsibility at all times. 

4.2.6. Ensure unauthorized personnel are not permitted on Citibus grounds 

and in facilities at any time. 

4.2.7. Be physically and mentally qualified to perform the requirements of this 

specification. 

4.2.8. Be a high school graduate or hold a GED equivalent. 

4.2.9. Be fluent in English with the ability to give, receive and understand written 

and verbal instructions and procedures. 

4.2.10. Able to communicate verbally and in writing. 

4.2.11. Possess proper telephone etiquette answering skills. 

4.3. Uniforms: 

4.3.1. The security guard shall be in uniform at all times while on duty. The uniform shall be 

neat, clean, pressed and kept in good physical condition. Non-company supplied symbols, 

pins, buttons or slogans may not be applied to the uniform. 

4.3.2. Wear an identifying name badge with the company's logo which shall be clearly visible. 

4.3.3. Maintain a neat and professional appearance at all times. 

4.3.4. Carry all equipment necessary in the performance of their duty. 

5. VENDOR REQUIREMENTS: 

5.1. The vendor shall maintain an office environment with the possibility of a branch near where the 

security guard services are required. The vendor must be able to provide a twenty-four (24) hour, 

seven (7) day a week answering service phone number. The contract manager or site supervisor 

must return calls within fifteen (15) minutes of being contacted by a designated Citibus 

representative. 

5.2. When requested by Citibus, provide background check results on vendor assigned security 

guards. 

5.3. Provide the names of all security guard personnel performing under this contract. 

5.4. Meet with Citibus designated representative and establish post procedure and instructions 
for each assigned post. 

5.5. Provide an updated assigned list of replacement personnel to changes as soon as they occur. 

6. SUBSTANCE ABUSE REQUIREMENTS: 

6.1. The vendor agrees to establish and implement a drug and alcohol testing program that complies 

with 49 C.F.R. part 655, produce any documentation necessary to establish its compliance with part 

655, and permit any authorized representative of the United States Department of Transportation 

or its operating administrations, the State Oversight Agency, or Agency, to inspect the facilities and 



records associated with the implementation of the drug and alcohol testing program as required 

under 49 C.F.R. part 655 and review the testing process. The vendor agrees further to certify 

annually its compliance with part 655 and to submit the Management Information System (MIS) 

reports to the Agency. 

7. PERSONNEL REPLACEMENT: 

7.1. Citibus reserves the right to request to remove and replace any security guard or staff who 

is not attentive to duty requirements, and who is not in compliance with service 

requirements in this specification. 

7.2. Vendor shall replace the security guard within one hour. 

7.3. It is the vendor's responsibility to ensure assigned security guards are at their designated 

post at the scheduled time. If a security guard is unable to report to duty as scheduled, the 

vendor shall immediately provide a replacement to begin at the designated scheduled time. 

 

 

 

 

 



City of Lubbock, TX 
Purchasing and Contract Management 

Vendor Acknowledgement Form 
 
In compliance with the Invitation to Bid, the undersigned Bidder having examined the Invitation to Bid, 
instructions to bidders, General Conditions of the Agreement, Specifications, and being familiar with the 
conditions to be met, hereby submits the following bid for furnishing the material, equipment, labor and 
everything necessary for providing the items listed and agrees to deliver said items at the locations and for the 
prices set forth on the bid form and/or the bid table associated with this bid. 

 
A bid will be subject to being considered irregular and may be rejected if it shows omissions, alterations of 
form, conditional alternate bids, additions or alternates in lieu of the items specified, if the unit prices are 
obviously unbalanced (either in excess of or below reasonably expected values), or irregularities of any kind. 
The Invitation to Bid is by reference incorporated in this contract. 

 
Where applicable, prices are quoted as: F.O.B. Destination, Freight Pre-Paid and Allowed 
Where applicable, delivery days are: Days After Receipt of Order (ARO) 

Unless otherwise specified herein, the City may award the bid either item-by–item or on an all-or- 
none basis for any item or group of items shown on the bid. 

 
The City of Lubbock is seeking a contract for with one or more contractors. In order to assure adequate 
coverage, the City may make multiple awards, selecting multiple vendors to provide the products 
desired, if multiple awards are in the best interest of the City. A decision to make a multiple award of 
this Bid, however, is an option reserved by the City, based on the needs of the City. 

PAYMENT TERMS AND DISCOUNTS - Bidder offers a prompt payment discount of   %, net 
  calendar days. Discounts will not be considered in determining low bid. Unless otherwise indicated 
on the Bid Form, payment terms will be NET THIRTY DAYS. The City will pay the successful bidder within 
thirty days after the receipt of a correct invoice or after the date of acceptance, whichever event occurs later. 
Discounts for prompt payment requiring payment by the City within a stipulated number of days will be 
interpreted as applying within the stipulated number of calendar days after the date of receipt by the City of a 
correct invoice or after the date of acceptance that meets contract requirements, whichever event occurs later. 
Discounts for payment in less than ten days will not be considered. 

MOST FAVORED PRICING: The Bidder certifies that the price quoted is not in excess of the lowest price 
charged anyone else, including its most favored customer, for like quality and quantity of the 
products/services; does not include an element of profit on the sale in excess of that normally obtained by the 
Bidder on the sale of products/services of like quality and quantity; and does not include any provision for 
discounts to selling agents. If at any time during the contract period, the supplier should sell or offer for sale 
to any other customer, an equal or less quantity of similar contract products of like or better quality, at a lower 
net price(s) than provided herein, supplier agrees to notify the City and sell same product(s) at the lower 
price(s) on all deliveries made during the period in which such lower price(s) is effective. 

INTERLOCAL PURCHASING (optional): The City desires to make available to other local governmental 
entities of the State of Texas, by mutual agreement with the successful bidder, and properly authorized 
interlocal purchasing agreements as provided for by the Interlocal Cooperation Act (Chapter 791, Government 
Code), the right to purchase the same services, at the prices quoted, for the period of this contract. Each bidder 
shall indicate on the Bid Form in the space provided below if he/she will honor Political Subdivision orders 
in addition to orders from the City of Lubbock. Should these other governmental entities decide to participate 
in this contract, would you (the bidder) agree that all terms, conditions, specifications, and pricing would 
apply? 



City of Lubbock, TX 
ITB 25-18460-KM

Armed Security Guard Services for Citibus
Bid Form

Location
Total Cost

# Items

Quantity
Required

(+/-) UOM
Hourly

Rate
Total
Cost

0
#0-1 Security Guard Services – Regular Rate 1200 HR $23.02 $27,624.00

#0-2 Security Guard Services – Holiday Rate 200 HR $34.53 $6,906.00

Applied Operations Security & 
Investigations

$34,530.00
Allen, TX



Other governmental entities that might have interests in this contract are Frenship Independent School 
District, Lubbock Housing Authority, Lubbock County, Lubbock County Hospital District, Lubbock 
Independent School District, South Plains Association of Governments, City of Texarkana, Texas Tech 
University, West Texas Municipal Power Agency, Lynn County, and City of Wolfforth. 

 
YES   NO    

 

• If you (the bidder) checked YES, the following will apply: 

• Governmental entities utilizing Interlocal Agreements for Cooperative Purchasing with the City of 
Lubbock will be eligible, but not obligated, to purchase materials/services under the contract(s) 
awarded as a result of this solicitation. All purchases by governmental entities other than the City of 
Lubbock will be billed directly to that governmental entity and paid by that governmental entity. City 
of Lubbock will not be responsible for another governmental entity’s debts. Each governmental entity 
will order their own materials/service as needed. 

 
ADDENDA 

Bidder acknowledges receipt of addenda issued in regard to this solicitation: 

Addenda No.  Date   
Addenda No.  Date  
Addenda No.  Date  
Addenda No.  Date   

 

SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION 

Federal Law (A-102 Common Rule and OMB Circular A-110) prohibits non-Federal entities from contracting 
with or making sub-awards under covered transactions to parties that are suspended  or  debarred or whose 
principals are suspended or debarred. Covered transactions include procurement contracts  for  goods  or 
services equal to or in excess of $25,000 and all non-procurement transactions  (e.g., sub-awards to sub-
recipients). 

 
Contractors receiving individual awards of $25,000 or more and all sub-recipients must certify that their 
organization and its principals are not suspended or debarred by a Federal agency. 
Before an award of $25,000 or more can be made to your firm, you must certify that your organization 
and its principals are not suspended or debarred by a Federal agency. 
I, the undersigned agent for the firm named below, certify that neither this firm nor its principals are 
suspended or debarred by a Federal agency. 

1 11/26/2024
2 11/26/2024



TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 2252.152 

The undersigned representative of the undersigned company or business, being an adult over the age of 
eighteen (18) years of age, pursuant to Texas Government Code, Chapter 2252, Section 2252.152, certify that 
the company named above is not listed on the website of the Comptroller of the State of Texas concerning the 
listing of companies that are identified under Section 806.051, Section 807.051 or Section 2253.153. I further 
certify that should the above-named company enter into a contract that is on said listing of companies on the 
website of the Comptroller of the State of Texas, which do business with Iran, Sudan or any Foreign Terrorist 
Organization, I will immediately notify the City of Lubbock Purchasing and Contract Department. 

 
TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 2271.002 

 
Company hereby certifies the following: 

1. Company does not boycott Israel; and 
2. Company will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract. 

 
The following definitions apply to this state statute: 

(1) "Boycott Israel" means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise taking any 
action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial relations specifically with 
Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an Israeli-controlled territory, but does not 
include an action made for ordinary business purposes; and 
(2) "Company" means an organization, association, corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited 
partnership, limited liability partnership, or limited liability company, including a wholly owned subsidiary, 
majority-owned subsidiary, parent company, or affiliate of those entities or business associations that exists 
to make a profit. 

 
This Certification is required from a Company if the Company has 10 or more full-time employees and 
the contract for goods or services (which includes contracts formed through purchase orders) has a 
value of $100,000 or more that is to be paid wholly or partly from public funds of the governmental 
entity. 

TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE 2274 
 
By entering into this Agreement, Contractor verifies that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration of the 
contract, have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive  that  discriminates against a firearm entity or  firearm 
trade association or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 of the Texas Government Code does not 
apply to the contract. 

 
If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a value of at least 
$100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not 
have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade 
association; and will not discriminate during the term of the contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade 
association. 

 
Contractor represents and warrants that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration of the contract, boycott 
energy companies or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 of the Texas Government Code does 
not apply to the contract. 

 
If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a value of at least 
$100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not 
boycott energy companies; and will not boycott energy companies during the term of the Agreement. This 
verification is not required for an agreement where a governmental entity determines that these requirements 
are inconsistent with the governmental entity’s constitutional or statutory duties related to the issuance, 
incurrence, or management of debt obligations or the deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment 
of funds. 



INCOMPLETE INFORMATION 
 
Failure to complete or provide any of the information requested in this Request for Proposal, including 
references, and/or additional information as information as indicated, may results in disqualification by reason 
of “non-responsiveness”. 



CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 

In compliance with this solicitation, the undersigned bidder, having examined the bid documents, 
instructions to bidders, documents associated with the invitation to bid, and being familiar with the 
conditions to be met has reviewed the above information regarding: 

• Suspension and Debarment Certification 

• Texas Government Code Section 2252.152 

• Texas Government Code Section 2271.002 

• Texas Government Code 2274 

 
 
 
 

SUBMISSION INFORMATION 
 

An individual authorized to bind the company must sign the following section. Failure to execute this 
portion may result in bid rejection. 

 
THIS BID IS SUBMITTED BY  a 

corporation organized under the laws of the State of  , or a partnership consisting of 

  or  individual  trading  as  of 

the City of     

Tax ID No.:    

Address:     

City:  State:  Zip:   

M/WBE Firm: 

 
 
 

Please complete the information below. 

 

By  Date:   
Authorized Representative - must sign by hand 

 

Officer Name and Title:   
 

Business Telephone Number  FAX:   
 

E-mail Address:   

 Woman  Black American  Native American 
 Hispanic American  Asian Pacific American  Other (Specify) 

 

APPLIED OPERATIONS SECURITY  & INVESTIGATION

TEXAS

01-0843798

202 N ALLEN DR SUITE F

ALLEN TX 75013

12/10/2024

JOHN JIMA

972-390-1565 972-390-1735

JJIMA@APPLIEDOPERATIONSINC.COM



City of Lubbock, TX 
ITB 25-18460-KM

Armed Security Guard Services for Citibus
Bid Tabulation Sheet

Location
Total Cost

# Items

Qty
Required

(+/-) UOM
Hourly
Rate

Total
Cost

Hourly
Rate

Total
Cost

#0-1 Security Guard 
Services – 
Regular Rate

1200 HR $23.02 $27,624.00 $28 $33,600.00

#0-2 Security Guard 
Services – 
Holiday Rate

200 HR $34.53 $6,906.00 $42 $8,400.00

Applied Operations 
Security & 

Investigations Clandestin Group Inc

$34,530.00 $42,000.00
Allen, TX Katy, TX



City of Lubbock, TX 
ITB 25-18460-KM

Armed Security Guard Services for Citibus
Bid Tabulation Sheet

Location
Total Cos

# Items

Qty
Required

(+/-) UOM

#0-1 Security Guard 
Services – 
Regular Rate

1200 HR

#0-2 Security Guard 
Services – 
Holiday Rate

200 HR

Hourly
Rate

Total
Cost

Hourly
Rate

Total
Cost

$60 $72,000.00 $28.35 $34,020.00

$75 $15,000.00 $38 $7,600.00

First Responder 
Protective Services 

Corp
Fortified 

International, LLC

$87,000.00 $41,620.00
Addison, TX Houston, TX



City of Lubbock, TX 
ITB 25-18460-KM

Armed Security Guard Services for Citibus
Bid Tabulation Sheet

Location
Total Cos

# Items

Qty
Required

(+/-) UOM

#0-1 Security Guard 
Services – 
Regular Rate

1200 HR

#0-2 Security Guard 
Services – 
Holiday Rate

200 HR

Hourly
Rate

Total
Cost

Hourly
Rate

Total
Cost

$30.66 $36,792.00 $36.50 $43,800.00

$40.53 $8,106.00 $54.75 $10,950.00

Genric Inc
Good Guard 
Security, Inc.

$54,750.00$44,898.00
Marysville, OH Dallas, TX



City of Lubbock, TX 
ITB 25-18460-KM

Armed Security Guard Services for Citibus
Bid Tabulation Sheet

Location
Total Cos

# Items

Qty
Required

(+/-) UOM

#0-1 Security Guard 
Services – 
Regular Rate

1200 HR

#0-2 Security Guard 
Services – 
Holiday Rate

200 HR

Hourly
Rate

Total
Cost

Hourly
Rate

Total
Cost

$26 $31,200.00 $30 $36,000.00

$39 $7,800.00 $45 $9,000.00

HIRED Staffing 
Solutions Inc. DBA 

HSS Security Jet Security LLC

$39,000.00 $45,000.00
Farmers Branch, TX Arlington, TX



City of Lubbock, TX 
ITB 25-18460-KM

Armed Security Guard Services for Citibus
Bid Tabulation Sheet

Location
Total Cos

# Items

Qty
Required

(+/-) UOM

#0-1 Security Guard 
Services – 
Regular Rate

1200 HR

#0-2 Security Guard 
Services – 
Holiday Rate

200 HR

Hourly
Rate

Total
Cost

Hourly
Rate

Total
Cost

$34.99 $41,988.00 $30 $36,000.00

$51.97 $10,394.00 $45 $9,000.00

Linson Eye 
Investigation, Inc.

National Dispatcher 
Solutions, INC - DBA-
Flash Point Security 

& Protective Services 

$52,382.00 $45,000.00
Garland, TX Amarillo, TX



City of Lubbock, TX 
ITB 25-18460-KM

Armed Security Guard Services for Citibus
Bid Tabulation Sheet

Location
Total Cos

# Items

Qty
Required

(+/-) UOM

#0-1 Security Guard 
Services – 
Regular Rate

1200 HR

#0-2 Security Guard 
Services – 
Holiday Rate

200 HR

Hourly
Rate

Total
Cost

Hourly
Rate

Total
Cost

$39.50 $47,400.00 $26.50 $31,800.00

$59.25 $11,850.00 $39.75 $7,950.00

Texas Public Safety 
and Investigations

Texas Security & 
Investigations Agency 

LLC

$59,250.00 $39,750.00
Giddings, TX Dallas, TX



City of Lubbock, TX 
ITB 25-18460-KM

Armed Security Guard Services for Citibus
Bid Tabulation Sheet

Location
Total Cos

# Items

Qty
Required

(+/-) UOM

#0-1 Security Guard 
Services – 
Regular Rate

1200 HR

#0-2 Security Guard 
Services – 
Holiday Rate

200 HR

Hourly
Rate

Total
Cost

Hourly
Rate

Total
Cost

$34.25 $41,100.00 $28.40 $34,080.00

$51.35 $10,270.00 $42.60 $8,520.00

$51,370.00 $42,600.00

Texas Veteran 
Security LLC

Universal Protection 
Service, LP

NA Irvine, CA



City of Lubbock, TX 
ITB 25-18460-KM

Armed Security Guard Services for Citibus
Bid Tabulation Sheet

Location
Total Cos

# Items

Qty
Required

(+/-) UOM

#0-1 Security Guard 
Services – 
Regular Rate

1200 HR

#0-2 Security Guard 
Services – 
Holiday Rate

200 HR

Hourly
Rate

Total
Cost

Hourly
Rate

Total
Cost

$32.00 $38,400.00 $30.67 $36,804.00

$32.00 $6,400.00 $46.00 $9,200.00

LBK Defense
Lubbock, TX
$44,800.00

Triple B Security 
Services, LLC
Overland, MO

$46,004.00



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

 
ITB 25-18460-KM 

Armed Security Guard Services for Citibus 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on November 17 & November 24, 2024. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from November 15 to December 11, 2024. 

10 individuals attended the pre-bid meeting. 

68 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 

12 vendors were notified separately.  

16 vendors submitted bids. 

 



 AI# 13235 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 13. 
02/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor
to execute Contract 18338, with Michelin North America, Inc., for tire leasing to
supply transit bus tires for Citibus.

Item Summary
On September 29, 2024, the City of Lubbock issued a Request for Proposals (RFP)
for tire leasing for Citibus. Tires leased under this agreement are for City and
University fixed-route buses. Leasing bus tires offers several advantages that
include cost management, operational efficiency, and reduced financial burden.
Leased tires are charged on a per tire mile basis, and it is anticipated that the bus fleet
will operate approximately 140,000 miles per month.
 
In response to RFP 25-18338-KM, a sole proposal was received and opened on
October 16, 2024.  The proposals was evaluated using the following criteria:
 
Cost per mile (50 Points), Demonstrated knowledge and understanding of the project
(25 Points), and Record of performance based on previous work with the City
or other client references (25 Points). The maximum point value is 100 points. After
the proposals were evaluated, the following ranking was obtained:
  

Contractor Total Points
Michelin North America, Inc., Greenville, South Carolina 96
 
Staff recommends award of this contract to the sole proposer, Michelin North
America, Inc. of South Carolina, for an estimated cost of $115,000. The total cost of
the contract will be dependent on actual tire mile usage.
 
This is a one-year contract, with 4, one-year extensions, to begin upon approval by
the City Council.



Fiscal Impact
The estimated cost of $115,000 associated with Contract 18338 is included in the
Fiscal Year 2025 Citibus Budget. There will be no additional cost to the City of
Lubbock.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Chris Mandrell, Citibus General Manager
Public Transit Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution - Citibus/Michelin Tire Lease 
Contract - Citibus/Michelin Tire Lease 
Project Summary - Citibus/Michelin Tire Lease 





   Contract ______ 
City of Lubbock 

Tire Leasing for Citibus 

Agreement 

This Service Agreement (this "Agreement") is entered into as of the ___ day 

of__________________ 2025 ("Effective Date") by and between Michelin North America, Inc. 

(the Contractor), and the City of Lubbock (the "City"). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the City has issued a Request for Proposals 25-18338-KM, Tire Leasing for 

Citibus and 

WHEREAS, the proposal submitted by the Contractor has been selected as the proposal 

which best meets the needs of the City for this service; and 

WHEREAS, Contractor desires to perform as an independent contractor to provide Tire 

Leasing for Citibus, upon terms and conditions maintained in this Agreement; and 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the 

City and Contractor agree as follows:  

City and Contractor acknowledge the Agreement consists of the following exhibits which 

are attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, listed in their order of priority in the 

event of inconsistent or contradictory provisions: 

1. This Agreement

2. Exhibit A – General Requirements

3. Exhibit B – Best and Final Offer

4. Exhibit C – Insurance Requirements

Scope of Work 

Contractor shall provide the services that are specified in Exhibit A. The Contractor shall comply 

with all the applicable requirements set forth in Exhibit B and Exhibit C attached hereto. 

Article 1 

1.1 The contract shall be for a term of one (1) year, with the option of four (4), one year 

extensions, said date of term beginning upon formal approval. This Contract will renew 

automatically for the additional terms, unless either Party gives 90-day written notice to 

terminate the Contract. 

1.2 Procedure at Contract Termination - Upon termination Customer shall purchase all Tires 

currently held in inventory and/or fitted on vehicles. Alternatively, Customer may elect to 

continue to use all Tires furnished by Michelin under Contract, in inventory and/or fitted on 

vehicles on the termination or expiration date, for a period of twenty-four months (24) months 

("run out" period) from the termination or expiration date. 

18338



Notice of Customer's intent to run-out leased Tires must be provided in writing at least thirty 

(30) days prior to the expiration of this Contract. The tire lease rate in effect during the run-

out period shall be the tire lease rate in effect. Upon expiration of the run-out period, Customer

shall pay for any remaining rubber.

The calculation to be used for the purchase value shall be Based on the cost 

per 32. The formula for this shall be as follows: ((Remaining Tread Depth – 2 / 

32nds 1) x Rubber Price 2)) + Casing Price 3 

1 Minimum Legal Tread Depth 

2 Rubber Price from Tables below 

3 Casing Price at Market Value 

The final purchase value shall be agreed by the Parties within thirty (30) days of 

the termination of the Contract. 

Tire Size/ Type Rubber Price Unit 

305/70R22.5 $38.35 Per 32nd 

12R22.5 or 305/85R22.5 $40.00 Per 32nd 

275/70R22.5 $30.10 Per 32nd 

1.3 All stated annual quantities are approximations of usage during the time period to be 

covered by pricing established by this bid.  Actual usage may be more or less. Order 

quantities will be determined by actual need. The City of Lubbock does not guarantee any 

specific amount of compensation, volume, minimum, or maximum amount of services 

under this bid and resulting contract.  

1.4 The Contractor must maintain the insurance coverage required during the term of this 

contract including any extensions. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to ensure that 

valid insurance is on file with the Purchasing and Contract Management Department as 

required by contract or contract may be terminated for non-compliance.  

1.5 A) Prices quoted shall be guaranteed for a period for six (6) months upon City approval. 

The rate may be adjusted at the City’s discretion for the effective change in Consumer Price 

Index (CPI) or Product Price Index (PPI) as appropriate. 

B) Further, if the Contractor can provide documentation for actual charges for material,

labor, etc. that demonstrates that the change in CPI or PPI is not sufficient, the Contractor

shall provide such documentation to the City, and at the City’s sole discretion, the

contractual rate may be further adjusted. If agreement regarding a new rate cannot be

reached, the City shall terminate at the end of the current contract period.

C) If an adjustment to pricing is granted under this section, the Contractor must provide

the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management written, quarterly documentation to

justify the ongoing adjustment.  If no such documentation is timely received, the rate will

automatically revert to the initial, awarded rate.



1.6 This contract shall remain in effect until the first of the following occurs: (1) the expiration 

date, (2) performance of services ordered, or (3) termination of by either party with a 30 

day written notice. The City of Lubbock reserves the right to award the canceled contract 

to the next lowest and best bidder as it deems to be in the best interest of the city. 

Article 2 Miscellaneous. 

2.1 This Agreement is made in the State of Texas and shall for all purposes be construed 

in accordance with the laws of said State, without reference to choice of law 

provisions. 

2.2 This Agreement is performable in, and venue of any action related or pertaining to 

this Agreement shall lie in, Lubbock, Texas. 

2.3 This Agreement and its Exhibits contains the entire agreement between the City 

and Contractor and supersedes any and all previous agreements, written or oral, 

between the parties relating to the subject matter hereof.  No amendment or 

modification of the terms of this Agreement shall be binding upon the parties unless 

reduced to writing and signed by both parties. 

2.4       This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed 

an original. 

2.5 In the event any provision of this Agreement is held illegal or invalid, the remaining 

provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby. 

2.6 The waiver of a breach of any provision of this Agreement by any parties or the 

failure of any parties otherwise to insist upon strict performance of any provision 

hereof shall not constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach or of any subsequent 

failure to perform. 

2.7       This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and 

their respective heirs, representatives and successors and may be assigned by 

Contractor or the City to any successor only on the written approval of the other 

party. 

2.8 All claims, disputes, and other matters in question between the Parties arising out 

of or relating to this Agreement or the breach thereof, shall be formally discussed 

and negotiated between the Parties for resolution.  In the event that the Parties are 

unable to resolve the claims, disputes, or other matters in question within 30 days 

of written notification from the aggrieved Party to the other Party, the aggrieved 

Party shall be free to pursue all remedies available at law or in equity. 

2.9 At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly 

authorized audit representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and 

at reasonable times, reserves the right to audit Contractor's records and books 

relevant to all services provided to the City under this Contract.  In the event such 

an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments by the City, Contractor 

shall refund the City the full amount of such overpayments within 30 days of such 



 

audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to deduct such amounts 

owing the City from any payments due Contractor. 

    2.10 The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, 

equity, or otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all 

forms of relief in a court of competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be 

subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising its unrestricted right to seek 

judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, 

and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this 

provision and another provision in, or related to, this document, this provision shall 

control. 

     2.11    The contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, 

without written consent from the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management.  

Should consent be given, the Contractor shall insure the Subcontractor or shall 

provide proof of insurance from the Subcontractor that complies with all contract 

insurance requirements document, this provision shall control.  

2.12 Contractor acknowledges by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor 

has read, fully understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and 

conditions and the descriptive material contained herein and any additional 

associated documents and Amendments. The City disclaims any terms and 

conditions provided by the Contractor unless agreed upon in writing by the parties. 

In the event of conflict between these terms and conditions and any terms and 

conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions provided herein 

shall prevail. The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms agreed 

upon by the parties, and any prior conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 

2.13 Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign 

Terrorist Organization Prohibited.  Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas 

Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a vendor 

that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with 

or provide supplies or service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization. 

2.14 Texas Public Information Act.  The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, 

Government Code, may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees 

that the contract can be terminated if the contractor or vendor knowingly or 

intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. To the extent 

Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code applies to this agreement, Contractor 

agrees to:  (1) preserve all contracting information related to the contract as 

provided by the records retention requirements applicable to the governmental body 

for the duration of the contract; (2) promptly provide to the governmental body any 

contracting information related to the contract that is in the custody or possession 

of the entity on request of the governmental body; and (3) on completion of the 

contract, either: (A) provide at no cost to the governmental body all contracting 

information related to the contract that is in the custody or possession of the entity; 

or (B) preserve the contracting information related to the contract as provided by 

the records retention requirements applicable to the governmental body. 



2.15 No Boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, 

a) This section applies only to a contract that: (1) is between a governmental entity

and a company with 10 or more full-time employees; and (2) has a value of

$100,000 or more that is to be paid wholly or partly from public funds of the

governmental entity. (b) A governmental entity may not enter into a contract with

a company for goods or services unless the contract contains a written verification

from the company that it: (1) does not boycott Israel; and (2) will not boycott Israel

during the term of the contract.

2.16 Texas Government Code 2274. By entering into this Agreement, Contractor 

verifies that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration  of  the  contract,  have  a  

practice,  policy,  guidance,  or  directive  that  discriminates against a firearm entity 

or firearm trade association or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 of 

the Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract.  If Contractor is a 

company with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a value of 

at least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government 

Code Chapter 2274, it does not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that 

discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association; and will not 

discriminate during the term of the contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade 

association. 

2.17 Contractor represents and warrants that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration 

of the contract, boycott energy companies or (2) the verification required by Section 

2274.002 of the Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract.  If 

Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement 

has a value of at least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas 

Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not boycott energy companies; and will 

not boycott energy companies during the term of the Agreement. This verification 

is not required for an agreement where a governmental entity determines that these 

requirements are inconsistent with the governmental entity’s constitutional or 

statutory duties related to the issuance, incurrence, or management of debt 

obligations or the deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment of 

funds. 

2.18 Confidentiality. The Contractor shall retain all information received from or 

concerning the City and the City's business in strictest confidence and shall not 

reveal such information to third parties without prior written consent of the City, 

unless otherwise required by law. 

2.19 Indemnify. The Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless the city of Lubbock 

and its elected officials, officers, agents, and employees from all suits, actions, 

losses, damages, claims, or liability of any kind, character, type, or description, 

including without limiting the generality of the foregoing, all expenses of litigation, 

court costs, and attorney's fees, for injury or death to any person, or injury to any 

property, received or sustained by any person or persons or property, to the extent 

arising out of, related to or occasioned by, the negligent acts of the Contractor, its 



 

agents, employees, and/or subcontractors, related to the performance, operations or 

omissions under this agreement and/or the use or occupation of city owned 

property. The indemnity obligation provided herein shall survive the expiration or 

termination of this agreement.  

 

2.20 This purchase order incorporates the current Federal Transit Administration 

(FTA) Terms. The preceding provisions include, in part, certain Standard 

Terms and Conditions required by the Department of Transportation (DOT), 

whether or not expressly set forth in the preceding contract provisions. All 

contractual provisions required by DOT, as set forth in FTA Circular 

4220.1F, are hereby incorporated by reference. Anything to the contrary 

herein notwithstanding, all FTA mandated terms shall be deemed to control 

in the event of a conflict with other provisions contained in this agreement. 

The Contractor shall not perform any act, fail to perform any act, or refuse 

to comply with any requests which would cause Citibus to be in violation of 

the FTA terms and conditions. 

 

 

 

-------INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK-------- 

 

  





City of Lubbock, TX 

RFP 24-18338-KM 

Tire Leasing for Citibus 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

1. INTENT

The City of Lubbock/Citibus (hereinafter called "City") is seeking proposals from a contractor to

provide Tire Leasing for Citibus’ seventy-four (74) transit buses located in Lubbock, Texas.

2. SCOPE OF WORK

The performance of said contracted services is for the express purpose of leasing transit bus tires for

Citibus. The contractor shall furnish delivery, all labor, materials, supplies, equipment, transportation,

and supervision necessary to satisfactorily perform the Tire Leasing Program for Citibus specified

herein, and in the manner and at the frequencies set forth in one of the following specifications.

3. PERFORMANCE SPECIFICATIONS SHALL BE BID IN THREE DIFFERENT

VARIATIONS

Tire position requirement by mile, tread depth reporting requirement, damage charged on a case by 

case review basis with a gross monthly mileage charge. 

4. SPECIFICATIONS
Performance Specification - LEASED TIRES - No tire position requirement, no tread depth reporting

requirement, no damage penalty gross monthly mileage charge only. The fleet will operate approximately 140,000

miles per month based upon the academic year of Texas Tech University.

5. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS

Contractor and Owner agree that Contractor shall perform the duties under this Contract as an

independent contractor. The Contractor has the sole discretion to determine the manner in which the

services are to be performed.

6. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS

Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and

regulations relating, in any way, manner or form, to the activities under this Contract, and any

amendments thereto.

7. EVALUATION CRITERIA

7.1. The following criteria will be used to evaluate and rank submittals:

7.1.1. Cost: per mile basis.  – 50 Points 
7.1.2. Demonstrated knowledge and understanding of the project. – 25 Points  
7.1.3. Record of performance based on previous work with the City and/or other client references. 

– 25 Points

Exhibit A



City of Lubbock
RFP 25-18338-KM

Tire Leasing for Citibus
Price Proposal Sheet

BAFO

Contractor
Location

#

Item Description

Quantity
Required 

(+/-) UOM Tire Brand
Delivery 
Days Aro

Price 
Per Mile

Total
Cost

#0-1 305/70R22.5 30 EA X InCity Z 14 0.0128 $0.38 
#0-2 275/70R22.5 36 EA X InCity Z 14 0.01129 $0.41 
#0-3 305/85R22.5 378 EA X InCity Z SL 14 0.01397 $5.28 

Michelin North America, Inc.
Greenville, SC

Exhibit B 



VENDOR ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

In compliance with this procurement, the undersigned offeror having examined the request for 
proposal, instructions to offerors, documents associated with the request for proposals, and being 
familiar with the conditions to be met, has reviewed the information regarding:

· Insurance Requirements

· Suspension and Debarment Certification 

· Texas Government Code Section 2252.152

· Texas Government Code Section 2271.002

· Texas Government Code 2274

An individual authorized to bind the company must sign the following section. Failure to execute this 
portion may result in proposal rejection.

Authorized Signature Title

Print/Type Name Date

Company Name Address

City, State Zip Code

Contact for questions, clarifications, etc.

Name and Title:

Mailing Address:

City, State, Zip:

Telephone No:

Fax No:

E-Mail:

1 Parkway South

Greenville, SC 29615

Michelin North America, Inc.

Ed Quigley

Director of Operations, Services & Solutions AMN

Ana Garcia

1 Parkway South

Greenville, SC 29615

(864) 458-5000

(866) 866-7964

michelin.fleetsolutions@michelin.com

Authorized Signatu

10/14/2025



INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

Prior to the approval of this contract by the City, the Contractor shall furnish a completed Insurance 

Certificate to the City, which shall be completed by an agent authorized to bind the named 

underwriter(s) to the coverages, limits, and termination provisions shown thereon, and which shall 

furnish and contain all required information referenced or indicated thereon.  THE CITY SHALL 

HAVE NO DUTY TO PAY OR PERFORM UNDER THIS CONTRACT UNTIL SUCH 

CERTIFICATE SHALL HAVE BEEN DELIVERED TO THE CITY. 

The City reserves the right to review the insurance requirements of this section during the effective 

period of the contract and to require adjustment of insurance coverages and their limits when 

deemed necessary and prudent by the City based upon changes in statutory law, court decisions, 

or the claims history of the industry as well as the Contractor. 

Subject to the Contractor's right to maintain reasonable deductibles in such amounts as are 

approved by the City, the Contractor shall obtain and maintain in full force and effect for the 

duration of this contract, and any extension hereof, at Contractor's sole expense, insurance 

coverage written by companies approved by the State of Texas and acceptable to the City, in the 

following type(s) and amount(s): 

Commercial General Liability Requirements: $1M occurrence / $2M aggregate (can 

be combined with an Excess Liability to meet requirement). CGL is required in ALL 

contracts. It is perhaps the most important of all insurance policies in a contractual 

relationship. It insures the Contractor has broad liability coverage for contractual 

activities and for completed operations. 

Commercial General Liability to include Products – Completion/OP, Personal and 

Advertising Injury, Contractual Liability, Fire Damage (any one fire), and Medical 

Expenses (any one person). 

Automobile Liability Requirements: $1M/occurrence 

is needed 

Workers Compensation and Employer Liability Requirements: Statutory. If the vendor 

is an independent contractor with no employees and are exempt from providing 

Workers' Compensation coverage, they must sign a waiver (obtained from COL 

Purchasing) and include a copy of their driver's license. Employer Liability ($1M) is 

required with Workers Compensation. 

• The City of Lubbock (including its officials, employees and volunteers) shall

be afforded

additional insured status on a primary and non-contributory basis on all

liability policies except professional liabilities and workers' comp.

• Waivers of Subrogation are required for CGL, AL, and WC.

Exhibit C



• To Include Products of Completed Operations endorsement. 

 

• Carrier will provide a 30-day written notice of cancellation, 10-day 

written notice for non- payment. 

 

• Carriers must meet an A.M. Best rating of A- or better. 

 

• Subcontractors must carry same limits as listed above. 

 

 

IMPORTANT:  POLICY ENDORSEMENTS 

The Contractor will provide copies of the policies without expense, to the City and all 

endorsements thereto and may make any reasonable request for deletion, revision, or modification 

of particular policy terms, conditions, limitations, or exclusions (except where policy provisions 

are established by law or regulation binding upon either of the parties hereto or the underwriter of 

any of such policies).  Upon such request by the City, the Contractor shall exercise reasonable 

efforts to accomplish such changes in policy coverages, and shall pay the cost thereof. Any costs 

will be paid by the Contractor.  

REQUIRED PROVISIONS 

The Contractor agrees that with respect to the above required insurance, all insurance contracts 

and certificate(s) of insurance will contain and state, in writing, on the certificate or its attachment, 

the following required provisions: 

a. Name the City of Lubbock and its officers, employees, and elected representatives 

as additional insureds, (as the interest of each insured may appear) as to all 

applicable coverage; 

b. Provide for 30 days notice to the City for cancellation, nonrenewal, or material 

change; 

c. Provide for notice to the City at the address shown below by registered mail; 

d. The Contractor agrees to waive subrogation against the City of Lubbock, its officers, 

employees, and elected representatives for injuries, including death, property 

damage, or any other loss to the extent same may be covered by the proceeds of 

insurance; 

e. Provide that all provisions of this contract concerning liability, duty, and standard 

of care together with the indemnification provision, shall be underwritten by 

contractual liability coverage sufficient to include such obligations within applicable 

policies. 

 

 

 

 

 



NOTICES 

The Contractor shall notify the City in the event of any change in coverage and shall give such 

notices not less than 30 days prior the change, which notice must be accompanied by a replacement 

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE. 

All notices shall be given to the City at the following address: 

    Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

    City of Lubbock 

1314Avenue K, 9th Floor 

    Lubbock, Texas  79401 

Approval, disapproval, or failure to act by the City regarding any insurance supplied by the 

Contractor shall not relieve the Contractor of full responsibility or liability for damages and 

accidents as set forth in the contract documents.  Neither shall the bankruptcy, insolvency, or denial 

of liability by the insurance company exonerate the Contractor from liability. 

 



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

 
RFP 25-18338-KM 

Tire Leasing for Citibus 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on September 29 & October 6, 2024. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on the State of Texas Electronic State Business Daily.  

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from September 29 to October 16, 2024. 

13 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 

24 vendors were notified separately.  

1 vendor submitted a proposal. 

 



 AI# 13232 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 14. 
02/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution confirming that the City
of Lubbock is in support of the proposed 9% Housing Tax Credit application to be
submitted to the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs, for the
Avenue U Villas Development, to be located at 8401 Avenue U, Lubbock, Texas. 

Item Summary
The Housing Tax Credit (HTC) program is funded by the U.S. Treasury Department
and is overseen by the Internal Revenue Service. Federal regulations guiding the
program can be found in Internal Revenue Code Section 42. The Texas Department
of Housing and Community Affairs (TDHCA) administers the program for the State
of Texas. The HTC Program was designed to provide a source of equity financing for
the development of affordable multifamily housing. The goal is to maximize the
number of affordable units in the state's housing supply and ensure the supply is well
maintained and operated. After the property is developed by the applicant, the
property will be affirmatively marketed in the surrounding community.

Tenants earning up to 60% of the Area Median Family Income (AMFI) for the area
for their household size, and who meet the screening and eligibility restrictions of the
property, may qualify for a reduced rent unit. HTC units offer income qualified
tenants a unit at a reduced rate that is restricted by annually published rent guidelines,
which may increase or decrease annually, based on published units.

Pursuant to 10 TAC §11.3(e) and §11.4(c)(1) of the Qualified Allocation Plan (QAP)
and in accordance with Texas Government Code §2306.6710(b), an application may
be made for a resolution or resolutions from the municipality and/or county in which
the proposed development site is located. Resolutions that expressly set forth that the
municipality or county supports the application or development, are worth maximum
points, while resolutions setting forth that the municipality or county has no
objection to the application or development are worth fewer points. Pursuant to
§11.9(d)(1), once a resolution has been submitted, it may not be changed or



withdrawn. 

Fiscal Impact
None 

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager 
Brianna Brown, Business Development Director 

Attachments
Resolution 









 AI# 13237 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 15. 
02/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 18526, with West Texas Services, LLC, dba Tom's Tree Place, for the
purchase of gravel for the North Overton Public Improvement District (PID). 

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock issued an Invitation to Bid (ITB) from qualified contractors to secure
an annual contract to supply gravel for the North Overton PID.

In response to ITB 25-18526-KM, two bids were submitted and received. The following
bids were received and opened on January 30, 2025:
  

Contractor Amount
*SRH Landscapes, LLC,  Lubbock, Texas $10,002
West Texas Services, Inc. dba Tom's Tree Place of Lubbock, Texas $14,250

*SRH Landscapes, LLC submitted an incomplete bid, therefore staff recommends award to
the next lowest bidder, West Texas Services, LLC, dba Tom's Tree Place of Lubbock,
Texas, for $14,250.

The contract is for a term of one year, with the option of 4, one-year extensions. All stated
annual quantities are approximations of useage during the time period to be covered by
pricing established by this bid. Actual usage may be more or less; and order quantities will
be determined by actual need. 

Fiscal Impact
Contract 18526 for $14,250 is funded in the North Overton PID Annual Service and
Assessment Plan, as approved by the City Council. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager 
Brianna Brown, Business Development Director 



Attachments
Resolution - West Texas Services 
Contract - West Texas Services 
Bid-Tab - West Texas Services 
Project Summary - Gravel for North Overton PID 





Contract 18526 

City of Lubbock  
Contract for  

ITB 25-18526-KM 

 Gravel for the North Overton Public Improvement District (PID) 
Right-of-Way 

THIS CONTRACT made and entered into this   day of , 2025, by and between the 

City of Lubbock ("City"), and West Texas Services, Inc. dba Tom’s Tree Place , ("Contractor"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the City of Lubbock duly advertised for bids for Gravel for the North Overton 
PID Right-of-Way and bids were received and duly opened as required by law; and 

WHEREAS, after careful consideration of the bid submitted by Contractor, the City authorized 
the execution, in the name of the City of Lubbock a contract with said Contractor covering the purchase 
and delivery of the said Gravel for the North Overton PID Right-of-Way. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreement contained herein, as well as the 

financial consideration hereinafter referred to, the parties hereby covenant and agree as follows: 

1. In accordance with City’s specifications and Contractor’s bid, copies of which are attached 
hereto and made part hereof, Contractor will deliver to the City, Gravel for the North Overton 
PID Right-of-Way, and more specifically referred to as Items 1-1 through 2-1 on the bid 
submitted by the Contractor or in the specifications attached hereto.

2. The City promises and agrees to employ, and does employ, the Contractor to cause to be done 
the work provided for in this Contract and to complete and finish the same according to the 
attached specifications, offer, and terms and conditions contained herein.

3. The contract shall be for a term of one (1) year, with the option of four (4), one year extensions, 
said date of term beginning upon formal approval. This Contract will renew automatically for 
the additional terms, unless either Party gives 90-day written notice to terminate the Contract.

4. All stated annual quantities are approximations of usage during the time period to be covered by 
pricing established by this bid. Actual usage may be more or less. Order quantities will be 
determined by actual need. The City of Lubbock does not guarantee any specific amount of 
compensation, volume, minimum, or maximum amount of services under this bid and resulting 
contract.

5. The Contractor must maintain the insurance coverage required during the term of this contract 
including any extensions. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to ensure that valid insurance 
is on file with the Purchasing and Contract Management Department as required by contract or 
contract may be terminated for non-compliance.

6. A) Prices quoted shall be guaranteed for a period for six (6) months upon City approval. The rate 
may be adjusted at the City’s discretion for the effective change in Consumer Price Index (CPI) 
or Product Price Index (PPI) as appropriate.  



B) Further, if the Contractor can provide documentation for actual charges for material, labor, 
etc. that demonstrates that the change in CPI or PPI is not sufficient, the Contractor shall provide 
such documentation to the City, and at the City’s sole discretion, the contractual rate may be 
further adjusted. If agreement regarding a new rate cannot be reached, the City shall terminate 
at the end of the current contract period. 

 
C) If an adjustment to pricing is granted under this section, the Contractor must provide the 
Director of Purchasing and Contract Management written, quarterly documentation to justify the 
ongoing adjustment. If no such documentation is timely received, the rate will automatically 
revert to the initial, awarded rate. 

 
7. This contract shall remain in effect until the first of the following occurs: (1) the expiration date, 

(2) performance of services ordered, or (3) termination of by either party with a 30 day written 
notice. The City of Lubbock reserves the right to award the canceled contract to the next lowest 
and best bidder as it deems to be in the best interest of the city. 

 
8. Contractor shall at all times be an independent contractor and not an agent or representative of 

City with regard to performance of the Services. Contractor shall not represent that it is, or hold 
itself out as, an agent or representative of City. In no event shall Contractor be authorized to 
enter into any agreement or undertaking for or on behalf of City. 

 
9. Insurance Requirements  
 

SECTION A. Prior to the approval of this contract by the City, the Contractor shall furnish a completed 
Insurance Certificate to the City, which shall be completed by an agent authorized to bind the named 
underwriter(s) to the coverages, limits, and termination provisions shown thereon, and which shall 
furnish and contain all required information referenced or indicated thereon. THE CITY SHALL HAVE 
NO DUTY TO PAY OR PERFORM UNDER THIS CONTRACT UNTIL SUCH CERTIFICATE 
SHALL HAVE BEEN DELIVERED TO THE CITY. 
SECTION B. The City reserves the right to review the insurance requirements of this section during 
the effective period of the contract and to require adjustment of insurance coverages and their limits 
when deemed necessary and prudent by the City based upon changes in statutory law, court decisions, 
or the claims history of the industry as well as the Contractor. 
SECTION C. Subject to the Contractor's right to maintain reasonable deductibles in such amounts as 
are approved by the City, the Contractor shall obtain and maintain in full force and effect for the duration 
of this contract, and any extension hereof, at Contractor's sole expense, insurance coverage written by 
companies approved by the State of Texas and acceptable to the City, in the following type(s) and 
amount(s): 
 
Commercial General Liability Requirements: $1M occurrence / $2M aggregate (can be combined 
with an Excess Liability to meet requirement). CGL is required in ALL contracts. It is perhaps the 
most important of all insurance policies in a contractual relationship. It insures the Contractor has 
broad liability coverage for contractual activities and for completed operations. 

 
Commercial General Liability to include Products – Completion/OP, Personal and Advertising Injury, 
Contractual Liability, Fire Damage (any one fire), and Medical Expenses (any one person). 



 
 

 The City of Lubbock (including its officials, employees and volunteers) shall be afforded 
additional insured status on a primary and non-contributory basis on all liability policies 
except professional liabilities and workers' comp. 

 Waivers of Subrogation are required for CGL, AL, and WC. 

 To Include Products of Completed Operations endorsement. 

 Carrier will provide a 30-day written notice of cancellation, 10-day written notice for non-
payment. 

 Carriers must meet an A.M. Best rating of A- or better. 

 Subcontractors must carry same limits as listed above. 
 
IMPORTANT: POLICY ENDORSEMENTS 

The Contractor will provide copies of the policies without expense, to the City and all endorsements 
thereto and may make any reasonable request for deletion, revision, or modification of particular policy 
terms, conditions, limitations, or exclusions (except where policy provisions are established by law or 
regulation binding upon either of the parties hereto or the underwriter of any of such policies). Upon 
such request by the City, the Contractor shall exercise reasonable efforts to accomplish such changes in 
policy coverages, and shall pay the cost thereof. Any costs will be paid by the Contractor. 

REQUIRED PROVISIONS 

The Contractor agrees that with respect to the above required insurance, all insurance contracts and 
certificate(s) of insurance will contain and state, in writing, on the certificate or its attachment, the 
following required provisions: 

a. Name the City of Lubbock and its officers, employees, and elected representatives as additional 
insureds, (as the interest of each insured may appear) as to all applicable coverage; 

b. Provide for 30 days notice to the City for cancellation, nonrenewal, or material change; 

c. Provide for notice to the City at the address shown below by registered mail; 

d. The Contractor agrees to waive subrogation against the City of Lubbock, its officers, employees, 
and elected representatives for injuries, including death, property damage, or any other loss to 
the extent same may be covered by the proceeds of insurance; 

e. Provide that all provisions of this contract concerning liability, duty, and standard of care 
together with the indemnification provision, shall be underwritten by contractual liability 
coverage sufficient to include such obligations within applicable policies. 

NOTICES 

The Contractor shall notify the City in the event of any change in coverage and shall give such notices 
not less than 30 days prior the change, which notice must be accompanied by a replacement 
CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE. 

All notices shall be given to the City at the following address: 

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 
City of Lubbock 
1314 Avenue K, 9th Floor 
Lubbock, Texas 79401 

SECTION D. Approval, disapproval, or failure to act by the City regarding any insurance supplied by 
the Contractor shall not relieve the Contractor of full responsibility or liability for damages and accidents 



as set forth in the contract documents. Neither shall the bankruptcy, insolvency, or denial of liability by 
the insurance company exonerate the Contractor from liability. 

 

10. Neither the City nor the Contractor shall assign, transfer or encumber any rights, duties or 
interests accruing from this Contract without the written consent of the other. 

 
11. The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, equity, or 

otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of 
competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to 
exercising its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are 
cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any conflict 
between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this document, this provision shall 
control. 

 
12. At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly authorized audit 

representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, reserves 
the right to audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to the City 
under this Contract. In the event such an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments by 
the City, Contractor shall refund the City the full amount of such overpayments within 30 days 
of such audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to deduct such amounts owing 
the City from any payments due Contractor. 

 
13. All funds for payment by the City under this contract are subject to the availability of an annual 

appropriation for this purpose by the City. In the event of non-appropriation of funds by the City 
Council of the City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the contract, the City 
will terminate the contract, without termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the 
then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for the then-current year for the goods 
or services covered by this contract is spent, whichever event occurs first. If at any time funds 
are not appropriated for the continuance of this contract, cancellation shall be accepted by the 
Seller on 30 days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the 
City shall not be obligated under this contract beyond the date of termination. 

 
14. The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without 

written consent from the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management. Should consent be 
given, the Contractor shall insure the Subcontractor or shall provide proof on insurance from the 
Subcontractor that complies with all contract Insurance requirements. 

 
15. Contractor acknowledges by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, fully 

understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the descriptive 
material contained herein and any additional associated documents and Amendments. The City 
disclaims any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor unless agreed upon in writing by 
the parties. In the event of conflict between these terms and conditions and any terms and 
conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions provided herein shall prevail. 
The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms agreed upon by the parties, and any 
prior conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 

 
16. The Contractor (i) does not engage in business with Iran, Sudan or any foreign terrorist 

organization and (ii) it is not listed by the Texas Comptroller under Section 2252.153, Texas 
Government Code, as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or services 
to a foreign terrorist organization. As used in the immediately preceding sentence, “foreign 



terrorist organization” shall have the meaning given such term in Section 2252.151, Texas 
Government Code. 

17. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code, may apply to this 
contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if the 
contractor or vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that 
subchapter. 

To the extent Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code applies to this agreement, Contractor 
agrees to: (1) preserve all contracting information related to the contact as provided by the 
records retention requirements applicable to the governmental body for the duration of the 
contract; (2) promptly provide to the governmental body any contracting information related to 
the contract that is in the custody or possession of the entity on request of the governmental body; 
and (3) on completion of the contract, either: (A) provide at no cost to the governmental body all 
contracting information related to the contract that is in the custody or possession of the entity; or 
(B) preserve the contracting information related to the contract as provided by the records 
retention requirements applicable to the governmental body. 

 
18. Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, a) This section applies only to a 

contract that: (1) is between a governmental entity and a company with 10 or more full-time 
employees; and (2) has a value of $100,000 or more that is to be paid wholly or partly from 
public funds of the governmental entity. (b) A governmental entity may not enter into a contract 
with a company for goods or services unless the contract contains a written verification from the 
company that it: (1) does not boycott Israel; and (2) will not boycott Israel during the term of the 
contract. 

 
19. By entering into this Agreement, Contractor verifies that: (1) it does not, and will not for the 

duration of the contract, have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against 
a firearm entity or firearm trade association or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 
of the Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract. 

If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a 
value of at least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code 
Chapter 2274, it does not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against 
a firearm entity or firearm trade association; and will not discriminate during the term of the 
contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade association. 

Contractor represents and warrants that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration of the 
contract, boycott energy companies or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 of the 
Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract. 

If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a 
value of at least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code 
Chapter 2274, it does not boycott energy companies; and will not boycott energy companies 
during the term of the Agreement. This verification is not required for an agreement where a 
governmental entity determines that these requirements are inconsistent with the governmental 
entity’s constitutional or statutory duties related to the issuance, incurrence, or management of 
debt obligations or the deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment of funds. 

 
20. The Contractor shall retain all information received from or concerning the City and the City's 

business in strictest confidence and shall not reveal such information to third parties without 
prior written consent of the City, unless otherwise required by law. 



21. The Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless the city of Lubbock and its elected officials, 
officers, agents, and employees from all suits, actions, losses, damages, claims, or liability of 
any kind, character, type, or description, including without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, all expenses of litigation, court costs, and attorney's fees, for injury or death to any 
person, or injury to any property, received or sustained by any person or persons or property, to 
the extent arising out of, related to or occasioned by, the negligent acts of the Contractor, its 
agents, employees, and/or subcontractors, related to the performance, operations or omissions 
under this agreement and/or the use or occupation of city owned property. The indemnity 
obligation provided herein shall survive the expiration or termination of this agreement. 

 
22. This Contract consists of the following documents set forth herein; Invitation to Bid No. 25- 

18526-KM, Specifications, and the Bid Form. 

 
 
 
 
 

-----INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK----- 





City of Lubbock, TX 

ITB 25-18526-KM 

Gravel for the North Overton Public Improvement District (PID) Right-of-Way 

Specifications 

Intent: 

The City of Lubbock is soliciting bids to secure an annual contract to supply gravel for the North Overton 

Public Improvement District right-of-way areas. Vendor shall provide with bid submittal any and all 

necessary information regarding this specification. The contract shall be for a term of one (1) year, with 

the option of four (4), one-year extensions. 

Delivery: 

The Vendor shall supply and deliver all required materials at the designated location upon request from 

the Agent within seven (7) business days of the order, unless an emergency has occurred. Product may 

be requested from one (1) load to multiple loads, per order, depending on project need, unless no product 

is needed during the contract term. Deliveries will be accepted Monday through Friday between the hours 

of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. Purchase of the Fine Jogging Track Mix #20/Trail Mix and Decomposed 

Granite less than 1 inch will be made one time (1) per year, unless the Agent specifies otherwise. Each 

product will be delivered and unloaded at 6313 Homestead Avenue, Suite B4, Lubbock, Texas 79424.  

Materials: 

1. 50 (+ or -) tons of Stabilized Fine Jogging Track Mix #20/Trail Mix to be delivered annually.

2. 50 (+ or -) tons of Stabilized Decomposed Granite less than 1 inch to be delivered annually.

Materials are to be quoted on a cost-plus basis; percentage of markup to be based on net cost to Vendor, 

allowing for full credit for trade and/or cash discounts to the City. On any single item in which the cost 

equals or exceeds $100.00, a copy of the supplier’s invoice – which must be dated and marked paid – 

shall be submitted as an attachment to the Vendor’s invoice. 





City of Lubbock, TX
ITB 25-18526-KM

Gravel for the North Overton Public Improvement District (PID) 
Right-of-Way

Bid Form

Location
Total Cost

# Items

Quantity
Required

(+/-) UOM

Delivery
Days
ARO

Unit
Price

Total
Cost

1

#1-1 Crushed limestone or granite gravel less 
than 1” in diameter that is mixed with a 
stabilizer

50 Ton 5 $85.00 $4,250.00 

#1-2 Stabilized Decomposed Granite less 
than 1 inch

50 Ton $7.00 $200.00 $10,000.00 

2
#2-1 Delivery cost for destination inside of 

City limits
1 Per Mile No Bid No Bid No Bid

West Texas Services, Inc. 
dbaTom's Tree Place

$14,250.00
Lubbock, TX











City of Lubbock, TX 
ITB 25-18526-KM 

Bid Tabulation Sheet

Location
Total Cost

# Items

Quantity
Required

(+/-) UOM

Delivery
Days
ARO

Unit
Price

Total
Cost

Delivery
Days
ARO

Unit
Price

Total
Cost

1

#1-1 Crushed limestone or granite gravel less 
than 1” in diameter that is mixed with a 
stabilizer

50 Ton No Bid No Bid No Bid 5 $85.00 $4,250.00 

#1-2 Stabilized Decomposed Granite less 
than 1 inch

50 Ton 7 $200.00 $10,000.00 $7.00 $200.00 $10,000.00 

2
#2-1 Delivery cost for destination inside of 

City limits
1 Per Mile 7 $2.00 $2.00 No Bid No Bid No Bid

SRH Landscapes LLC Tom's Tree Place

$10,002.00 $14,250.00
Lubbock, TX Lubbock, TX



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

ITB 25-18526-KM 

Gravel for the North Overton Public Improvement District (PID) 

Right-of-Way 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on December 22 & December 29, 2024. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on the State of Texas Electronic State Business Daily.  

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from December 23 to January 30, 2025. 

40 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 

25 vendors were notified separately.  

2 vendors submitted bids. 

 



 AI# 13188 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 16. 
02/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Information Technology: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor
to execute Contract 18465, with US Digital Designs by Honeywell, for the Zetron
Fire Station Alerting System for Lubbock Fire Rescue.

Item Summary
The City issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) for modernized replacement of the
current Zetron Fire Paging System for Lubbock Fire Rescue. This system has been in
use for approximately 18-20 years and needs to be replaced.

In response to RFP 25-18465-LV, three vendors submitted proposals.

The Evaluation Committee used the following criteria in determining the scores of 3
vendors who responded: Experience and Key Project Staff - 30 points, Project
Approach - 50 points, and Cost of Proposal - 20 points, and arrived at the following
scores. 
                                                                         

Contractor Points

US Digital Designs by Honeywell, Tempe, Arizona  91.00
PURVIS Systems, Middletown, Rhode Island  54.33
Bryx, Rochester, New York  37.67

      
The Evaluation Committee recommends award of Contract 18465 to the highest
ranked proposal, US Digital Designs by Honeywell, of Tempe, Arizona, for
$731,236.18.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 18465 for $731,236.18, is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92648 -
Zetron Fire Paging Replacement.



Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager
Jennifer Frescaz, Chief Information Officer

Attachments
Resolution - Fire Station Alerting System Contract 18465 
Contract 18465 - Fire Station Alerting System 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 
RFP 25-18465-LV Project Summary 















































































































































City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project

February 13, 2025

Capital Project Number: 92648
Capital Project Name: Zetron Fire Paging Replacement -  FY 19-20

Budget
Encumbered/Expended

  Gannett Texas/New Mexico Local - advertising  $                           238

 $            238

Agenda Item February 25, 2025
  US Digital Designs by Honeywell                        731,236

Encumbered/Expended To Date                        731,474

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Zetron Fire Paging Replacement                          68,526

Remaining Appropriation                          68,526

Total Appropriation  $                    800,000





 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

 
RFP 25-18465-LV  

Fire Station Alerting System 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on December 1 & December 8, 2024. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on the State of Texas Electronic State Business Daily.  

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from November 29, 2024 to January 7, 2025. 

9 individuals attended the pre-proposal meeting. 

26 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 

3 vendors were notified separately.  

3 vendors submitted proposal(s). 

 



 AI# 13124 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 17. 
02/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Consider Ordinance No.
2025-O0027, for Zone Case 3515, a request of Lubbock Habitat for Humanity, for a
zone change from Medium Density Residential District (MDR) to Low Density
Single-Family District (SF-2), at 1719, 1721, 1723, and 1725 21st Street, located
south of 21st Street and east of Avenue S, McCrummen’s Second Addition, Block 9,
Lots 10, 11, 12, and 13.

Item Summary
On February 11, 2025, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance
unanimously.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department
Staff Report attached hereto. As noted in the report, staff has no objection to the
request. The Planning and Zoning Commission heard this case on January 23, 2025,
and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous vote of 8-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 3515 
Staff Report 3515 
Documentation 3515 









Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3515 
City Council Meeting February 11, 2025 

Applicant Lubbock Habitat for Humanity 

Property Owner Lubbock Habitat for Humanity 

Council District 1 

Prior Board or Council Action 

• February 8, 1921, Ordinance No. 197: The subject properties were annexed into city limits.

• March 13, 1941, Ordinance No. 661: The subject properties were zoned Two-Family District (B).

• May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject properties were rezoned

from Two-Family District (R-2) to Medium Density Residential District (MDR), with the adoption of the

Unified Development Code.

• January 23, 2025, Zone Case 3515: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a

request for a zone change from MDR to Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) by a vote of 8-0-0.

Notification Summary 

• Notifications Sent: 73

• Received In Favor: 3

• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 

The subject properties were platted on April 15, 1909 as McCrummen’s Second Addition, Block 9, Lots 10, 11, 12 

and 13. Our earliest records show existing houses on each lot in 1947. By 2002 all structures were demolished 

and replaced by a parking lot.  

Adjacent Property Development  

The surrounding properties are zoned MDR to the west, south, and east, with Heavy Commercial District (HC) 

to the north. There is a self-storage facility to the north, and homes to the west, south, and east.  

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject properties are addressed as 1719, 1721, 1723, and 1725 21st Street, located south of 21st Street and 

east of Avenue S, McCrummen’s Second Addition, Block 9, Lots 10, 11, 12, and 13. The applicant is requesting a 

zone change from MDR to Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2).  

Current zoning: Medium Density Residential District (MDR) 

Requested zoning: Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the existing Medium Density Residential District (MDR) is “to provide for a village neighborhood 

environment of smaller-sized lots, to include dwellings such as duplexes, townhouses, and multiplexes.” 

The intent of the Low Density Single-Family (SF-2) District is to provide for two types of residential subdivisions: 

A. Conventional. Smaller to moderately-sized lots for dwellings on public utilities. Any open space is located 

on private lots. 



Page 2 of 2 

B. Cluster. Clustering of smaller-sized lots for dwellings with an increased percentage of common open 

space compared to cluster developments in the SF-1 district to maintain the intended character of the 

district while providing for buffering between lower and higher density adjacent neighborhoods, as well 

as for recreational amenities and resource protection. 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts  

The location is along 21st Street and Avenue S which are designated as Local Streets by the Master Thoroughfare 

Plan, 2018. Local Streets provide access to smaller, destination oriented areas, such as neighborhoods, 

subdivisions or local business districts. 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development.  

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for Low Density Residential land uses. The request conforms to 

this designation and would be appropriate, considering the existing adjacent zoning districts and land uses. 

Therefore, this request is in complete conformance with the Comprehensive Plan principles. 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance. 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed use.

Conclusion 

Staff has no objection to the request. 

Attachments 

A.  Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map

C.   Notification Map
D.  Aerial Map

E. Zoning Map

F.  Future Land Use Map

G.  Photos

H.  Application and Supporting Documentation

I.    Notification Responses

Staff Contacts 

Shane Spencer   

Planner  

Planning Department 

806-775-2103  

sspencer@mylubbock.us  

Kristen Sager 

Director of Planning 

Planning Department 

806-775-2109 

ksager@mylubbock.us 

mailto:sspencer@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3515 

 

Allowable Uses: Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from Avenue S and 21st Street. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Avenue S, Local 
Street 

R.O.W. 30 feet, 2 lane, 
undivided, paved. 

R.O.W. 30 feet, 2 lane, 
undivided, paved. 

21st Street, Local 
Street 

R.O.W. 30 feet, 2 lane, 
undivided, paved. 

R.O.W. 30 feet, 2 lane, 
undivided, paved. 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 1 

3.1  Zone Case 3515: Lubbock Habitat for Humanity, request for a zone change from Medium Density 

Residential District (MDR) to Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2), at: 

• 1719, 1721, 1723, and 1725 21st Street, located south of 21st Street and east of Avenue S, 

McCrummen’s Second Addition, Block 9, Lots 10, 11, 12, and 13. 

 

 PLANNER SHANE SPENCER gave a presentation and answered questions from the Commission. Staff has no 

objection to the request. 

APPLICANT CAMERON MADISON, with JDMA Architects, 2720 82nd Street, representing Habitat for Humanity, 

gave comments about the request and answered questions from the Commission. 

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3515, a motion was made by TANNER NOBLE and seconded by TERRI MORRIS to 
approve the request as presented. The Commission voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 
The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 
 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-1827












3515 

 

 

View south. Subject property. 

 

  

View north.  

View east.  

 

View west. 





















 AI# 13125 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 18. 
02/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 2): Consider Ordinance No.
2025-O0028, for Zone Case 1635-B, a request of Mr. T’s Auto Sales, LLC, for a
zone change from Medium Density Residential District (MDR) to Heavy
Commercial District (HC), at 4412 Avenue Q, located north of 45th Street and west
of Avenue Q, Syfrett Addition, Block 5, Lot 2A.

Item Summary
On February 11, 2025, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance
unanimously.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department
Staff Report attached hereto. As noted in the report, staff has no objection to the
request. The Planning and Zoning Commission heard this case on January 23, 2025,
and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous vote of 8-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 1635-B 
Staff Report 1635-B 
Documentation 1635-B 







Page 1 of 2 
 

 
Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 
 

Staff Report  Zone Case 1635-B 
City Council Meeting February 11, 2025 

 
Applicant   Mr T’s Auto Sales, LLC  
 
Property Owner  Mr T’s Auto Sales, LLC  
 
Council District   2 
 
Prior Board or Council Action 

• December 15, 1949, Ordinance No. 948: The subject property was annexed into city limits and zoned 
Single-Family District (R-1). 

• May 22, 1952, Zone Case 0355, Ordinance No.1216: The subject property was rezoned from R-1 to Two-
Family District (R-2).  

• May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned 
from R-2 to Medium Density Residential District (MDR) with the adoption of the Unified Development 
Code. 

• January 23, 2025, Zone Case 1635-B: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 
zone change from MDR to HC by a vote of 8-0-0. 
 

 
Notification Summary   

• Notifications Sent: 47 
• Received In Favor: 1 
• Received In Opposition: 2 

 
Site Conditions and History 
The subject property is addressed as 4412 Avenue Q. The property was platted as Syfrett Addition, Block 5, Lot 
2A on October 17, 1959 and is currently developed with a storage building. 
 
Adjacent Property Development  
The properties to the west and north are developed with duplexes and single-family homes, while a church is 
located to the south, all zoned as MDR. To the east, the area is developed with a mix of commercial properties 
zoned as Heavy Commercial District (HC). 
 
Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 4412 Avenue Q, located north of 45th Street and west of Avenue Q. The 
applicant requests a zone change from Medium Density Residential District (MDR) to Heavy Commercial District 
(HC). 
 
Current zoning:  Medium Density Residential District (MDR) 
 
Requested zoning:  Heavy Commercial District (HC) 
 
Intent Statements 
The purpose of the current MDR zoning is “to provide for a village neighborhood environment of smaller-sized 
lots, to include dwellings such as duplexes, townhouses, and multiplexes.”  
 



Page 2 of 2 

The intent of the requested HC zoning is “to provide for development of heavy vehicle repair, wholesale trade, 
and warehousing and freight movement uses that typically are characterized by outside storage of materials or 
merchandise.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The property is located north of 45th Street, which is designated as a local street and west of Avenue Q which is 
designated as a Principal Arterial by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Local Streets typically provide access 
to smaller, destination oriented areas. Principal Arterials are continuous routes whose function is to serve high 
volume needs of local and regional traffic.  

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 
existing development.  

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates this area for Commercial land uses. The proposed zone change to HC is in 
conformance with this designation and is appropriate at this location, being adjacent to existing HC zoning. 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and will be appropriate at the proposed 
location. 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed zoning of HC district, as it would not change the characteristics of the 
existing neighborhood. 

Conclusion 
Staff has no objection to the request. 

Attachments 
A. Case Information 
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 
C. Notification Map 
D. Aerial Map 
E. Zoning Map 
F. Future Land Use Map 
G. Photos 
H. Application and Supporting Documentation 
I. Notification Responses 

Staff Contacts 
Cassie Bermea  
Planner  
Planning Department  
806-775-2096  
cassiebermea@mylubbock.us 

Kristen Sager 
Director of Planning 
Planning Department 
806-775-2109 
ksager@mylubbock.us 

mailto:cassiebermea@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 1635-B 

 

Allowable Uses:   Heavy Commercial District (HC)   

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from 45th Street and Avenue Q. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

45th Street, 
Local Street,  

Complete 

R.O.W. 48 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 48 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

Avenue Q, 
Principal Arterial, 

Complete 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-lane, 
undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.  

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 2 

3.2     Zone Case 1635-B: Mr. T’s Auto Sales, LLC, request for a zone change from Medium Density Residential 

District (MDR) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at: 

• 4412 Avenue Q, located north of 45th Street and west of Avenue Q, Syfrett Addition, Block 5, 

Lot 2A. 

PLANNER CASSIE BERMEA gave a presentation and answered questions from the Commission. Staff has no 

objection to the request. 

APPLICANT TODD POOL, 4412 Avenue Q, gave comments about the request and answered questions from the 

Commission. 

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition. 

In the matter of Zone Case 1635-B, a motion was made BRANDON HARDAWAY and seconded by TAREK REDWAN 
to approve the request as presented. The Commission voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 
The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 
 

 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-1620












1635-B

East View

North View.—Subject Property 

South View

West View.























 AI# 13126 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 19. 
02/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Consider Ordinance No.
2025-O0029, for Zone Case 2538-OO, a request of Mountain Top Engineering for
Yolanda Vargas, for a zone change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2)
to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at 2210 Research Boulevard, located south of
19th Street and west of Research Boulevard, on approximately 4.11 acres of
unplatted land out of Block D-6, Section 5.

Item Summary
On February 11, 2025, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance
unanimously.  

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department
Staff Report attached hereto. As noted in the report, staff has no objection to the
request. The Planning and Zoning Commission heard this case on January 23, 2025,
and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous vote of 8-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 2538-OO 
Staff Report 2538-OO 
Documentation 2538-OO 















Page 1 of 2 
 

 
Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 
 

Staff Report  Zone Case 2538-OO 
City Council Meeting February 11, 2025 

 
Applicant   Mountain Top Engineering  

Property Owner  Yolanda Vargas 
 
Council District   6 
 
Prior Board or Council Action 

• September 27, 1984, Ordinance No. 8660: The subject property was annexed into city limits and zoned 
Transition District (T). 

• October 10, 1985, Zone Case 2538, Ordinance No.8827: The subject properties were rezoned from T to 
Single-Family District (R-1).  

• May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned 
from R-1 to Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) with the adoption of the Unified Development Code. 

• January 23, 2025, Zone Case 2538-OO: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 
zone change from SF-2 to Heavy Commercial District (HC) by a vote of 8-0-0. 
 

Notification Summary   
• Notifications Sent: 22 
• Received In Favor: 0 
• Received In Opposition: 0 

 
Site Conditions and History 
The subject property is addressed as 2210 Research Boulevard and consists of approximately 4.11 acres of 
undeveloped, unplatted land out of Block D-6, Section 5.  
 
Adjacent Property Development  
The property to the north is developed as commercial warehousing, zoned Light Industrial District (LI). The 
properties to the east are developed as a mobile home park, zoned SF-2. The property to the south is developed 
with the Western Railway, zoned SF-2. The properties to the west are undeveloped, outside city limits.  
 
Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 2210 Research Boulevard, located south of 19th Street and west of Research 
Boulevard, on approximately 4.11 acres of unplatted land out of Block D-6, Section 5. The applicant requests a 
zone change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Heavy Commercial District (HC). 
 
Current zoning:  Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) 
 
Requested zoning:  Heavy Commercial District (HC) 
 
Intent Statements 
The purpose of the current SF-2 zoning district is to provide for two types of residential subdivisions: 
 

A.  Conventional. Smaller to moderately-sized lots for dwellings on public utilities. Any open space is located 
on private lots.     

B.  Cluster. Clustering of smaller-sized lots for dwellings with an increased percentage of common open 
space compared to cluster developments in the SF-1 district to maintain the intended character of the 



Page 2 of 2 
 

district while providing for buffering between lower and higher density adjacent neighborhoods, as well 
as for recreational amenities and resource protection. 

 
The intent of the requested HC zoning is “to provide for development of heavy vehicle repair, wholesale trade, 
and warehousing and freight movement uses that typically are characterized by outside storage of materials or 
merchandise. The district should be located away from residential areas or, if unavoidable, should be heavily 
buffered.” 
 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The property is located south of 19th Street, which is designated as a Principal Arterial and west of Research 
Boulevard, which is designated as a Future Principal Arterial (Modified) by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. 
Principal Arterials (Modified) provide connectivity across the transportation network serving high volume needs 
of local and regional traffic.  
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 
existing development.  
 
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates this area for Mixed Use development. While this request does not conform 
to this designation, it would be appropriate along the Western Railway. 
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and will be appropriate at the proposed 
location. 
 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed district, as it would not change the characteristics of the existing 
neighborhood. 
 
Conclusion 
Staff has no objection to the request. 
 
Attachments 
A. Case Information 
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 
C. Aerial Map 
D. Zoning Map 
E. Future Land Use Map 
F. Photos 
G. Application and Supporting Documentation 
 
Staff Contacts 
Victoria Lewelling   Kristen Sager 
Planner     Director of Planning 
Planning Department   Planning Department 
806-775-2021    806-775-2109 
vlewelling@mylubbock.us  ksager@mylubbock.us 

mailto:vlewelling@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 2538-OO 

 

Allowable Uses:   Heavy Commercial District (HC)   

Transportation:  The proposed development has an access point from Research Boulevard. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Research Boulevard, 
Future Principal 

Arterial (Modified),  
Future 

R.O.W. 80 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, five-lane, 
undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.  

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

3.3     Zone Case 2538-OO: Mountain Top Engineering for Yolanda Vargas, request for a zone change from Low 
Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at: 

• 2210 Research Boulevard, located south of 19th Street and west of Research Boulevard, on 

approximately 4.11 acres of unplatted land out of Block D-6, Section 5. 

 

PLANNER VICTORIA LEWELLING gave a presentation and answered questions from the Commission. Staff has no 

objection to the request. 

APPLICANT ADAM NIXON, with Mountain Top Engineering, 604 County Road 7200, discussed the request and 

answered questions from the Commission. 

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition. 
 
In the matter of Zone Case 2538-OO, a motion was made by BRANDON HARDAWAY and seconded by TERRI 
MORRIS to approve the request as presented. The Commission voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve 
the motion. The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 
 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-1620










2538-OO 

 

 

View west. Subject property. View east.  

View north.  View south. 





ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION EXHIBIT



 AI# 13223 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 1. 
02/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Board Appointments - City Secretary: Declare three appointments by the Mayor to
the Lubbock Housing Authority Board of Commissioners: Toby Cecil, Vecelia
Mann, Jerry Ramirez.

Item Summary
Per Local Government Code, Section 392.031, the presiding officer of the governing
body of a municipality shall appoint persons to serve as commissioners of the
housing authority. An appointed commissioner of the housing authority may not be
an officer or employee of the municipality. The Mayor is appointing Toby Cecil,
Vecelia Mann, and Jerry Ramirez.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



 AI# 13225 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 2. 
02/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution accepting the City of Lubbock Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report, for Fiscal Year that ended September 30, 2024.

Item Summary
Each year, the Accounting Department prepares an  Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report (ACFR) designed to provide the City Council, citizens,
representatives of financial institutions, and others, with detailed information
concerning the financial condition and performance of the City of Lubbock.

As a significant component of the preparation of the ACFR, an independent audit of
the City’s general-purpose financial statements and notes is completed.  The final
audit opinion is included within the ACFR which has been provided separately.

The Audit Committee accepted the ACFR at their meeting on February 5, 2025.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Joe Jimenez, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
ACFR Resolution 24 





 AI# 13210 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 3. 
02/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 2): Consider a request for Zone Case 437-C, a
request of Michael Session for Raymond and Gaynell Lemon, for a zone change from
Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Low Density Single-Family District
(SF-2) Specific Use for a Manufactured Home Subdivision, at 2909 East Broadway,
located west of David Avenue and north of East Broadway, Flake Addition, Block 7,
Lot 8, and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department
Staff Report attached hereto. As noted in the report, staff has no objection to the
request. The Planning and Zoning Commission heard this case on February 6, 2025,
and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous vote of 8-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 437-C 
Staff Report 437-C 
Documentation 437-C 









Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 437-C 
City Council Meeting February 25, 2025 

Applicant Michael Session 

Property Owner Raymond and Gaynell Lemon 

Council District 2 

Prior Board or Council Action 

• April 9, 1953, Ordinance No. 1339: The subject property was annexed into city limits.

• November 24, 1953, Zone Case 437, Ordinance No. 1486: The subject property was zoned Single-Family

District (R-1).

• May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned

from R-1 to Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2), with the adoption of the Unified Development Code.

• February 6, 2025, Zone Case 437-C: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a

request for a zone change from SF-2 to SF-2 Specific Use for a Mobile Home Subdivision by a vote of 8-0-

0.

Notification Summary 

• Notifications Sent: 39

• Received In Favor: 1
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property was platted on February 6, 1945 as Flake Addition, Block 7, Lot 8. A house was constructed 

on the property in 1945, and was demolished within the last year.   

Adjacent Property Development  

The surrounding properties are zoned SF-2, and are developed with homes and vacant lots to the north, east and 

west, with agricultural land to the south.  

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is addressed as 2909 East Broadway, located west of David Avenue and north of East 

Broadway, Flake Addition, Block 7, Lot 8. The applicant is requesting a zone change from Low Density Single-

Family District (SF-2) to Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) Specific Use for a Manufactured Home Subdivision. 

Current zoning: Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) 

Requested specific use: Manufactured Home Subdivision 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the existing Low Density Single-Family (SF-2) District is to “provide for two types of residential 

subdivisions: 

A. Conventional. Smaller to moderately-sized lots for dwellings on public utilities. Any open space is located 

on private lots. 

B. Cluster. Clustering of smaller-sized lots for dwellings with an increased percentage of common open 

space compared to cluster developments in the SF-1 district to maintain the intended character of the 



Page 2 of 2 

district while providing for buffering between lower and higher density adjacent neighborhoods, as well 

as for recreational amenities and resource protection.” 

The intent of the proposed Specific Use designation is to “ensure that a use that is generally deemed incompatible 

with permitted uses in a given zoning district can be considered for approval with certain conditions placed on the 

use.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts  

The location is along East Broadway which is designated as a collector by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. 

Collectors provide access and movement within residential, commercial and industrial areas.  

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed specific use is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 

development.  

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed specific use is in conformance with the zoning ordinance. 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The subject property is suitable for the proposed specific use. 

Conclusion 

Staff has no objection to the request. 

Attachments 

A.  Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map  

C.   Notification Map
D.  Aerial Map 

E. Zoning Map 

F.  Photos 

G.  Application and Supporting Documentation 

H.   Response Letters

Staff Contacts 

Shane Spencer   

Planner  

Planning Department 

806-775-2103  

sspencer@mylubbock.us  

Kristen Sager 

Director of Planning 

Planning Department 

806-775-2109 

ksager@mylubbock.us 

mailto:sspencer@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 437-C 

 

Allowable Uses: Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) with a Specific Use for a Manufactured 

Home Subdivision 

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from East Broadway. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Broadway, Collector, 
Partial 

R.O.W. 30 feet, 2 lane, 
undivided, paved. 

R.O.W. 46 feet, 4 lane, 
undivided, paved. 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 2 

3.1  Zone Case 437-C: Michael Session for Raymond and Gaynell Lemon, request for a zone change 

from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) 

Specific Use for a Manufactured Home Subdivision, at: 

 2909 East Broadway, located west of David Avenue and north of East Broadway, Flake 

Addition, Block 7, Lot 8. 

  PLANNER SHANE SPENCER gave a presentation and answered questions from the Commission. Staff has no 

objection to the request. 

APPLICANT MICHAEL SESSIONS, 5609 Jarvis Street, Unit B, gave comments about the request and answered 

questions from the Commission. 

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition. 

In the matter of Zone Case 437-C, a motion was made by TANNER NOBLE and seconded by TAREK REDWAN to 
approve the request as presented. The Commission voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 
The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 
 











437-C 

 

 

View north. Subject property. 

 

  

View south.  

View east.  

 

View west. 















 AI# 13211 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 4. 
02/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 2): Consider a request for Zone Case 3516, a
request of Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for Elliott Arroyo Seco, LTD., for a zone
change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Heavy Commercial
District (HC), at 2415 114th Street, located east of University and south of
114th Street, on 10 acres of unplatted land out of Block E, Section 15, and consider
an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department
Staff Report attached hereto. As noted in the report, staff has no objection to the
request. The Planning and Zoning Commission heard this case on February 6, 2025,
and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous vote of 8-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 3516 
Staff Report 3516 
Documentation 3516 







 

 

EXHIBIT "A" 

 

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION of an approximate 10.0 acre tract, being that same tract described under 
County Clerk File Number 2023005817 of the Official Public Records of Lubbock County, Texas, located in the 
Northwest Quarter of Section 15, Block E, G.C. & S.F. Railroad Company Survey, Lubbock County, Texas, and being 
further described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a point for the Northwest corner of this tract, same being the Northwest corner of Section 15, Block E, 
G.C. & S.F. Railroad Company Survey, Lubbock County, Texas; 
 
THENCE S. 88°12'15" E., along the North line of said Section 15, an approximate distance of 660.0 feet to a point for 
the Northeast corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE S. 01°46'33" W. an approximate distance of 660.1 feet to a point for the Southeast corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE N. 88°13'07" W. an approximate distance of 660.0 feet to a point in the West line of said Section 15, for the 
Southwest corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE N. 01°46'17" E., along the West line of said Section 15, an approximate distance of 660.3 feet to the Point of 
Beginning. 
 
PREPARED FOR ZONE CHANGE PURPOSES. DOES NOT REPRESENT AN ACTUAL SURVEY. 
 
Prepared for Elliott Arroyo Seco, LTD. 
December 2, 2024 



Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report Zone Case 3516 
City Council Meeting February 25, 2025 
 

Applicant Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc.  
 

Property Owners Elliott Arroyo Seco, LTD 
 

Council District 2 

 
Prior Board or Council Action 

• August 23, 1979, Ordinance No. 007900: The subject property was annexed into city limits and zoned 
Transition District (T).  

• May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned 
from T to Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) with the adoption of the Unified Development Code. 

• February 6, 2025, Zone Case 3516: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone 
change from SF-2 to Heavy Commercial District (HC) by a vote of 8-0-0. 

 
Notification Summary 

• Notifications Sent: 44 

• Received In Favor: 0 

• Received In Opposition: 1 

 
Site Conditions and History 

The subject property consists of 10 acres of unplatted land out of Block E, Section 15. Currently, the property is 
vacant.  

 
Adjacent Property Development 

The property is adjacent to the city limits to the south and east. Properties to the north are zoned Heavy 

Commercial District (HC) and will be developed with a new Tractor Supply and Circle K. To the west is a 

residence zoned Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) and a commercial business zoned Auto-Urban 

Commercial District (AC).   

 

Item Summary 

The subject property is addressed as 2415 114th Street, located east of University Avenue and south of 114th Street, 

on 10 acres of unplatted land out of Block E, Section 15. The applicant is requesting a zone change from Low 

Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Heavy Commercial District (HC).  

 

 
Current zoning: Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2)  
 
Requested Zoning: Heavy Commercial District (HC) 
 

 
Purpose Statements 

The purpose of the Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) is to provide for two types of residential subdivisions: 

 

A. Conventional. Smaller to moderately-sized lots for dwellings on public utilities. Any open space is located 

on private lots. 

 

B. Cluster. Clustering of smaller-sized lots for dwellings with an increased percentage of common open space 
compared to cluster developments in the SF-1 district to maintain the intended character of the district 



Page 2 of 2 
 

while providing for buffering between lower and higher density adjacent neighborhoods, as well as for 
recreational amenities and resources protection.  

 

 
The Purpose of the Heavy Commercial District (HC) is to provide for development of heavy vehicle repair, wholesale 
trade, and warehousing and freight movement uses that typically are characterized by outside storage of materials 
or merchandise. The District should be located away from residential areas or, if unavoidable, should be heavily 
buffered.  
 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The subject property is located on University Avenue, which is designated as a Principal Arterial, and 114th Street, 
which is designated as a Minor Arterial, by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterial streets are continuous 
routes whose function is to serve high volume needs of local traffic and regional traffic.  

 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development. The property is adjacent to Heavy Commercial District (HC) and the city limits, minimizing 

the impact on residential properties in the area.   

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for Commercial land uses. The proposed zone change to HC is in 

conformance with this designation and is appropriate at this location. 

 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and will be appropriate at the proposed 

location.  

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed zone change, as it would not change the characteristics of the existing 
development. The property will need to be platted before further development can take place.  
 
Conclusion 
Staff has no objection to the request.  
 
Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 

C. Notification Map 

D. Aerial Map 

E. Zoning Map 

F. Future Land Use Map 

G. Photos 

H. Application and supporting documentation 

I. Response Letters 

 
 
Staff Contacts 

Gregory Hernandez Kristen Sager 

Planner Director of Planning  

Planning Department Planning Department 

806-775-3147 806-775-2109 

ghernandez@mylubbock.us ksager@mylubbock.us 

mailto:ghernandez@mylubbock.us
file:///C:/Users/150197/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/8F4X5W0N/ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3516 

 

Allowable Uses:   Heavy Commercial District (HC) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has point of access from 114th Street and University.    

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

114th Street,  
Minor Arterial,  

Incomplete 

R.O.W 90 feet, three-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W 100 feet, five-lane, 
undivided, paved 

University Avenue 
Principal Arterial 

Incomplete 

R.O.W 100 feet, three-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W 110 feet, seven-lane, 
undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.  

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 2 

3.2     Zone Case 3516: Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc., for Elliott Arroyo Seco, LTD., request for a zone 

change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at: 

 2415 114th Street, located east of University and south of 114th Street, on 10 acres of 

unplatted land out of Block E, Section 15.  

 

PLANNER GREG HERNANDEZ gave a presentation and answered questions from the Commission. Staff has no 

objection to the request. 

APPLICANT TERRY HOLEMAN, 1601 Avenue N, representing Hugo Reed and Associates, gave comments about 

the request and answered questions from the Commission. 

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3516, a motion was made DREW GRAY and seconded by TERRI MORRIS to approve 
the request as presented. The Commission voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. The case 
will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 
 













3516  

 

 

View east. Subject property. 

 

 

View north.  

View south.  

 

View west. 

















 AI# 13213 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 5. 
02/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 4): Consider a request for Zone Case 1794-K, a
request of AMD Engineering, LLC for Community Christian Church, for a zone
change from High Density Residential District (HDR) to Auto-Urban Commercial
District (AC), at 3417 96th Street, located north of 98th Street and west of Indiana
Avenue, on 1.16 acres out of Raintree Addition, Tract F-1, and consider an
ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department
Staff Report attached hereto. As noted in the report, staff has no objection to the
request. The Planning and Zoning Commission heard this case on February 6, 2025,
and recommended approval of the request by a vote of 7-1-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 1794-K 
Staff Report 1794-K 
Documentation 1794-K 







 

AMD ENGINEERING, LLC

 
DESCRIPTION FOR A ZONING CHANGE REQUEST IN 

SECTION 14, BLOCK E-2, 

LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS 
 

(Sheet 1 of 2, Sketch of tract attached as Sheet 2) 

 
METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION of a 1.16-acre tract of land located in Section 14, Block 

E-2, Lubbock County, Texas, prepared for Zone Change Purposes only and being further 

described as follows: 
 

BEGINNING at a point at the most northern Southeasterly corner of Tract F-1 of Raintree 

(CCFN: 2011007246) bears S 46° 49’ 32” W an approximate distance of 14.13 feet; 

  

THENCE N 88° 07’ 57” W an approximate distance of 158.00 feet; 

 

THENCE N 01° 47’ 01” E an approximate distance of 302.60 feet; 

 

THENCE S 88° 07’ 57” E an approximate distance of 153.02 feet; 

 

THENCE S 43° 10’ 26” E an approximate distance of 21.20 feet; 

 

THENCE S 01° 47’ 01” W an approximate distance of 277.62 feet to the Point of Beginning and 

containing approximately 1.16-acres. 

 

This description was prepared for the purposes of a zoning request and does not represent 

a survey made upon the ground.  

 

 

Prepared for: Community Christian Church 

  December 31, 2024 



ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION
EXHIBIT

A 1.16 ACRE TRACT OF LAND
LOCATED IN SECTION 14,

BLOCK E-2, LUBBOCK
COUNTY, TEXAS

150'0 75' 300'

SCALE: 1" = 150'

Accuracy - Efficiency - Integrity

CIVIL ENGINEERING
LAND SURVEYING

AMD Engineering, LLC
6515 68th Street, Suite 300
Lubbock, TX  79424

Phone: 806-771-5976
Fax: 806-771-7625

TBPE Reg. # F-9197

NOT TO SCALE
VICINITY MAP



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 
 

Staff Report  Zone Case 1794-K 
City Council Meeting February 25, 2025 

 
Applicant   AMD Engineering, LLC  

Property Owner  Community Christian Church 

 

Council District   4 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

• October 28, 1971, Ordinance No. 6201: The subject property was annexed into city limits and zoned Single-

Family District (R-1). 

• November 10, 1977, Zone Case 1794-E, Ordinance No. 7582: The subject property was rezoned from R-1 

to High-Density Apartment District (A-2).  

• May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned 

from A-2 to High Density Residential District (HDR) with the adoption of the Unified Development Code. 

• February 6, 2024, Zone Case 1794-K: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 

zone change from HDR to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) by a vote of 7-1-0. 

 

Notification Summary   

• Notifications Sent: 54 

• Received In Favor: 0 

• Received In Opposition: 11 (1 outside the notification boundary) 

 

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property is 3417 96th Street, platted as Raintree Addition, Tract F-1, on February 8, 2011. A church 

was developed on this property in 1991. 

 

Adjacent Property Development  

The property to the north is developed as townhouses, zoned Medium Density Residential District (MDR). The 

property to the east is a church, zoned High Density Residential District (HDR). The properties to the south are 

undeveloped land, zoned NC, and townhouses, zoned Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2). The properties to 

the west are townhouses, zoned MDR.  

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is addressed as 3417 96th Street, located south of 96th Street and west of Indiana Avenue, 

Raintree Addition, Tract F-1. The applicant requests a zone change from High Density Residential District (HDR) to 

Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC). 

 

Current zoning:  High Density Residential District (HDR) 

 

Requested zoning:  Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) 

 

Intent Statements 

The purpose of the current HDR zoning district is to provide for three subdivision types: 

 

A. Conventional. Single-family detached, cottage, or garden homes on public utilities with open space  

provided on private lots. 

B. Village. Mixed housing types, including townhouses, detached single-family garden homes, and low-  



Page 2 of 2 

 

to mid-rise apartments, located in a planned development or adjacent to a mixed-use district or 

center. Buildings are typically in close proximity to the street edge. The building mass, height, and 

scale transition to the neighboring land uses. 

C. Mixed-Use. Mid- to high-rise apartment development in a mixed-use district or center. The district  

consists of detached single-family garden homes, live-work buildings, and other vertically mixed-use 

buildings.  Urban open space may be used for plazas and squares.” 

 

The intent of the requested AC zoning is “to provide for a broad range of single-use and multi-tenant centers that 

vary in scale, and that provide for retail, service, and office uses typically with on-site surface parking.” 

 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The property is located south of 96th Street, which is designated as a Local Street and west of Indiana Avenue, 
which is designated as a Principal Arterial by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Principal Arterials provide 
connectivity across the transportation network serving high volume needs of local and regional traffic. Local 
Streets typically provide access to smaller, destination-oriented areas, such as neighborhoods, subdivision or local 
business districts.   
 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area.  

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for Commercial land uses and the requested zoning would be 

appropriate.  

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and will be appropriate at the proposed 

location. 

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed zoning and uses allowed within the AC district. 

 

Conclusion 

Staff has no objection to the request. 

 

Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 

C. Notification Map 

D. Aerial Map 

E. Zoning Map 

F. Future Land Use Map 

G. Photos 

H. Application and Supporting Documentation 

I. Notification Responses  

 

Staff Contacts 

Victoria Lewelling   Kristen Sager 

Planner     Director of Planning 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2021    806-775-2109 

vlewelling@mylubbock.us  ksager@mylubbock.us 

mailto:vlewelling@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 1794-K 

 

Allowable Uses:   Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from Indiana Avenue and 96th 

Street.    

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Indiana Avenue, 
Principal Arterial, 

Completed 

R.O.W 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved. 

R.O.W 110 feet, seven-lane, 
undivided, paved. 

96th Street,  
Local Street, 
Completed 

R.O.W. 60 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved.  

R.O.W. 60 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved. 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.  

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 4 

3.4      Zone Case 1794-K:  AMD Engineering, LLC for Community Christian Church, request for a zone 

change from High Density Residential District (HDR) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at: 

 3417 96th Street, located north of 98th Street and west of Indiana Avenue, on 1.16 acres 

out of Raintree Addition, Tract F-1. 

 

PLANNER VICTORIA LEWELLING gave a presentation and answered questions from the Commission. Staff has no 

objection to the request. 

APPLICANT WILL STEVENS, 3515 68th Street, with AMD Engineering, discussed the proposed site plan for the 

property and answered questions from the Commission. 

IN OPPOSITION MARCUS HURD, 3406 96th Street, discussed the beautiful and peaceful neighborhood and 

stated he is opposed to a commercial use in the proposed location. The buffer fence will be an eye sore and will 

only worsen a few years after construction. He is concerned about his property value decreasing. 



Zone Case 1794-K 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

IN OPPOSITION BILLIE AND DAVID STELZER, 3414 96th Street, own the duplex north of the property. This will 

decrease their property value. They are concerned about the noise level. This will be disruptive to the 

neighborhood and will bring traffic.  

IN OPPOSITION RACHAEL MEYERS, 9609 Ithaca Avenue, remarked this is a retirement community. As she works 

from home and homeschools her five kids, a commercial carwash would be an incredible distraction to their 

residential life.  

IN FAVOR ANTHONY ARELLANO, 1509 Yorkshire Avenue, Wolfforth, as the Director of Operations for Mighty 

Wash, responded to the spoken concerns. He noted that property values will not decrease, and gave an example 

of another neighborhood next to a car wash that has increased in value. They have power locks on their systems 

which suppress the sound that comes out of the tunnel. It is amplified in the vehicle in the tunnel, but a noise 

study was conducted and the data backs up the claim that noise pollution will not be an issue. Mr. Arellano also 

added that traffic on Indiana isn’t going to be increased, but rather the layout is designed to pull the traffic from 

Indiana. 

In the matter of Zone Case 1794-K, a motion was made by TAREK REDWAN and seconded by TERRI MORRIS to 
approve the request as presented. The Commission voted 7 (in favor) to 1 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 
The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 
 
TERRI MORRIS cast the vote in opposition. 

 

 













1794-K 

 

 

View west. Subject property. View east.  

View north.  View south. 



01/02/2025

01/02/2025









From: CityPlanning 

Sent: Monday, February 3, 2025 2:54 PM 

To: Victoria Lewelling 

Subject: FW: Regarding Zone Case 1794-K 

 
 

 

From: Rachel Myers <rach.myers01@gmail.com>  

Sent: Monday, February 3, 2025 2:38 PM 

To: CityPlanning <cityplanning@mylubbock.us> 

Subject: Regarding Zone Case 1794-K 

 

WARNING: This message was sent from outside the City of Lubbock's email system. 

It could contain harmful attachments or links to harmful web pages. 

 

 
Good afternoon,  

 

I am writing in today regarding the following request that is being put before you for: District 4 

3.4 Zone Case 1794-K: AMD Engineering, LLC for Community Christian Church, request for a 

zone change from High Density Residential District (HDR) to Auto-Urban Commercial District 

(AC), at: • 3417 96th Street, located north of 98th Street and west of Indiana Avenue, on 1.16 

acres out of Raintree Addition, Tract F-1. 

 

Please do not approve this request for rezoning. My home address is 9609 Ithaca Avenue, 

Lubbock, TX 79423. 

 

We only have the little community church between our house and Indiana Avenue. The church 

causes little to no traffic during the weekdays which is very important to my family. I work from 

home and the additional noise and traffic would be detrimental. I also do not like the prospect of 

more traffic being so close to my house when my kids are home and playing outside in the 

evenings. Car wash facilities often have very loud music playing so the employees can enjoy 

their time while working - which I think is great, but I don't want that in my backyard. Our area 

is also filled with retirees who value their peace and quiet - who are home for much of the day as 

well.  

 

Additionally, I firmly believe that rezoning for an auto commercial property so close to our 

residential area will have a strong negative impact upon our home values. This is not currently an 

issue for us because, as I noted above, we only have the little church right next to us. Everything 

else surrounding is residential until you get to the south facing road on 98th Street.  

 

Lastly, I implore you to please consider that there are so many other locations in which a car 

wash can be built. Lubbock is so vast and there is so much wonderful opportunity for growth. 



Please do not approve this request to rezone because it will have an immediately negative impact 

on those of us who live in Raintree - especially families like mine that would be right next to the 

potential facility. I am pro-growth, but not at the sacrifice of neighborhood peace, safety and 

value.  

 

Thank you for your time and consideration.  

 

Sincerely, 

Rachel Myers 

806-252-8855 

 

 



From: CityPlanning 

Sent: Tuesday, February 4, 2025 7:57 AM 

To: Victoria Lewelling 

Subject: FW: Re-Zoning Case #1794-K 

Attachments: doc01838320250203165917.pdf 

 
 

 

From: Donna Sue Clements <donnasue@remaxlubbock.com>  

Sent: Monday, February 3, 2025 9:54 PM 

To: CityPlanning <cityplanning@mylubbock.us> 

Subject: Re-Zoning Case #1794-K 

 

WARNING: This message was sent from outside the City of Lubbock's email system. 

It could contain harmful attachments or links to harmful web pages. 

 

 
Hello Lubbock City Planning Folks! 

 

Please see the attached document opposing the Re-Zoning request #1794-K. 

 

Our property is 3426 96th Street Lubbock TX 79423. 

 

The scan of the document cut off some of the verbiage. It should read like this: 

 

We are strongly opposed to this re-zoning request due to the noise generated by a car wash. We 

are advocating on behalf of our current residents and their quality of neighborhood in the 

Raintree area. Please consider the effect this re-zoning will have on affordable housing 

in our city. Businesses of this type who generate substantial noise should be located in newer 

construction areas so home owners who purchase a property near such businesses know and are 

aware of the adverse effect. Thank you for your consideration. 

 

 

Best, 

Donna Sue and Ed Clements 

Owners, Walking C Realty, LLC 

 

--  

Texas Real Estate Commission Information About Brokerage Services 

Texas Real Estate Commission Consumer Protection Notice 

https://url.us.m.mimecastprotect.com/s/grPPCn59GMflZnj1T9fPTJ7Epo?domain=drive.google.com
https://url.us.m.mimecastprotect.com/s/Rr5ICo2gANhlVkZ1TzhoTpcS5a?domain=drive.google.com








From: CityPlanning 

Sent: Wednesday, February 5, 2025 10:56 AM 

To: Victoria Lewelling 

Subject: FW: Regarding Zone Case 1794-K 

 

 

 

-----Original Message----- 

From: Missy cunningham <missycunningham@att.net>  

Sent: Wednesday, February 5, 2025 10:15 AM 

To: CityPlanning <cityplanning@mylubbock.us> 

Subject: Regarding Zone Case 1794-K 

 

<p style="margin:0in;margin-bottom:.0001pt;font-size:16px;font-family:"Times New Roman",serif;text-

align:center;">WARNING: This message was sent from outside the City of Lubbock's email system. <p 

style="margin:0in;margin-bottom:.0001pt;font-size:16px;font-family:"Times New Roman",serif;text-

align:center;">It could contain harmful attachments or links to harmful web pages. 

 

Good morning, 

 

I’m writing this morning to request you deny the reasoning request for case 1794-K. 

 

I am the current resident of 9607 Ithaca Avenue, Lubbock, TX 79423.  

 

I believe this reasoning request and subsequent building of a car wash on so close to my residence - or 

any residential property - is damaging to my property value, safety, and bad for the amount of noise it 

will generate.  

 

I am a retiree who enjoys my quiet area. Please do not approve this request. A car wash will be loud, 

create a lot of traffic and will reduce my property value.  

 

Also, my great grandson spends quite a bit of time here. I do not want him to be subjected to the noise 

and extra traffic that would come as a result of this change.  

 

I appreciate your time and consideration. Please do not approve this reasoning request and encourage 

the business to seek to grow elsewhere - not in our backyard.  

 

Sincerely and respectfully, 

Missy Cunningham  

 



From: CityPlanning 

Sent: Wednesday, February 5, 2025 8:27 AM 

To: Victoria Lewelling 

Subject: FW: Zone case 1794-K 

 

 

 

From: Starkey, Jacqueline <Jacqueline.Starkey@va.gov>  

Sent: Wednesday, February 5, 2025 7:53 AM 

To: CityPlanning <cityplanning@mylubbock.us> 

Subject: Zone case 1794-K 

 

WARNING: This message was sent from outside the City of Lubbock's email system. 

It could contain harmful attachments or links to harmful web pages. 

 

 

Good morning, 

 

I am writing regarding the request that is being put before you today for: District 4 3.4 Zone Case 1794-

K; AMD Engineering, LLC for Community Christian Church, request for a zone change from  High Density 

Residential District (HDR) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at 3417 96th Street, located north of 

98th Street west of Indiana Avenue, on 1.6 acres our of Raintree Addition, Tract F-1. 

 

Please DO NOT APPROVE this request.  My  86 year old mother lives at 9613 Ithaca Avenue, Lubbock, 

Texas 79423. 

 

I am writing on behalf of my 86 year old mother who lives in this quite little community, which has very 

little traffic and road noise.  There is a little community church between her house and Indiana Avenue 

which causes little to no traffic noise during the week and rarely on the weekends.  The loud 

and  disruptive noise of construction with heavy machinery, alone would be a nightmare for this little 

community.  A car washing facility often have loud music, equipment, and heavy traffic noise during the 

better part of the day.  This would disrupt her small quite community, which houses many retirees who 

want to enjoy their peace and quiet.  Indiana Avenue is a busy street with Lubbock’s growing population 

but adding a car washing facility to this residential area with make the traffic much more congested. 

 

Additionally, I firmly believe this rezoning for a auto commercial property so close to her residential area 

will heavily impact her property value.  This does not impact her at this point with the small community 

church but adding a loud commercial business would most definitely drive down the property value. 

 

I urge you to please consider many other locations where a car wash could be built that are not so close 

to residential area.  We are all for the growth and development of Lubbock, but  not  at the sacrifice of 

Raintree’s peace, safety and value.  

 

Thank you for taking this request into consideration. 



 

Sincerely,  

 

Jacqueline Starkey  (on behalf of resident Hazel Biddy) 

806-632-5949 

 

 

 







 AI# 13214 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 6. 
02/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 5): Consider a request for Zone Case 2916-F, a
request of SK Architecture Group, LLC, for a zone change from Industrial Park
District (IP) to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC), at 8310 and 8314 Upland
Avenue, located south of 82nd Street and west of Upland Avenue, Centerline
Addition, Tracts B and C, and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department
Staff Report attached hereto. As noted in the report, staff has no objection to the
request. The Planning and Zoning Commission heard this case on February 6, 2025,
and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous vote of 8-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 2916-F 
Staff Report 2916-F 
Documentation 2916-F 







Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 
 

Staff Report  Zone Case 2916-F 
City Council Meeting February 25, 2025 

 
Applicant   SK Architecture Group, LLC  

Property Owner  SK Architecture Group, LLC 

 

Council District   5 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

• January 14, 1999, Ordinance No. 10117: The subject property was annexed into city limits and zoned 

Transition District (T). 

• September 13, 2001, Zone Case 2916, Ordinance No. 2001-O0066: The subject properties were rezoned 

from T to General Retail District (C-3).  

• November 2, 2017, Zone Case 2916-A, Ordinance No. 2017-O0138: The subject properties were rezoned 

from C-3 to Interstate Highway Industrial District (IHI) with limiting conditions. 

• December 17, 2019, Zone Case 2916-B, Ordinance No. 2019-O0170: The subject properties were rezoned 

from IHI with limiting conditions to IHI.  

• May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned 

from IHI to Industrial Park District (IP) with the adoption of the Unified Development Code. 

• February 6, 204, Zone Case 2916-F: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 

zone change from IP to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) by a vote of 8-0-0.  

 

Notification Summary   

• Notifications Sent: 28 

• Received In Favor: 1 

• Received In Opposition: 0 

 

Site Conditions and History 

The subject properties are 8310 and 8314 Upland Avenue, originally platted as Centerline Addition, Tracts B and 

C, on September 28, 2020. The property is currently undeveloped.  

 

Adjacent Property Development  

The property to the north is developed as commercial warehousing, zoned Industrial Park District (IP). The 

properties to the east are developed with commercial offices, zoned Office District (OF) and Neighborhood 

Commercial District (NC). The property to the south is undeveloped land, zoned IP. The properties to the west 

are commercial offices, zoned IP and Heavy Commercial District (HC).  

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject properties are addressed as 8310 and 8314 Upland Avenue, located south of 82nd Street and west of 

Upland Avenue, Centerline Addition, Tracts B and C. The applicant requests a zone change from Industrial Park 

District (IP) to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC). 

 

Current zoning:  Industrial Park District (IP) 

 

Requested zoning:  Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) 

 

 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

Intent Statements 

The purpose of the current IP zoning district is “to provide for low-impact manufacturing, wholesaling, 

warehousing, and distribution activities that occur within enclosed buildings, typically within industrial park 

settings.” 

 

The intent of the requested NC zoning is “to provide for small-scale retail and moderate density residential uses 

located away from major intersections (nodes), with building and site design standards that are compatible and 

have adjacent residential uses.” 

 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The property is located south of 82nd Street and west of Upland Avenue, which are both designated as Principal 
Arterials by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Principal Arterials provide connectivity across the transportation 
network serving high volume needs of local and regional traffic.  
 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development.  

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for Heavy Commercial land uses. While this request is for a more 

restrictive commercial district, it would still be appropriate along Upland Avenue and adjacent to existing uses. 

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and will be appropriate at the proposed 

location. 

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed district, as it would not change the characteristics of the existing 

neighborhood. 

 

Conclusion 

Staff has no objection to the request. 

 

Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 

C. Notification Map 

D. Aerial Map 

E. Zoning Map 

F. Future Land Use Map 

G. Photos 

H. Application and Supporting Documentation 

I. Notification Responses 

 

Staff Contacts 

Victoria Lewelling   Kristen Sager 

Planner     Director of Planning 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2021    806-775-2109 

vlewelling@mylubbock.us  ksager@mylubbock.us 

mailto:vlewelling@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 2916-F 

 

Allowable Uses:   Neighborhood Commercial District (NC)  

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from Upland Avenue.  

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Upland Avenue, 
Principal Arterial, 

Incomplete 

R.O.W 110 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved. 

R.O.W 110 feet, seven-lane, 
undivided, paved. 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.  

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 5 

3.5     Zone Case 2916-F:  SK Architecture Group, LLC, request for a zone change from Industrial Park 

District (IP) to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC), at: 

 8310 and 8314 Upland Avenue, located south of 82nd Street and west of Upland Avenue, 

Centerline Addition, Tracts B and C. 

 

PLANNER VICTORIA LEWELLING gave a presentation and answered questions from the Commission. Staff has no 

objection to the request. 

 

APPLICANT GABRIEL SANCHEZ, 8355 Upland Avenue, with SKS Architecture Group, discussed the proposed site 

plan for the property and answered questions from the Commission. 

 

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition. 

 

In the matter of Zone Case 1794-K, a motion was made by ROBERT WOOD and seconded by TAREK REDWAN to 

approve the request as presented. The Commission voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 

The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 

 





182087
Line

182087
Line

182087
Line

182087
Line

182087
Polygon

182087
Line









2916-F 

 

 

View west. Subject property. View east.  

View north.  View south. 









 AI# 13212 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 7. 
02/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 3): Consider a request for Zone Case 3174-D, a
request of AMD Engineering, LLC for Texas District LCMS and Generator 1, LLC,
for a zone change Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) and Heavy Commercial
District (HC) to High Density Residential District (HDR), at 2601, 2605, and 2615
19th Street, located west of University Avenue and south of 19th Street, on 1.56 acres
out of Ellwood Place, Block 7, and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department
Staff Report attached hereto. As noted in the report, staff has no objection to the
request. The Planning and Zoning Commission heard this case on February 6, 2025,
and recommended approval of the request by a vote of 7-1-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 3174-D 
Staff Report 3174-D 
Documentation 3174-D 









 

AMD ENGINEERING, LLC

 
DESCRIPTION FOR A ZONING CHANGE REQUEST IN 

SECTION 13, BLOCK B, 

LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS 
 

(Sheet 1 of 2, Sketch of tract attached as Sheet 2) 

 
METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION of a 1.56-acre tract of land located in Section 13, Block 

B, Lubbock County, Texas, prepared for Zone Change Purposes only and being further described 

as follows: 
 

BEGINNING at a point at the most Northeasterly corner of the north 234 feet of Lot 1 of Ellwood 

Place, Instalment No.2, Block 7 (Vol:101, Page:31) that bears S 01° 45’ 16” W an approximate 

distance of 225.79’; 

  

THENCE S 73° 35’ 14” W an approximate distance of 26.33 feet; 

 

THENCE N 88° 14’ 44” W an approximate distance of 345.98 feet; 

 

THENCE N 86° 24’ 09” W an approximate distance of 100.00 feet; 

 

THENCE N 01° 44’ 29” E an approximate distance of 2.64 feet; 

 

THENCE S 88° 09’ 00” E an approximate distance of 183.42 feet; 

 

THENCE N 01° 45’ 46” E an approximate distance of 228.60 feet; 

 

THENCE S 88° 13’ 01” E an approximate distance of 287.50 feet to the Point of Beginning and 

containing approximately 1.56-acres. 

 

This description was prepared for the purposes of a zoning request and does not represent 

a survey made upon the ground.  

 

 

Prepared for: Generator 1, LLC 

           Texas Dist. Lutheran Church 

           December 31, 2024 



ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION
EXHIBIT

A 1.56 ACRE TRACT OF LAND
LOCATED IN SECTION 13,

BLOCK B, LUBBOCK COUNTY,
TEXAS

150'0 75' 300'

SCALE: 1" = 150'

Accuracy - Efficiency - Integrity

CIVIL ENGINEERING
LAND SURVEYING

AMD Engineering, LLC
6515 68th Street, Suite 300
Lubbock, TX  79424

Phone: 806-771-5976
Fax: 806-771-7625

TBPE Reg. # F-9197

NOT TO SCALE
VICINITY MAP



Page 1 of 3 
 

 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report Zone Case 3174-D 
City Council Meeting February 25, 2025 
 

Applicant AMD Engineering, LLC   
 

Property Owners Texas District LCMS and Generator 1, LLC 
 

Council District 3 

 
Prior Board or Council Action 

• December 17, 1925, Ordinance No. 328: The subject property was annexed into city limits. 

• March 13, 1941, Original Zoning Ordinance 661: The property was zoned Apartment District (D). 

• March 13, 1941, Original Zoning Ordinance 661: The rear portion of Ellwood Place, Lots 3 and 4, was zoned 
Single Family District (A). 

• April 6, 1955, Ordinance No. 1695: The subject property was rezoned from Apartment District (D) to Multi-
Family District (R-3). 

• April 6, 1955, Ordinance No. 1695: The rear portion of Ellwood Place, Lots 2 and 4, was rezoned from 
Single Family District (A) to Single Family District (R-1). 

• December 20, 1973, Zone Case 1927, Ordinance No. 6770: This property was rezoned from R-3 to General 
Retail District (C-3) Specific Use for Hotel or Motel, alcohol sales for on-premises or off-premises 
consumption as an incidental use.  

• May 13, 1982, Zone Case 1927-A, Ordinance No. 8312: A Specific Use to allow parking and professional 
type office was approved.  

• May 13, 1993, Zone Case 1927-B, Ordinance No. 9609: The subject property was rezoned from R-3 and C-
3 to Local Retail District (C-2) Specific Use for Theater, Apartments and Staff or Visiting Artist Living 
Quarters.  

• July 8, 2009, Zone Case 2134-D, Ordinance No. 2009-O0055: A portion of the subject property was rezoned 
from C-2 Specific Use to Commercial District (C-4) limited to a restaurant with a separate exterior entrance 
to a bar area.  

• November 16, 2021, Zone Case 1927-C, Ordinance No. 2021-O0164: A Specific Use for an Event Center was 
approved.  

• February 28, 2023, Zone Case 3471-C: A request to rezone the subject property from C-4, C-4 Specific 
Use, and R-1 to Commercial Apartment District (CA) with a Planned Development (PD) was denied by City 
Council.  

• May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned 
from C-4, C-4 Specific Use, and R-1 to Heavy Commercial District (HC) and Low Density Single-Family 
District (SF-2) with the adoption of the Unified Development Code. 

• February 6, 2025, Zone Case 3174-D: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 
zone change from SF-2 and HC to High Density Residential District (HDR) by a vote of 7-1-0. 

 
Notification Summary 

• Notifications Sent: 61 

• Received In Favor: 38 (30 outside notification boundary) 

• Received In Opposition: 18 (2 outside notification boundary) 

 
Site Conditions and History 
The subject property was originally platted on June 24, 1925, as Ellwood Place Installment No. 2, Block 7, Lots 1 
– 4, and consists of 1.56 acres out of Ellwood Place, Block 7. The property is currently partially vacant, with a 
commercial building on the west portion of the property.  
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 3 
 

Adjacent Property Development 

The property to the north is zoned Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) and is developed with Texas Tech 

University. To the east is a hotel zoned High Density Residential (HDR). To the west is a student center, also zoned 

HDR, and to the south is a parking lot and residences zoned SF-2 and Neighborhood Commercial District (NC).   

 

Item Summary 

The subject property is addressed as 2601, 2605, and 2615 19th Street, located west of University Avenue and 

south of 19th Street. The applicant requests a zone change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) and 

Heavy Commercial District (HC) to High Density Residential District (HDR).  

 

 

Current zoning: Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2), Heavy Commercial District (HC)   
 
Requested Zoning: High Density Residential District (HDR) 

 
 
Purpose Statements 

The purpose of the Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) is to provide for two types of residential subdivisions: 

 

A. Conventional. Smaller to moderately-sized lots for dwellings on public utilities. Any open space is located 

on private lots. 

B. Cluster. Clustering of smaller-sized lots for dwellings with an increased percentage of common open space 
compared to cluster developments in the SF-1 district to maintain the intended character of the district 
while providing for buffering between lower and higher density adjacent neighborhoods, as well as for 
recreational amenities and resources protection.  

 
 
The Purpose of the Heavy Commercial District (HC) is to provide for development of heavy vehicle repair, 
wholesale trade, and warehousing and freight movement uses that typically are characterized by outside storage 
of materials or merchandise. The District should be located away from residential areas or, if unavoidable, should 
be heavily buffered.  
 
 
The Purpose of the High Density Residential District (HDR) is to provide for three subdivision types: 

 

A. Conventional. Single-family detached, cottage, or garden homes on public utilities with open space 
provided on private lots. 

B. Village. Mixed housing types, including townhouses, detached single-family garden homes, and low- 
to mid-rise apartments, located in a planned development or adjacent to a mixed-use district or 
center. Buildings are typically in close proximity to the street edge. The building mass, height, and scale 
transition to the neighboring land uses. 

C. Mixed-Use. Mid- to high-rise apartment development in a mixed-use district or center. The district 
consists of detached single-family garden homes, live-work buildings, and other vertically mixed-use 
buildings.  Urban open space may be used for plazas and squares 

 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The subject property is located on 19th Street, which is designated as a Principal Arterial, by the Master 
Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterial streets are continuous routes whose function is to serve high volume needs of 
local traffic and regional traffic.  

 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and is adjacent to HDR zoning to the east and 

west.   

 

 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1243
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=950
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1114
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1680
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=781
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=851
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=770
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=812
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1089


Page 3 of 3 
 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for Commercial land uses. While the proposed zone change to HDR 

is not in conformance with this designation, it is appropriate in this location, as the HDR District does allow for 

a combination of residential, commercial, and mixed use.  

  

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and will be appropriate at the proposed 

location.  

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed zone change and the uses allowed in the HDR District.   
 
Conclusion 
Staff has no objection to the request.  
 
Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 

C. Notification Map 

D. Aerial Map 

E. Zoning Map 

F. Future Land Use Map 

G. Photos 

H. Application and supporting documentation 

I. Response Letters 

 
 
Staff Contacts 

Gregory Hernandez Kristen Sager 

Planner Director of Planning   

Planning Department Planning Department 

806-775-3147 806-775-2109 

ghernandez@mylubbock.us ksager@mylubbock.us 

mailto:ghernandez@mylubbock.us
file:///C:/Users/150197/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/8F4X5W0N/ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 3 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3174-D 

 

Allowable Uses:    High Density Residential (HDR) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has point of access from 19th Street.    

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

19th Street,  
Principal Arterial,  

Completed 

R.O.W 135 feet, nine-lane, 
divided, paved. 

R.O.W 110 feet, seven-lane, 
undivided, paved. 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.  

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 3 

3.3     Zone Case 3174-D: AMD Engineering, LLC, for Texas District LCMS and Generator 1, LLC, request 
for a zone change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) and Heavy Commercial District 
(HC) to High Density Residential District (HDR), at: 

 

 2601, 2605, and 2615 19th Street, located west of University Avenue and south of 19th 

Street, on 1.56 acres out of Ellwood Place, Block 7. 

 

PLANNER GREG HERNANDEZ gave a presentation and answered questions from the Commission. Staff has no 

objection to the request. 

APPLICANT CORY DULIN, 6515 68th Street, with AMD Engineering, introduced Tyler Perlmutter, the owner and 

briefly discussed the proposed project. 

OWNER TYLER PERLMUTTER, 430 Park Avenue, Highland Park, Illinois, advised he is the project leader 

representing Pinecrest. He discussed the company history and proposed project, including the building height, 

parking, security, amenities, and utilities, and answered questions from the Commission. 

ARCHITECT JOSEPH AHMADI, 8521 Leesburg Pike, Vienna Virginia, discussed the traffic analysis and design 

approach, and answered questions from the Commission. 

IN OPPOSITION LAURIN PRATHER, 3108 20th Street, shared his concerns about parking and the density of the 

project, but he is overall not against the project. He answered questions from the Commission. 



Zone Case 3174-D 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 3 
 

IN OPPOSITION RICHARD MURPHY, 2911 20th Street, questioned the scope of the Commission’s decision for 

deciding on the zoning request and relayed that the site plan should be tied to the approval so the plans could 

not be drastically changed later.  

IN OPPOSITION ABBIE KLEPPA, 2627 21st Street, expressed concerns about density, building height, parking, 

traffic, and infrastructure, and answered questions from the Commission. 

IN OPPOSITION DON RICHARDS, 3105 20th Street, remarked that this project, while an improvement, is still not 

right for the location. He answered questions from the Commission.  

IN OPPOSITION CONNIE SEYMORE, 2625 20th Street, agreed that the new proposal is a nicer design, but 

wondered if ongoing construction on 19th Street will be finished when the project breaks ground. Another 

concern is how the construction trucks will affect the neighborhood’s brick streets. 

IN OPPOSITION CYD SEIDEMAN, 3202 20th Street, surmised that with two schools and two parks in the 

neighborhood already, with ongoing construction, the neighborhood cannot absorb 500 additional students. She 

also discussed parking issues.  

IN OPPOSITION SHERYL GONZALES, 3207 20th Street, questioned whether the alleyways would be used for trash 

pick-up, and further, could widening the alleys result in eminent domain. She answered questions from the 

Commission. 

IN OPPOSITION TAI KREIDER, 3008 26th Street, discussed the architecture of the neighborhood and the 

structure. It is much better than the last proposal. He discussed concerns regarding parking and traffic, and 

answered questions from the commission. 

IN OPPOSITION HOLLE HUMPHRIES, 3008 26th Street, discussed concerns regarding density and parking, and the 

height of the building. The building is beautiful, but it is not to scale for the surrounding neighborhood. 

IN OPPOSITION BAYNETTA JORDAN, 3009 21st Street, stated her appreciation for the effort put into the project. 

However, the life of these projects is ten years, and she implored the Commission to think about after the 

building is sold in ten years. 

IN OPPOSITION TERRY SAENZ, 2619 19th Street, likened the project to Park Towers. It’s the surrounding 

community that is left with the aftermath of these big projects when they pull out after a number of years. The 

issues that arise are burglaries, theft, jaywalking, and traffic accidents.  

IN OPPOSITION TED HOGAN, 2712 20th Street, remarked on the improvements made to the project design, and 

said the Commission is tasked with approval based on appropriateness of the requested zoning. He shared that 

he does not think this location is appropriate for High Density Residential. 

IN OPPOSITION ROGER SETTLER, 2120 Broadway, representing the Congress of Neighborhood Associations and 

the Historic Overton Association. He is concerned the requested project is creating artificial subsidized growth. 

Mr. Settler discussed his concerns of sustainability and density, and answered questions from the Commission. 

IN FAVOR CORY DULIN, 6515 68th Street, with AMD Engineering, responded to issues raised about the project. 

He advised there will be an interior trash compactor in the parking garage that will be accessed from 19th by the 

trash collection. They will increase the concrete necessary in the alley. Most of the west half of the property is 

already HDR. The east side is HC. This is a downzone from HC to HDR. 



Zone Case 3174-D 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 3 of 3 
 

IN FAVOR ARIC LAMPERT, 3802 133rd Street, discussed uses allowed by right under the existing HC zoning, and 

answered questions from the Commission. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3174-D, a motion was made by SCOTT GLOYNA and seconded by ROBERT WOOD to 
approve the request as presented. The Commission voted 7 (in favor) to 1 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 
The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 
 
RENEE CAGE cast the vote in opposition. 

 
 














































































































































	Agenda
	4.01.__Minutes - 1-28-2025
	       ATT_1.28.2025
	5.01.__Budget Amendment 12
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 12
	5.01.1.__Traffic Signal Vehicular and Pedestrian Detection Improvements 
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Agreement
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	5.02.__Solaris, Tract K-1 - Easement Closure
	       ATT_Ordinance - Solaris, Tr. K-1 Easement Closure, 
	       ATT_Solaris, Tr. K-1 Easement Closure, Exhibit A
	       ATT_Solaris, Tr. K-1 Easement GIS Map
	5.03.__Block 102, Overton - Alley Closure
	       ATT_Ordinance Alley Closure Overton,Blk102
	       ATT_20203-08-09_Alley Closure Description and Exhibit
	Alley Closure Metes and Bounds
	40975.23 Alley Closure Exhibit-8.5X11 L
	8.5X11 L


	       ATT_GIS Map Alley Closure Overton,Blk102
	5.04.__Huntington Business Park - Easement Closure
	       ATT_Ordinance - Huntington Bus. Pk.
	       ATT_Huntington - Exhibit - A
	       ATT_GIS map - Huntington Bus. Pk.
	5.05.__Sec. 22, Blk. E-2 - Allery Closure, Solaris
	       ATT_Solaris Tr. K-1, Alley Ordinance
	       ATT_Solaris Tr. K-1, Alley mandb legal
	       ATT_Solaris Tr. K-1, Alley GIS
	5.06.__82nd St. Parcel 19 & 20 - Street Use and Right-of-Way Deeds
	       ATT_Resolution - 82nd St, Parcels 19 and 20
	       ATT_P19_Deed_Signed
	       ATT_P20_Deed_Signed
	       ATT_GIS map - 82ndSt,Parcel19
	       ATT_GIS map - 82nd St, Parcel 20
	       ATT_CIP Budget Detail - 92825
	       ATT_CIP 92825 Project Detail
	5.07.__Amendment to 39.04.014 Storm Drainage
	       ATT_Ordinance
	5.08.__Professional Services Agreement Contract No. 18600
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract 18600
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Project Detail
	5.09.__Fuquay, Inc. - Cured in Place Pipe Rehab
	       ATT_Resolution 
	       ATT_Contract - Fuquay, Inc., Cured In Place Pipe Rehab
	       ATT_CIP 92701 Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP 92701 Project Detail Sheet
	Project Cost Detail

	5.10.__Resolution - PO 22105397-VWR International
	       ATT_Resolution - PO 22105397, VWR International
	       ATT_PO 22105397 -VWR International
	5.11.__School Zone Ordinance Amendment
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_Summary of Changes
	       ATT_CIP 92742 Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Project Detail
	5.12.__Citibus - Armed Security Guard Services - ITB 25-18460-KM
	       ATT_Resolution - Citibus_Applied Operations Security 
	       ATT_Contract - Citibus_Applied Operations Security 
	       ATT_Bid Tab Sheet - Citibus_Applied Operations Security 
	       ATT_Project Summary - Citibus_Applied Operations Security 
	5.13.__Citibus - Michelin Tire Lease - RFP 25-18338-KM
	       ATT_Resolution - Citibus_Michelin Tire Lease 
	       ATT_Contract - Citibus_Michelin Tire Lease 
	Contract ______

	       ATT_Project Summary - Citibus_Michelin Tire Lease 
	5.14.__Avenue U Villas HTC Resolution of Support 
	       ATT_Resolution
	5.15.__North Overton PID Gravel 
	       ATT_Resolution - West Texas Services
	       ATT_Contract - West Texas Services
	       ATT_Bid-Tab - West Texas Services
	       ATT_Project Summary - Gravel for North Overton PID
	5.16.__Agmt. with US Digital Designs by Honeywell - Fire Station Alerting System 
	       ATT_Resolution - Fire Station Alerting System Contract 18465
	       ATT_Contract 18465 - Fire Station Alerting System
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	       ATT_RFP 25-18465-LV Project Summary
	5.17.__ZC 3515
	       ATT_Ordinance 3515
	       ATT_Staff Report 3515
	       ATT_Documentation 3515
	3515 Staff Report Shane_VE Edit
	3515 case info
	3515_1locator
	3515_2imag
	3515_3zoning
	3515_4flup
	3515 Photos
	3515 Application

	5.18.__ZC 1635-B
	       ATT_Ordinance 1635-B
	       ATT_Staff Report 1635-B
	       ATT_Documentation 1635-B
	ADPD1D1.tmp
	Slide Number 1

	Slide Pics.pdf
	Slide Number 1


	5.19.__ZC 2538-OO
	       ATT_Ordinance 2538-OO
	       ATT_Staff Report 2538-OO
	       ATT_Documentation 2538-OO
	6.01.__Lubbock Housing Authority Appointment Declaration
	6.02.__Annual Financial Comprehensive Report
	       ATT_ACFR Resolution 24
	6.03.__ZC 437-C
	       ATT_Ordinance 437-C
	       ATT_Staff Report 437-C
	       ATT_Documentation 437-C
	437-C Staff report- Shane - with KS edits
	437-C case info
	0437C_1locator
	0437C_2imag
	0437C_3zoning
	0437C_4flup
	437-C photos
	APP
	437-C owner pictures

	6.04.__ZC 3516
	       ATT_Ordinance 3516
	       ATT_Staff Report 3516
	       ATT_Documentation 3516
	6.05.__ZC 1794-K
	       ATT_Ordinance 1794-K
	       ATT_Staff Report 1794-K
	       ATT_Documentation 1794-K
	Sheets and Views
	MIGHTY WASH-ZONE CHANGE EXHIBIT-Legal (L)

	1794-k letters received.pdf
	1794k- letter in opp feb 3
	1794k- second letter in opp feb 3
	1794k- second letter in opp feb 3 attached comments
	FW  Regarding Zone Case 1794-K
	FW  Re-Zoning Case #1794-K
	letters in opp


	6.06.__ZC 2916-F
	       ATT_Ordinance 2916-F
	       ATT_Staff Report 2916-F
	       ATT_Documentation 2916-F
	applicant site plan.pdf
	SD100 - PRESENTATION SHEET


	6.07.__ZC 3174-D
	       ATT_Ordinance 3174-D
	       ATT_Staff Report 3174-D
	       ATT_Documentation 3174-D

